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China CITIC Bank International Limited
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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited since 27 August 2015.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both the wealth
management and international business objectives of Greater China and overseas
customers, CNCBI aspires to be the “China Bank of Choice”, with the best international
standards and capabilities.

CNCBI'’s footprint in Greater China includes 34 branches in Hong Kong, as well as
branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has
overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise
the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core
to our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our
network capability in China, coupled with our customer-
centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are a key competitive advantage of ours.

ZioMB(E  Our Core Values

UERE Customer-centric

81 = EE Progressive

BESW Execution

SIE8E Value Creating

SESA Building People, Building Team

BIFHE Integrity
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Financial Performance

2015 BHE 2015 Financial Highlights
2FE(FEER) For the year (HK$ million) 2015 2014 % change
F A B Net interest income 3,420 4157 -17.7
FEF B A Non-interest income 2,411 1,849 +304
KB Operating expenses (2,564) (2,453) +4.5
ERRBFEEAMEE Impairment losses on loans and advances

BEEEEE and other accounts (668) (181) +269.1
75t Al % A Profit before taxation 2,601 3,374 229
FriS %t Income tax (433) (573) 244
[i% 5 & 1 & A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,168 2,801 2226
REZRA(BEET) At year end (HK$ million) 2015 2014 % change
e O & Loans and advances 169,870 150,720 +12.7
BERE Total assets 282,535 249,141 +134
7 5 #88R Total deposits 231,072 203,087 +13.8
% B i Shareholders’ equity 21,744 19,941 +9.0
B 7 b & Financial ratios 2015 2014
BEARTE R E Capital adequacy 16.5% 17.3%
FHERB M R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 61.8% N/A
EETHRDES LK Average liquidity N/A o4.9%
B X Loans to deposits 73.5% 74.2%
B AN 5 I A B Cost to income 44.0% 40.9%
REIRTT (BB BIRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



REREMGER (BBET) EE#RE (B8ERT) RRER (BEBET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million) Total assets (HKS million) Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

15 15 15
14 2,801 14 249,141 14 19,941
13 2,135 13 216,308 13 17176
12 1,557 12 177,181 12 15,052
11 1,410 11 171,426 11 13,105
S5 BB BR 5 Year Financial Summary
E2EZE(BEER) For the year (HK$ million) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
A B A Net interest income 3,420 4,157 3,331 2,339 1,862
FER B A Non-interest income 2,411 1,849 1,416 1377 1,557
LT Operating expenses (2,564) (2,453) (2,089) (1,808) (1,652)
BEREBT K Impairment losses (charged)/

H R IE R E BB written back on loans and advances

(E4E) /B # and other accounts (668) (181) (84) 91) 75
A5t Al g A Profit before taxation 2,601 3,374 2,554 1,866 1,692
s Income tax (433) (573) (419) (309) (282)
A% R A 8 T Profit attributable to shareholders 2,168 2,801 2,135 1,557 1,410
REZLZB(EEET) At year end (HK$ million) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
B KB R Loans and advances 169,870 150,720 127,017 105,092 93,718
BB B Impairment allowance 696 538 476 546 543
& EHRE Total assets 282,535 249,141 216,308 177,181 171,426
TR B U R B EHE  Average interest earnings assets 248,689 225,872 182,077 169,560 153,209
TFRBE Total deposits 231,072 203,087 170,834 145017 139,164
% R 2 Shareholders’ equity 21,744 19,941 17,176 15,052 13,105
B R b Financial ratios 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
BART R E Capital adequacy 16.5% 17.3% 16.5% 18.2% 18.3%
1907 B M 44 B R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 61.8% = - - -
2EFEHRHEL LI Average liquidity - 64.9% 55.3% 59.4% 43.6%
EfFLL X Loans to deposits 73.5% 74.2% 74.4% 72.5% 67.3%
ERHEEREBELLE Loans to total assets 60.1% 60.5% 58.7% 59.3% 54.7%
GATEBEEL X Collective assessment coverage 0.2% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.4%
X AN 5 I A BE Cost to income 44.0% 40.9% 44.0% 48.7% 483%
EHEELORE Return on average total assets 0.8% 1.2% 1.1% 0.9% 0.9%
I 15 j% A 25 [B] R R Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.2% 14.9% 13.2% 10.8% 10.2%
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Financial Performance

T Deposits*
1. RERE D By type 2015 2014
2K Current 9.1% 9.5%
wE Savings 16.7% 16.5%
E Fixed 74.2% 74.0%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. REBMBEE D By maturity 2015 2014
BIRSEI8 On demand 25.8% 26.0%
D316 A Less than 3 months 61.1% 60.9%
HiR3E A ETRIF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 12.9% 11.9%
BRIFEIRSE Over 1 year but less than 5 years 0.2% 1.2%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REYE D By currency 2015 2014
BT HKD 50.8% 48.2%
ETT usb 24.3% 25.1%
Eih Others 24.9% 26.7%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, FRIEREBE#E Number of deposit accounts 2015 2014
373,849 347,226
* PAEPTFRBER *  Based on customer deposits only
44.4%
511% 75.9%
W EAREBERITER
Personal & Business Banking Group
BERD M B FHE mamo 0.1%
Total Deposits Certificates of Deposit Total Loans
Breakdown B HEi Breakdown
Others
NCIVSE R E e
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

BRITEE D By industry sectors 2015 2014
FAREANER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
TITHEEkERA: Industrial, commercial and financial:
MEEIER Property development 7.7% 3.7%
MEIKE Property investment 11.5% 11.3%
SR Financial concerns 4.0% 5.6%
fREL A Stockbrokers 2.1% 0.5%
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 10.5% 11.1%
BUES Manufacturing 4.4% 4.8%
Bl X B E Transport and transport equipment 2.1% 1.4%
IRELED) Recreational activities 0.6% 0.2%
BB Information technology 0.0% 0.0%
Hith Others 4.7% 3.1%
EPNE Individuals:
BEIEABEERE - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[FLAZERE2ERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
rEl] RIEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
STEIEF] ER Scheme 0.0% 0.1%
BEEMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 7.3% 7.5%
ERREE Credit card advances 0.3% 0.2%
Hith Others 4.6% 4.5%
E5mE Trade finance 6.5% 10.4%
AREBAIME T EFK . EF  Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 33.7% 35.6%
CEl Total 100.0% 100.0%
RibE D M E D By geographical spread 2015 2014
o Hong Kong 51.0% 51.7%
FR A3 Mainland China 32.0% 33.5%
E521 USA 1.5% 1.0%
Fronig Singapore 7.2% 7.2%
Hitb Others 8.3% 6.6%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE D By maturity 2015 2014
BN {EE Repayable on demand 4.4% 4.0%
PR F Less than 1 year 55.1% 54.0%
Hid 1 FEDR 5 F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 27.8% 28.1%
i 5 F Over 5 years 11.8% 13.2%
\ETHES Undated 0.9% 0.7%
ak Total 100.0% 100.0%
RE%E S By currency 2015 2014
BT HKD 42.0% 44.6%
ET usD 43.1% 41.7%
A Others 14.9% 13.7%
&=t Total 100.0% 100.0%
BEXEREEE Number of loan accounts 2015 2014
439,206 395,041
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

| am delighted to have been appointed Chairman of China CITIC Bank
International Limited ("CNCBI") in May 2015. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, | hereby present the results of CNCBI and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) for 2015.

Although profit attributable to shareholders at HK$2.17 billion was 22.6%
lower than a year ago, it was still the second highest level attained by the
Group in its history, reflecting its resilience in the face of adverse economic
conditions. Compared with its peers, the Group achieved more rapid growth
in total assets, customer loans and total deposits, which were up 13.4%,
12.7% and 13.8% year-on-year respectively to HK$282.53 billion, HK$169.87
billion and HK$231.07 billion. Notably, retail deposits topped HK$100 billion,
while market share in customer loans and deposits, especially RMB deposits,
grew substantially year-on-year. Alongside a stable expansion in balance
sheet, prudent risk management remained in place.

The Group has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited (“CNCB") since August last year, as the transaction
involving CNCB's acquisition of a 29.68% stake in our holding company
(i.e. CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH")) held by Banco
Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA”") was completed. CNCB remains very
confident and supportive of the Group’s business, with an injection of
HK$1.8 billion in January 2016 to boost its capital base.

The Group is stepping up its collaboration with parent bank, from which
it can gather stronger momentum of development ahead. Committed to
becoming the strategic platform for CNCB to expand internationally, and in
response to China’s new policy initiatives such as “One Belt, One Road’, the
Group will work closely with cross-border customers who have “Go Global”
moves, providing them with tailored financial solutions. In the near term,
no effort will be spared to cope with the challenges posed by persistent
weaknesses in the macroeconomic environment and volatile market
conditions. We will keep a watchful eye on any changes in global economic
trends and seize the opportunities that may result from such changes. The
Group strives for not only growth in business but also improvement in
return on assets. We will continue to promote innovations, stress operational
efficiency and safeguard against various risks.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our
deepest appreciation to ex-Chairman, Dr Chen Xiaoxian, for his invaluable
contribution to the Group. Moreover, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our customers for their trust and support. | also wish to express
my gratitude to the management team and CNCBI staff at all levels for
their professionalism and team spirit, which has and will continue to
build up the strength of the Group to ensure that despite fluctuations in
market conditions, it can achieve a breakthrough and maintain sustainable
balanced growth ahead.



BREIE
EER
Sun Deshun
Chairman

&% - 201653 A21H
Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

[2015%F » REHRT (BR) ZRREABTHE
RITERENERBBURZEETHHE
Zh ZREERE SEXBRBREZRE -
BREREMGEN21.7RET EFFEFREER
HBREENVHER - |

“With closer cross-border collaboration with parent
bank, China CITIC Bank, and the continuous effort
of all staff members, China CITIC Bank International
overcame many difficulties and achieved stable
growth in various businesses. Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$2.17 billion while
both customer deposits and loans registered
double-digit growth.”

2015 was a year fraught with challenges. The market risks emerging around
late 2014 continued to escalate, making it challenging for China CITIC
Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) to sustain growth record. Compared with the strong performance
of 2014, last year's results were weaker but remained satisfactory. The
Group's operating income at HK$5.83 billion for the twelve months ended
31 December 2015 was down 2.9% against the corresponding period a year
ago. Although profit attributable to shareholders declined by 22.6% year-
on-year to HK$2.17 billion, it was still the second highest recorded in the
Group’s history.
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Mr. Michael Leung
Chief Information and
Operations Officer

HEELE
BETRER  BRERENR
PR BT R B

Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer

& General Counsel
Group Head of Internal Control

I ER k4

25 E 1R 4B B

Mr. Jose Maria Abollado
Chief Risk Officer

HMYELE
(=)=

Mr. Bai Lijun
Acting Treasurer

EAREE

B 7% 1R B

Mr. Elton Tam
Chief Financial Officer

CEHERE

ANFBE
Mr. John Lee
Chief Personnel Officer

BRUELL
WITEE - BETHRAHE
BAREBIRITERSEE
Mrs. Helen Kan
Executive Director &

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Personal &
Business Banking

B ARLZE
THREERAELE
Ms. Zoe Lau
Director of CEO Office

. XRBRTE

B
Ms. Rita Man
Chief Compliance Officer

Bzt

BITESE BITTHRAEEFR
NAEIRBIREB R

Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director &

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking

EMEE
EizmE

Mr. David Yau
Chief Auditor
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The Group had experienced rapid growth for two consecutive years in 2013
and 2014. However, lingering weakness in the macroeconomic environment
adversely affected loan demand, compressed net interest margin and
increased credit risk, resulting in lower profitability for 2015. Nonetheless,
on the positive side, the Group continued to achieve healthy growth in the
balance sheet and sustained upgrade in the IT infrastructure. A challenging
environment was also positive in that it encouraged us to proactively
reflect on our existing business model and develop new thinking that can
be applied to our future operations. A closer link with China CITIC Bank
(CNCB), coupled with opportunities brought about by China's economic
and financial reforms, is expected to propel the Group into a new stage of
development.

Operating Environment

Global economic growth was losing momentum last year, while market
sentiment was rather gloomy. Based on World Bank’s estimates, world
GDP growth slowed from 2.6% in 2014 to 2.4% in 2015. Although the US
economy remained one of the few consistently bright spots, a modest
recovery in other major developed countries was offset by a further
slowdown in key emerging and developing countries, resulting in
weaknesses in commodity prices, global trade and capital flows.

China’s GDP growth also continued to decelerate to 6.9% in 2015 from 7.7%
and 7.3% in 2013 and 2014 respectively. Owing to the problem of excess
capacity, the trade and manufacturing sectors slowed down significantly. As
far as the banking sector was concerned, this not only affected loan demand
but also increased credit risk. With a potential rise in non-performing loans,
banks would have to be vigilant, undertaking timely evaluation of asset
quality and regular reviews of borrowers' creditworthiness.

In response to economic sluggishness, the Chinese government adopted
a series of stimulus measures including, inter alia, reductions in the reserve
requirement ratio and interest rates. Since November 2014, the People’s
Bank of China ("PBoC") has cut rates six times, resulting in a cumulative
165 basis point reduction in the benchmark lending rate to 4.35% and a
cumulative 150 basis point reduction in the benchmark deposit rate to
1.50%. Together with persistently higher offshore RMB deposit cost, this led
to a decrease and even a reversal in the onshore-offshore interest spread,
putting pressure on both the demand for RMB financing and loan yields.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Moreover, while a multi-year appreciation of the RMB exchange rate had
already started to give way to two-way fluctuations, the PBoC's decision to
change its daily rate fixing mechanism last August triggered a noticeable
downward adjustment to the value of the yuan against the US dollar,
increased pressure on the RMB exchange rate and fuelled expectations of
further devaluation ahead. Consequently, many companies opted to retire
their foreign currency debts earlier, hurting banks' net interest income. In
addition, treasury income earned from products that were anchored in
expectations of a sustained rise in the value of the yuan was also seriously
affected.

Financial Performance

The Group's operating income in 2015 decreased slightly by 2.9% to HK$5.83
billion. While profit after impairment was down 22.9% to HKS$2.60 billion,
profit attributable to shareholders declined by 22.6% to HK$2.17 billion.
Return on average assets was 0.83%, 36 basis points lower than the 1.19%
of the previous year. Return on average shareholders' equity was 10.24%,
compared with 14.86% in 2014.

It is noteworthy that the Group’s overseas branches managed to achieve
significant growth despite a difficult operating environment last year. Their
aggregate profit after impairment soared by 118% year-on-year, accounting
for 17% of the Group's total, compared with 6% in 2014.

The drop in operating income last year resulted from a substantial reduction
in net interest income, which was down by HK$740 million or 17.7% from a
year earlier to HK$3.42 billion. Although customer loans continued to grow
with stable yields, there was a marked contraction in RMB interbank loans
while yields were also sharply lower. As a result, overall net interest margin
narrowed to 1.38% in 2015 from 1.84% a year ago.

On the other hand, non-interest income was an impressive redeeming
feature, as it increased by HK$560 million or 30.4% year-on-year to HK$2.41
billion, partly offsetting the setback in net interest income. The remarkable
growth was primarily attributed to loan fees and income from selling
insurance and investment products.

Meanwhile, the Group invested heavily in technology and successfully
reduced staff costs by 3%. Total operating expenses increased by only 4.5%
year-on-year in 2015.

—E-LFR
Annual Report 2015
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Financial Position

As at end-2015, total deposits amounted to HK$231.07 billion, up 13.8%
year-on-year. While deposit cost remained stable, the deposit structure
improved on the back of sustained growth in retail deposits, which
exceeded HKS$100 billion for the first time. Despite expectations of a weaker
yuan, the Group’s RMB deposit base continued to expand.

Meanwhile, total loans and total assets were up steadily. Customer loans
remained stable throughout the first three quarters with a marked increase
in Q4. As at end-2015, there was a healthy 12.7% year-on-year growth in
customer loans to HK$169.87 billion, whereas total assets also grew by
13.4% to HK$282.53 billion.

Given potential deterioration in the credit environment, the Group adopted
a more stringent loan classification policy. As a result, impaired loan ratio
increased by 41 basis points from end-2014 to 0.89%.

The Group remained well capitalized, with its capital ratios staying above
regulatory requirements. As at end-2015, total capital adequacy ratio stood
at 16.50%, down 77 basis points from a year ago, and common equity tier
1 capital ratio was 10.50%, slightly up 2 basis points. Moreover, the average
consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio at 61.8% was sufficiently high as a
buffer against any unexpected changes in the funding environment.

Business Review

Wholesale and cross-border banking business continued to explore
new business models in light of deteriorating economic conditions and
increasing difficulties facing the banking industry. A significant breakthrough
in cross-border business was achieved with closer collaboration with
CNCB and CITIC Group to take advantage of the Chinese government's
key strategic policy initiatives, such as developing “One Belt, One Road’,
encouraging Chinese enterprises to “Go Global” and establishing four
major free-trade zones. Strong emphasis was laid on dealing with major
corporations, key industries and large-scale projects as we attempted to
grow assets without compromising on asset quality. Besides, the potential
and capability of the overseas branches in Singapore, the US and Macau
were fully leveraged, with good performances in loan growth, deposit
growth, product innovation and operating income. Moreover, the Bank was
quick to seize business opportunities arising from market changes. The Bank
responded to clients'increasing demand for financial products to cope with
volatility in interest rates and exchange rates by offering solutions to hedge
against market risks. As at end-2015, wholesale and cross-border banking
customer loans amounted to HK$128.86 billion, up 15.6% from a year ago,
while audited income in 2015 grew 12.0% year-on-year to HK$3.48 billion.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Retail banking business continued to grow well, with breakthrough achieved
in customer deposits, cross-border business and e-banking business.
Last October was a historic moment when customer deposits surpassed
HKS$100 billion. Meanwhile, “Diamond Wealth Management” was launched
in late March last year to satisfy the demand of high net worth customers
for cross-border wealth management services, signifying a milestone for
collaboration with CNCB in servicing these customers. In addition, CNCBI
was the first bank in Hong Kong to cooperate with Tencent to implement
the account-binding function on WeChat and to settle payment for travel
insurance via WeChat Pay. It was also the first bank in Hong Kong to
provide customers with access to their account information by fingerprint
authentication on mobile phones, which has expedited the log-in process.
These two innovations have greatly enhanced customer experience and
the leading position of CNCBI in mobile e-banking business. As at end-2015,
personal and business banking customer deposits amounted to HK$102.6
billion, up 16.5% from a year ago, while audited income for the year rose by
9.1% to HK$1.99 billion.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee and the Credit and Risk Management Committee
delegated by the Board oversee risk management and internal control of
the Group. The Board delegated committees are led by experienced and
independent directors. The Group strives to reinforce the risk management
infrastructure, tools and practices. The Risk Appetite Framework was further
enhanced and recalibrated to fine-tune the risk level scale, risk weights and
risk indicator composition. Furthermore, comprehensive Bank-wide stress
testing, capital management strategy and liquidity management initiatives
continue to be enhanced.

For credit risk management, the Group continued to adopt the best risk
management practices by focusing on conducting rigorous risk assessments
and credit approval, proactively managing and reviewing the loan portfolios,
formulating prudent investment strategies and strengthening capital and
liquidity management as befits the Group's risk appetite. Furthermore, the
Group has endeavored to optimize the customer mix. The business will
be focused on targeting low-risk and strategic key customers, including
cross-border collaboration customers, strategic customers referred by
the parent bank and CITIC Group, state-owned enterprises and central
government-owned enterprises. Meanwhile, in addition to the existing
credit assessment framework, the Group is committed to reinforcing and
strengthening the current risk assessment to intensify in-depth evaluation
and assessment of cash flow position, loan purpose and industry prospects
of the borrowers. The Group adopts a prudent provisioning policy and so
the year-end impairment was increased by HK$0.49 billion in 2015. On the
basis of the existing customer credit assessment, the Group will give serious
consideration to potential risk outlook in order to strengthen the resilience
to prepare against uncertainty and volatility in the future.

—E-LFR
Annual Report 2015
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The external environment becomes increasingly complex and volatile.
Foreign exchange and interest rate risks associated with the cross-border
business have been significantly increased. Market risk management
continues to play an important role. Clear risk limits have been set within a
robust management framework, whereby these limits are monitored daily,
stress tests are conducted periodically and close tracking is performed
whenever unusual events occur in the market. Further investigation
will be conducted in a timely manner, with appropriate measures to be
implemented.

As a compliance culture is the cornerstone for a bank to grow its profits
and expand its business, the Group promotes one that is customer-centric,
which creates value for customers and fosters win-win relationships
between customers and the Bank, and instills such culture in the minds and
body of staff.

Moreover, the Group attaches great importance to operational risk
management, as it fully understands that the prevention of operational
incidents is crucial to clients’own interests and CNCBI's reputation. Although
the number of incidents has remained at a low level during the year, the
Group will continue to boost its operational risk culture and strengthen
internal control practices.

Human Resources Development

Total headcount increased from 1,836 in 2014 to 1,920 in 2015 in order
to strengthen internal control functions and support the roll-out of “Rose
Garden” projects, which are bankwide IT infrastructure transformation
initiatives. Due to RMB depreciation and the dampened global economic
outlook, the Group experienced a challenging year in meeting financial
targets. Many front-line and support staff walked an extra mile to bring in
the results. Furthermore, the regulatory environment continued to tighten
and place huge demand on management and staff alike. Amidst external
challenges, the drive to upgrade the IT infrastructure and core systems of
CNCBI put much pressure on IT and user employees. It was a time where
staff stability, strong teamwork, and personal dedication became crucial to
the successful delivery of results.

Various staff retention and engagement initiatives, spanning from awarding
generous bonus to offering welfare and recreation programmes were
deployed to retain and motivate staff. The Group engaged Willis Towers
Watson to conduct a comprehensive review of the Total Remuneration
System, resulting in several enhancement recommendations which
subsequently were approved by the Remuneration Committee. Related
recommendations would be implemented in 2016.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

On people development, the Group continued to provide targeted and
structured workshops to enhance the overall competence and professional
standards of staff. During the year, the Effective People Manager Programme
was further enriched and leadership development workshops were
conducted. An average of 5 training days per staff was maintained.

Armed with a solid pool of capable and willing staff, the Group will be able
to weather the challenges in 2016.

Outlook

Looking ahead, the external environment in 2016 is expected to remain
challenging and the multiple headwinds prevailing last year are unlikely to
subside. The growth momentum of the global economy is expected to pick
up only modestly, with the US looking more robust in comparison to the
Eurozone and Japan amongst developed countries. However, the downside
risks to global growth should not be overlooked, given that a collapse in ol
prices and the turbulence in financial markets at the beginning of the year
have caused more uncertainties. Near-term global economic prospects
also hinge on how the monetary policy in the US will evolve following its
first interest-rate hike in December last year after a prolonged period of
quantitative easing.

Meanwhile, China's economy is expected to slow down further this year
and remain under pressure. Against this backdrop, the Chinese government
has to continue to perform delicate balancing acts between stabilizing
economic growth and implementing structural reforms, and between
providing monetary stimulus and precluding undue pressure on the
RMB exchange rate. While interest-rate and currency movements in the
foreseeable future may not be favourable for banking operations, the
Chinese government is managing a transition in the economy from being
heavily investment-led to being more driven by domestic consumption
of goods and services. This can create new business opportunities for the
financial sector ahead. We therefore remain cautiously optimistic about the
sector's prospects.

Admittedly the banking industry itself is undergoing major changes.
Volatility in the macroeconomic environment renders conventional banking
operations less profitable and calls for a more dynamic business model
which can accommodate the changing financial needs of corporations and
individuals alike. It is encouraging that the Group is committed to building
up new core competitive advantages, namely collaboration with CNCB in
cross-border businesses, innovation in products and services, enhancement
of risk management and embrace of modern information technology. These
core competitive advantages can form a firm foundation for the Group to
achieve a successful transformation and breakthrough in its business in the
face of a different operating environment.

—E-LFR
Annual Report 2015
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

First, as CNCB has assumed full ownership of the Group, more
comprehensive collaboration is in store. In addition to making customer
and business referrals, the Group and parent bank will join hands in other
areas, such as strengthening complementary client servicing, developing
cross-border products and services, strengthening risk management and
effecting compatibility of IT systems, with a view to achieving a win-win
for both sides. In tune with CNCB's strategic intent to become “the world’s
best integrated financial services provider’, the Group, by coordinating
the development of its overseas branch network, will amply fulfil its role
as parent bank'’s offshore platform, striving to become “the best overseas
integrated financial services provider” and contribute to CNCB's global
expansion.

Second, the Group has been promoting product innovation to cope
with changing circumstances. We aim to reduce reliance on traditional
commercial loans which demand aggressive build-up of assets and heavy
capital requirement. Instead, more focus will be given to the development
of structured financing products related to capital market activities. As the
Chinese government’s “Go Global”and “One Belt, One Road" initiatives have
encouraged Chinese corporations to expand abroad, the Group will take
advantage of this trend by offering effective financial solutions to facilitate
mainland companies' increasing involvement in mergers and acquisitions.
Meanwhile, we will continue to develop new treasury products that can
help both corporate and retail clients to manage and hedge against
interest-rate and currency fluctuations, and wealth management products
that can help clients to make progress in global asset allocation and enjoy
improved investment returns.

Enhancing risk management, together with fostering a compliance
culture, is yet another important aspect in bolstering the Group's core
competitiveness. In view of an increasingly hostile risk environment, we
have implemented more proactive risk management measures, putting
more effort into measuring, monitoring and assessing risks. With respect
to internal control, we emphasize a customer-centric approach to ensure
high-quality customer services, effective deployment of resources, full
compliance in operations and strong business continuity.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Furthermore, the Group will continue to invest in new technology. While
significant progress has been made in upgrading the IT infrastructure and
core banking system, more specialized systems and improvement works are
scheduled to come on stream this year. More importantly, we continue to
spearhead the development of mobile banking and e-channels in a bid to
boost customer experience and satisfaction, as well as enhancing service
quality and efficiency. We firmly believe that sustained research and pursuit
of new technology will become a decisive factor in the Group's survival and
development against intense competition. It is also the only way to gain a
unique competitive edge in cross-border financing business.

In conclusion, there are still more opportunities than challenges despite
an economic downturn. 2016 will undoubtedly be a year for the Group
to adjust its business model, revise its way of thinking on operations and
strengthen its core competitiveness. It is our strong belief that a solid
customer base of parent bank and a firm business foundation built over
the past several years can help the Group brave the future, forge ahead and
scale new heights.

—E-LFR
Annual Report 2015

019



020

2015% %1

NSNS E D

BALLT
HITHS - ATEEE
NEIREF LB

Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking

EENEERGEMSRES SNREL D
T RAIREBEEBEDBR2015FNEGEHE
ﬁ%om“wkiﬁzwiﬁk%m =
FEFREBEFGFHRANEMEIER - EF B
Mﬁz)\ibuw 6% REMEESRHEEREBEF
BUWAMER L WAZTENE HEEK
RoRAIKBREBBEHIBAREAATARE
¥ mBEAL ARBEZFPEREE
ﬁﬁﬂ&iiﬁ@m% ERARBESHEE
RHGENMBELR -

FEEEREANBRBB

REBRORGEXETOARARDLD
QLI EETEEYN S
BB 5 L R A
DTG - B2 RERERHIEET R
B [— 5 — 24 ) B BB A0 18 B2 P 0 3¢
[ERE] BEEREANBFES - ERH
FREFPEBHE ARREHEGHER
TESETEROTESHTNAERE - =
o {2 R AT R 5 BN B PP
WABHRERT - TRPBRREP R
59 B2 40 R AR 1) 25 3 T D4R 18 K 0B
#E -

FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2015 Review of Operations

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking
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Non-interest income and operating income grew by 37.6%
and 12.0% year-on-year respectively.

Both customer loans and customer deposits increased by
over 10% from a year ago.

Operating income of overseas branches soared over 40%
from 2014 while profit before tax more than doubled.

Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group (WBG) enjoyed sustained
growth in 2015 despite market headwinds and turmoil in the global
economy. Operating income grew by 12.0% to HKS$3.5 billion while both
customer loans and deposits registered double-digit growth. Non-interest
income showed a 37.6% increase, reflecting successful diversification
of income source besides traditional commercial lending. WBG worked
conscientiously to strengthen the Bank's leading position in RMB businesses,
with both customer loans and customer deposits up by more than 10%
year-on-year. There was also a material increase in cross-border RMB trade
settlement volume with the PRC.

Collaboration with CNCB/CITIC Group

Collaboration with our parent bank and the CITIC Group continued to be
at the core of WBG's strategy. The CITIC Group's vast business network,
together with CNCB's broad customer base and extensive branch network,
provided WBG with an unparalleled competitive edge in capturing
opportunities arising from the Chinese government’s “One Belt, One
Road" initiative and many mainland enterprises’ “Go Global” moves. At the
same time, WBG widened the scope of cooperation with several strategic
CNCB branches in product development and customer referral. Last year's
income derived from customers referred by CNCB and the CITIC Group
was maintained at the same level as a year ago while customer loans
and deposit balance posted substantial growth despite tough operating
conditions.
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2015 Review of Operations

Performance of Overseas Branches

Overseas branches delivered spectacular results last year, with operating
income soaring over 40% from 2014 while profit before tax more than
doubled. Both customer loans and deposits grew in excess of 20% with
asset quality remaining healthy. Overseas operations contributed more
than 16% to WBG income, representing an improvement of 4 percentage
points compared to 2014. This indicated the rising strategic significance of
overseas businesses and showcased the ability of WBG to apply its banking
expertise to servicing clients with international presence.

Structured Finance and Syndication

WBG continued to benefit from the synergy with CNCB and the CITIC Group
in penetrating the syndicated loan and structured finance markets in Hong
Kong and China, winning more mandates in the capacity as lead arranger.
The number of deals completed in 2015 exceeded that in the preceding
year by more than 50%, with the Bank playing the role of lead arranger in
43.2% of the syndication deals. As a result, syndicated loan fee income last
year increased by 16% year-on-year. Moreover, WBG's strategy of providing
comprehensive financing solutions to customers proved rewarding as
shown in a stable balance sheet and an expanded income stream.

Online Banking Business

WBG strived to provide customers with world-class online banking services.
Such efforts translated into new subscriptions and a higher level of online
activities, with the number of online banking customers increasing over
20% year-on-year while online payment transactions surged by 48.3% in
2015. WBG also aspired to create synergy with CNCB and the CITIC Group
by leveraging its digital channel capability, with ongoing initiatives such as
“bank-to-bank direct” and "bank-to-corporate direct” having successfully
secured companies within the CITIC Group as pilot customers.

—E-LFR
Annual Report 2015
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WBG Customer Loans Breakdown 2015

Balance Sheet and Risk Management

Prudent risk management remained the top priority of WBG. Operating
under challenging market conditions with likely deterioration of the
credit environment, WBG proactively formulated strategies to optimize its
portfolio. While in pursuit of balance sheet growth, WBG was mindful of the
need to maintain profitability without compromising asset quality.

2016 Outlook

2016 is likely to be another challenging year as the global economy remains
largely lacklustre. While some major economies should continue to recover
slowly on the back of conducive monetary policies, the growth momentum
of the US may be undermined by the Fed'’s tightening measures and a
further slowdown is expected for China. Reflecting on its success in the past,
WBG is actively reshaping its operating model to defend its competitive
position in a tough market. It strives to be one of the top corporate banks
by consistently offering innovative products and delivering quality all-
round banking solutions to clients in Hong Kong and broad. Capitalizing
on a closely knitted extensive network of the CITIC Group and CNCB, WBG
is well placed to capture promising opportunities arising from the Chinese
government's reform initiatives. Meanwhile, WBG adheres strictly to prudent
risk management, involving in businesses that are commensurate with
established risk appetite. Asset quality and credit profiles of customers will
continue to be monitored closely to ensure a healthy portfolio.
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Personal and Business Banking
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Operating income hit a record high of HK$1.99 billion, up
9.1%

Customer deposits grew to a new high of HK$102.6 billion,
up 16.5%

Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG”) has maintained its strong
momentum of development. By virtue of effective customer management
strategy, marketing promotions and product innovations, deposit and loan
businesses as well as operating income have shown steady growth. PBG
again achieved a respectable performance in 2015. Operating income of the
year reached a record high of HK$1.99 billion, representing a 9.1% growth
over 2014. Profit before taxation also set a new record of HK$771 million, up
8.7% year-on-year.

As at end-2015, customer deposits hit a new high of HK$102.6 billion, an
increase of 16.5% from a year earlier, making the customer deposit base of
China CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI") more solid and stable. As
uncertainty prevailed in the credit markets in Hong Kong and China, CNCBI
remained prudent in credit screening. Amid a slowdown in SME loans
and mortgage business, PBG has actively developed new growth engines,
such as launching insurance premium financing products. Thus, customer
loans expanded moderately by 4.5% to HK$40.8 billion. Given sustained
growth in customer deposits and loans, coupled with effective funding cost
management, net interest income rose by 15.3% year-on-year in 2015.

—E-HEFER
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In addition, despite unusual fluctuations in global capital markets in 2015,
wealth management business managed to post an encouraging income
growth. Meanwhile, although PBG's non-interest income last year fell by 1.5%
to HKS660 million, excluding a write-back on impairment losses in 2014,
non-interest income in 2015 actually rose by 7.5%. Total operating expenses
of the year increased by 9.8%, slightly slower than in 2014, reflecting
effective cost control. Loan impairment losses remained stable at HK$37.4
million in 2015, with net impairment ratio staying at a healthy level of 0.1%.

Expanding Customer Coverage

From time to time, PBG has developed innovative products and services
catering to the needs of high net worth customers. Notably, we introduced
the "Diamond Wealth Management Service” in late March last year, allowing
customers to enjoy overseas wealth management and global asset
allocation services. This represented a unified brand of China CITIC Bank and
CNCBI in personalized one-stop wealth management offering. This has also
marked an effective link-up of CNCBI's cross-border business with that of
parent bank. With methodical management of the customer base, average
assets under management for CITICfirst customers grew by 34% year-on-
yearin 2015.
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Continuous Development of Innovative Products

PBG keeps offering innovative products to attract customers. To boost
deposit growth and improve the stability of the deposit base, early last year
we created a new savings account called “My Dear Account” for children,
offering a host of novel wealth management services for children and
exclusive privileges for their parents. As a result, our clients could gain
more parent-child wealth management experiences while the account
could develop children’s interest in wealth management and broaden their
knowledge of it. Meanwhile, a new loan facility, “Easy Loan”, was launched in
the middle of the year, providing our target customers with greater flexibility
in personal financial liquidity. At the same time, PBG continued to refine its
insurance premium financing products and grew the number of customers.
Moreover, in response to the Mainland-Hong Kong Mutual Recognition of
Funds introduced late last year, PBG has actively communicated with new
fund management companies for potential cooperation and prepared
for the implementation of “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Connect”, increasing
the choices of investment funds available to our customers as well as the
business opportunities for the Bank.

e-Banking Innovations

While a number of “inMotion Banking” initiatives such as “WeChat in
Motion”, “CITICmobile” and “CITICwallet” were launched in 2014, PBG
achieved further breakthrough in the applications of financial technology
in 2015. CNCBI was the first bank in Hong Kong to team up with Tencent
to sell travel insurance through WeChat Pay, which has helped gain
recognition from the industry and tap new sources of customers. Moreover,
CNCBI was also the pioneer in the industry in Hong Kong to provide the
“Touch Balance” service, making it more convenient for its customers to log
in Mobile Banking. These two innovations have greatly enhanced customer
experience and strengthened the leading position of CNCBI in the e-banking
market.

“Z-RER
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Continuous Growth in Private Banking

A spate of professionals in the finance industry in Hong Kong and China
were invited to the “Greater China Investors Forum 2015" held in mid-May
last year. The forum has successfully increased the popularity of CNCBI's
cross-border wealth management services. Operating income of private
banking saw a new high, surging by 64.8% year-on-year, while customer
assets under management as at end-2015 jumped by 60.9% compared with
a year earlier.

Maintaining Asset Quality

PBG has adhered firmly to rigorous credit risk management so that asset
quality remained good and there was a reduction in impairment ratio. Last
year, loan impairment losses eased to HK$37.4 million, with net impairment
ratio staying at a low level of 0.1%. Moreover, residential mortgage
delinquency ratio stayed below the industry average as gauged by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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Market Recognition

CNCBI has made sustained efforts to create new RMB-related deposit and
investment products, such as introducing RMB equity-linked products
ahead of its peers in Hong Kong. These products were well received by
customers. Together with breakthroughs made in mobile banking, such
product innovations have earned the Bank several rewards. In the “2015
RMB Business Outstanding Awards” organized by Metro Finance and Wen
Wei Po, CNCBI won the “Outstanding Private Banking Diversified Business
Award”. It also received from Metro Daily both the "Metro Awards for
Banking & Finance Corporations 2015 — The Best Renminbi Investment
Services Award” and “The Best Mobile Banking Services Award”. Moreover,
the Bank also gained the "Hong Kong Economic Times e-brand Awards
2015 — The Best of Social Platform Banking Service”.

2016 Outlook

Growth of the global economy is expected to remain uninspiring in 2016,
with the challenges facing major economies likely to be tougher than
in 2015. However, as the US is recovering only moderately, the Fed will
probably maintain a cautious stance and raise interest rates at a measured
pace. Meanwhile, the Chinese government is poised to adopt various
fiscal and monetary policies to stimulate the economy, boosting domestic
demand and the service sector to become fresh impetus for steady growth.
A weaker RMB against the US dollar can also to a certain extent benefit
those mainland enterprises that are reliant on exports. Moreover, China’s
“One Belt, One Road” initiative should spur its investment and trade flows
with several emerging economies. In the Eurozone, the ECB will continue
to implement stimulus measures including quantitative easing, which may
help build up growth momentum. Together with lower energy costs, these
measures are expected to bolster the European economy.

The prospects for the Hong Kong economy have always hinged on the
external environment. We believe it will again show moderate growth in
2016, with domestic consumption and inflation remaining largely stable.
PBG will continue to focus on high-end and cross-border customers and
be committed to striking an optimal balance between assets and liabilities
while strengthening the sources of non-interest income. We will deepen
the cooperation with parent bank to expand the customer base, aiming
to help our clients allocate their assets effectively. In the meantime, cost
control is emphasized, as business processes are streamlined to ensure
better operational efficiency and profitability. Moreover, we will continue to
invest in financial technology which, coupled with an upgrade of the Bank’s
IT system, can help develop innovative web-based products and services,
with a view to providing our customers with more personal and secure
banking experiences.

—E-LFR
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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Student participants of the “CNCBI Knowledge Angel
Academy” completed a 3-year programme with outstanding
results

Fun and free “5-minute Shower Challenge” mobile app
encouraged lower water consumption and carbon footprint

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) have been eager to uphold the spirit of good
corporate citizenship. While considerable effort has gone into conducting
banking business and serving customers, the Group has also been keen
to give back to Hong Kong society, fulfilling its social responsibility with
enthusiasm as a means of creating value for society. In 2015, the Group
continued to drive its corporate social responsibility (“CSR") initiatives in
two main areas, namely supporting underprivileged students’ needs for
education and promoting environmental protection. The Group was again
awarded the “10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service in acknowledgement of its contribution.

Enhancing Underprivileged Students’ Academic Potential

Convinced that today’s education shapes tomorrow’s society, CNCBI cares
deeply about the education needs of children from underprivileged families.
In 2008, the Group collaborated with St. James’ Settlement to undertake
the "CITIC Bank International Knowledge Angel Project”, which received
grants from the Social Welfare Department’s “Partnership Fund for the
Disadvantaged”. The project provided participants with free tutorials and
up to 2011, more than 700 students from disadvantaged backgrounds were
benefited. In view of the outstanding achievement and continuous demand
from the concerned group, the project was expanded in 2012 to become
the "CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy”, providing 600 local and ethnic
minority students from underprivileged families with 3 years of free tutorials
and English lessons.
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In 2015, the Academy’s 3-year programme came to an end, with more
than half of the student participants showing improvement in the major
academic subjects of Chinese language, English language and Mathematics.
More than 20% of the Primary 6 participants secured sought-after places
at English-medium-instruction secondary schools. Encouragingly, this
percentage was higher than the competition rate of such school places in
Hong Kong.

In addition to tutorials and English lessons, the participants were also given
the opportunities to take part in a series of eye-opening extra-curricular
activities which directed them to seek whole-person development. These
have included an “ecotour 330" at New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation
Association’s social enterprise New Life Interactive Farm where the
participants joined various environmental protection activities such as
an organic farm tour, recycled paper production and organic herb bread
making. The visit enhanced the participants’ environmental awareness while
providing them a chance to meet people from different social sectors.

Meanwhile, around 60 student participants who had shown excellent
academic performance or achieved remarkable improvement in their
studies attended a sharing session in May 2015. Led by CNCBI's volunteers,
they shared their learning experience over the past 3 years through games
and group activities. Book coupons of a total value of more than HK$50,000
were presented to them as a token of encouragement.

Since 2008, CNCBI has invested about HKS$10 million in the aforementioned
education project with a view to enhancing the learning ability of students
from underprivileged families and increasing their opportunities for upward
social mobility, which may help alleviate intergenerational poverty and
narrow the wealth gap in the long run.

Regarding caring for the elderly, the Group has run a scarf-knitting
campaign for 10 consecutive years, with overwhelming support from its
staff throughout the years. In 2015, more than 50 staff members knitted
some 240 scarves, which were given to the senior citizens at the Caritas
Cheng Shing Fung District Elderly Centre (Sham Shui Po) so that they could
feel warm and cared for.

Aside from this, CNCBI continued to make donations in support of The
Community Chest of Hong Kong and received a Corporate and Employee
Contribution Programme Bronze Award from the organisation.

“E-HFRH
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Promoting Harmony with Nature

Climate change is a challenge faced by the whole world. It is also a key
concern of the Group for environmental protection. In this regard, the
Green Committee, which was constituted of representatives from various
departments, supported the launch of several activities in 2015 in a move
to promote green living, enabling CNCBI staff and the general public
to recognise and be more aware of the importance of reducing carbon
emission.

For 4 years running, CNCBI had offered full support to Hong Kong's first
large-scale water-saving and low-carbon campaign “5-minute Shower
Challenge” organised by environmental group Green Power. The campaign
called on Hong Kong citizens to complete their shower within 5 minutes so
as to save water and cut carbon emissions.

A free “5-minute Shower Challenge” mobile app was released in 2015
featuring a timer that can sense the sound of running water. The timer,
which was the first of its kind in Hong Kong, allows users to limit their
shower time to 5 minutes. Hong Kong singer-songwriter Ms. lvana Wong
continued to serve as the campaign ambassador and the theme song she
wrote and performed, Shower Song, was played across media platforms and
CNCBI branches to help promote the campaign and encourage members
of the general public to download the "5-minute Shower Challenge” mobile

app.
2015 key achievements of the “5-minute Shower Challenge”:
Academia

e (lose to 50,000 primary students completed a 21-day period of “5-minute
Shower Challenge”, while more than 6,500 tertiary students pledged to
take 5-minute showers

e Inter-school activities achieved more than 102,000 kg of carbon dioxide
reduction, equivalent to the annual quantity absorbed by more than
8,500 trees, up about 10% year-on-year

Public
e 32 CNCBI branches distributed more than 7,700 pairs of shower gloves

to encourage the public to download the “5-minute Shower Challenge”
mobile app and practise 5-minute shower
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Staff

e More than 400 staff members downloaded the “5-minute Shower
Challenge” mobile app to take part in water-saving and carbon dioxide
reduction

With the participation of a total of more than 170,000 students and citizens
since the "5-minute Shower Challenge” launch, the result was encouraging.

To promote environmental protection internally, the Green Committee
continued to launch the "CNCBI Green Month” with key activities including:

e Wear Green — On Green Month’s launch day, management wore
green clothing and accessories to show their support, and handed
out fresh guavas to staff members who were also dressed in green
with the greenest one selected from each department and awarded a
watermelon as a fun way of promoting low-carbon diets

e Fat Green — More than 230 staff members attended a lunch talk where
they enjoyed a vegetarian meal and listened to the sharing by social
enterprise and advocate of environmental vegetarian diets Green
Monday

e Use Green — CNCBI volunteers guided 30 primary students to transform
discarded vinyl banners into delicate card holders in an “Upcycling
Workshop” jointly organised with The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association
of Hong Kong

e Experience Green — More than 50 staff members and their children
joined a parent-child “Water Challenge Day” hosted by Crossroads
Foundation in Tuen Mun to experience living with drinking water
shortage and learn about clean water crisis

e Share Green — 10 boxes of clothing donated by staff members were
delivered to The Salvation Army and St. James’ Settlement'’s social
enterprise fashion consignment store Green Ladies

In addition, the Group for the 6th consecutive year supported
environmental group Green Power's “Green Power Hike", sponsoring more
than 30 staff members to form 9 corporate teams for the 10km and 25km
hikes in an effort to support local environmental education.

“E-HFRH
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Outlook

Looking ahead, the Group is planning to focus its resources so as
to strengthen its efforts for improving education for children from
disadvantaged backgrounds. Building on the success of the "CNCBI
Knowledge Angel Academy”, the Group looks to revolutionise the
traditional tutorial model with the introduction of an e-learning platform
that is more efficient in terms of learning and resources, with an aim to
increase the participating students’ interest and performance while closing
their learning gaps with a fun and people-oriented learning approach that is
also expected to benefit more students.

In 2016, the Group will establish a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee comprising representatives from different departments to
step up governance and promotion of various CSR projects with a view to
creating value for the Group's customers, staff and business as well as for
the environment and society at large.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Sun Deshun

(Chairman)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013 and further elected
Chairman on 15 May 2015. Mr. Sun is an Executive Director and First
Executive Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Mr. Sun
has more than 30 years of experience in the banking industry in China.
Before joining China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2011, he has served
in Bank of Communications as Vice President of its Beijing Management
Department and President of the Beijing Branch. Prior to that, he had
worked in the Haidian Office, Haidian Sub-branch, Beijing Branch and Head
Office Data Centre (Beijing) of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
in various positions including Assistant President and Vice President of its
Beijing Branch and General Manager of the Head Office Data Centre (Beijing).
He had also worked in The People’s Bank of China. Mr. Sun graduated from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics with a Master's Degree in
Economics. He was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22
October 2012. Mr. Zhang is also a Non-executive Director of China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited and Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited. A veteran banker with 31 years of experience in the
banking industries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang had
held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and Bank of
Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong Branch of
Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong Branch of China
Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was an Executive
Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of Wing
Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree in Monetary and Banking
from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China. He was appointed
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers in August 2013.

Ms. Margaret Man

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Wholesale
& Cross-border Banking)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 28
June 2012. Ms. Man is also Group Head of Wholesale and Cross-border
Banking of the Bank, and Vice Chairman of CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited. Ms. Man has over 30 years of experience in the banking and finance
industry. She had held a number of senior positions including Division
Chief of The People’s Bank of China and Deputy Managing Director of
China Venturetechno International Co Ltd. Ms. Man graduated from Shanxi
Financial and Economics University with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics
and further studied for a Master's Degree in Banking and Finance at the
Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China.
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Biographies of Directors

Mrs. Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Personal
& Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
on 15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business
Banking of the Bank. She has 29 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. Over the years, Mrs. Kan had held various senior positions
across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and other global markets. These have included the
personal and consumer banking sectors. Prior to joining the Bank, she was
Standard Chartered Bank’s Global Head of Distribution in charge of the
strategic development and performance of distribution channels across 33
geographic locations covering a global customer population in excess of 14
million. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours Degree in Management and Economics,
and a Master's Degree in Law from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fang Heying

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 24 March 2016. Mr. Fang is an Executive
Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in charge of finance.
He is also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited and a Director of CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited. Mr. Fang
joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 1996 and was formerly the
President of Suzhou Branch, President of Hangzhou Branch and Business
Director of Financial Markets. He served as an Executive Vice President
of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited since November 2014. Mr. Fang
graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's
Degree in Finance and obtained an Executive Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Peking University.

Mr. Zhang Qiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 April 2013. Mr. Zhang is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. He joined China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited in 1990 and has held various senior positions.
Mr. Zhang has over 27 years of experience in China’s banking industry.
He graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics with
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained a Master’s Degree in
Finance from Liaoning University. Mr. Zhang was granted the title of “Senior
Economist” by CITIC Group Corporation.

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Credit
& Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 20 October 2003. Mr. Gil-
Tienda is Chairman of the Asia Pacific region and a member of the Senior
Advisory Board of Oliver Wyman. He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Mr. Gil-Tienda was formerly with Standard
Chartered Bank and Citibank and has over 27 years of banking experience.
He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from
the University of Oxford and a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California, Berkeley.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Tang Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 13
November 2013. Mr. Tang is Chairman of Hodojou Technology Co., Ltd.,
executive director of Beijing Sinosoft Co., Ltd, and independent director of
Geo Jade Petroleum Corporation and Hunan TV & Broadcast Intermediary
Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience in finance and securities industries.
Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a
Bachelor's Degree in Finance. He received his Master's Degree in Economics
and Doctor’s Degree in Economics respectively from the Graduate School of
The People’s Bank of China and the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The
People’s Construction Bank of China in 1993.

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September 2004. Mr. Tsang is also an
Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and two listed companies
in Hong Kong, namely Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited and
L. K. Technology Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more
than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from
the firm on 31 March 2003. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Higher Diploma in
Accounting. Mr. Tsang is a professional accountant and a Fellow Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.

Mr. Wu Jiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013. Mr. Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited, China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
and The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, and
non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate
management, investment and finance. He holds a Doctor's Degree in
Economics from The Research Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr.
Wu conducted post-doctorate research work in theoretical economics at
Nankai University and was conferred a professorship qualification by Nankai
University in 2001.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal
Control)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is currently an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal Control of
the Bank, as well as Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited, with his scope of responsibility encompassing the
management of legal and internal control affairs. Mr. Huang has more than
34 years of legal and regulatory experience in Hong Kong and the US. Before
joining the Bank, Mr. Huang was partner-in-charge of legal affairs Asia-
Pacific at Andersen Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from the University of
California, Berkeley, with an Artium Baccalaureus in History and Georgetown
University Law School with a Juris Doctor Degree.

Mr. Bai Lijun

(Acting Treasurer)

Joined the Bank in December 2015 as Acting Treasurer responsible for the
Bank’s Treasury & Markets Group with a view to strengthen funding and
liquidity management, in addition to a focus on driving CNCB- and CITIC
group-related collaboration for enhanced business development for the
Bank. Mr. Bai has more than 10 years of experience in Mainland China’s
banking industry. He joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited from Bank
of Beijing in 2006 and advanced his banking career in financial markets. In
2009, he took up an additional role in corporate governance and projects
at the Chairman Office of CITIC Group, assisting the Group’s Chairman with
business affairs. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Bai was CNCB's Deputy General
Manager of the Office of the Board of Directors and Supervisors. Mr. Bai
holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the School of Economics at
Nankai University in Tianjin, and a Master of Finance Degree from the School
of Finance at Renmin University of China in Beijing.

Mr. Elton Tam

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Tam also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam has more than 26 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr.
Tam was General Manager and Group Financial Controller of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited. Before that, he had held various senior finance positions at
Standard Chartered Bank Group across different business areas such as
consumer banking, treasury and wholesale banking in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Taiwan. Mr. Tam graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree, the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Master of Science Degree in Finance, the City University of
Hong Kong with a Doctor of Business Administration Degree and Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics with a Doctorate Degree in Economics.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales. He is also
a qualified member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of China, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Certified General Accountants Association of Canada.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Michael Leung

(Chief Information and Operations Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2013 as Chief Information and Operations
Officer responsible for managing the Bank's information technology and
operations. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in technology and
operations management from various local and international organisations
including Bank of America (Asia), Standard Chartered Bank, Dao Heng Bank,
IBM, Price Waterhouse, and Philips Telecommunication and Data Systems.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Leung was Deputy Chief Executive and Chief
Information Officer of China Construction Bank (Asia). Mr. Leung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronics from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Postgraduate Diploma from the Graduate School of Retail Bank
Management at the University of Virginia in the US, and a Master's Degree in
Engineering from Netherlands Universities Foundation.

Mr. Jose Maria Abollado

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in September 2013 as Chief Risk Officer responsible for
monitoring and managing all key risks. Mr. Abollado has more than 24 years
of banking experience. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Head of Eurasia,
Specialised Lending, at the Central Credit Unit of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA”") in Madrid. Over the years, he had held various senior
positions including Global Head of Structured Finance and Senior Analyst
(Industry Coverage) at BBVA. He had also been Area Manager — Real Estate
Finance Unit at Banco del Comercio in Spain. Mr. Abollado graduated from
Universidad Autdbnoma, Madrid, with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics.

Mr. John Lee

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now Chief
Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human Resources of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He started his banking career
at Standard Chartered Bank in an information technology function and
served for 20 years in various management positions in several business
and support functions, including consumer banking, human resources,
and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank, Mr.
Lee headed the people development function in The Mass Transit Railway
Corporation Limited (now known as MTR Corporation Limited). Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Carleton University, Ottawa,
Canada, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma
City University, Oklahoma, US.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Rita Man

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2005 as Senior Counsel. Ms. Man is currently
the Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer and is responsible for managing the
overall compliance function in the Bank. Ms. Man has more than 30 years of
experience in the legal, compliance and banking areas. Ms. Man started her
career as a management trainee in a leading bank in Hong Kong and gained
comprehensive banking experience in a span of 10 years. Ms. Man spent
the following 10 years as a lawyer in private practice, offering professional
legal service in banking, financing and litigation to various banks in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Ms. Man holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws from Peking University. She was admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong.

Ms. Zoe Lau

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head of Wealth
Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently Director of CEO
Office of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating various corporate
initiatives and activities for the Chief Executive Officer, as well as overseeing
the Bank’s brand management, corporate communications and investor
relations. Ms. Lau has over 20 years of experience in the areas of cards,
payment services, wealth management and strategic planning with major
multinational banks in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau had also worked extensively in
the advertising and marketing industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before
joining the Bank, Ms. Lau was Head of Marketing, Greater China, American
Express Hong Kong. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. David Yau

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in November 2014 as Chief Auditor of the Bank. Mr. Yau has
more than 20 years of experience in the finance industry. Before joining the
Bank, he was a Partner and China National Financial Services Risk Solutions
Leader for Enterprise Risk Service of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He had
held senior management positions with Fortis Group, ABN AMRO Group,
Deutsche Bank Group, Normura International (Hong Kong) Limited and
Bankers Trust Company Hong Kong. Mr. Yau is a Fellow Member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia. He graduated from the University of Manchester with a Bachelor's
Degree in Economics.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman
Mr. Sun Deshun

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Heying
Mr. Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Tang Shisheng

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Fang Heying

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Registered Office

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.cncbinternational.com

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal place of business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the "Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank has branches outside
Hong Kong and operating in Macau, the Cayman Islands, Singapore, New
York and Los Angeles.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, and the state
of the Bank’s and the Group's affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 46 to 179.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Share issued in the year

The Bank did not issue any shares during the year. Details of the share of the
Bank during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Directors

(a) Directors of the Bank

As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Mr. SUN Deshun (elected on 15 May 2015)

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Margaret MAN (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CAO Guogiang
Mr. ZHANG Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael GIL-TIENDA

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. WU lJiesi

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all present
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at the next Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report,
there are movement in the Directors of the Bank as follows:

Mr. CHEN Xiaoxian (resigned as the Director and Chairman on 15 May 2015
due to age)

Mr. JU Weimin (resigned as the Non-executive Director on 22 May 2015 due
to other business commitments)

Mr. Jaime Pablo AZCOITI LEYVA (resigned as the Non-executive Director on
27 August 2015 when the sale and purchase of the entire 29.68% equity
interests in the holding company, CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, held by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. to China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited was closed)

Mr. Gonzalo TORANO (resigned as the Non-executive Director on 27 August
2015 when the sale and purchase of the entire 29.68% equity interests in
the holding company, CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, held
by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. to China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited was closed)
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Ms. YIN Fenglan (resigned as the Independent Non-executive Director on 13
October 2015 due to personal reason)

All these resigned Directors of the Bank have no disagreement with the
Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Bank.

(b) Directors of the Bank'’s subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report,
Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen, Ms. Margaret MAN and Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei,
who are the Directors of the Bank, are also directors in certain subsidiaries of
the Bank while Mr. CHEN Xiaoxian, the former Director and Chairman of the
Bank, was also ex-director in certain subsidiaries of the Bank.

Other directors of the Bank's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
of this report include Ms. CHAN Sze Oi Rebecca, Mr. GAO Zongze, Mr. Roy
HUANG, Mr. KAN Ying Tim, Mr. KWAN Kin Fai David, Mr. LEE Sik Sang John,
Mr. LEUNG Kin Man Michael, Mr. TAM Yat Kung Elton, Mr. TSE Kwok Chun
Jim and Mr. WONG Man Kin Jack while the other ex-director includes Mr.
WONG Ho Sing Steve.

Directors’ interests

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Bank and the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At no time during the year or at the end of the year was the Bank, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
in force.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have
complied with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the Bank upon expiration
of its current term of office at the close of the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board,
ZHANG Xiaowei
Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
China CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank
International Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 46 to
179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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HZE2015F12 A31HIFEZ (LABEE A EE6T)

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
P 5T BET T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FLE A Interest income 4(a) 6,568,868 7,414,726
FEXH Interest expense 4(b) (3,148,559) (3,258,058)
B E WA Net interest income 3,420,309 4,156,668
EHNMAsRA Fee and commission income 1,124,194 1,005,511
ERMAESH Fee and commission expense (55,779) (34,219)
FERARBEESRA Net fee and commission income 5 1,068,415 971,292
FR SN Net trading income 6 1,231,547 769,804
EEABBEFRARBMAALMEME  Netgain from financial instruments designated at
& BT B F s fair value through profit or loss - 1,073
SEER U S (E58) Net hedging gain/(loss) 999 (2,584)
S A (BB A F R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 59,715 14,879
H g A Other operating income 10 50,028 94,795
"W A Operating income 5,831,013 6,005,927
KEHH Operating expenses 11 (2,564,206) (2,453,169)
BRI B ZE 5 A Y AR R R Operating profit before impairment 3,266,807 3,552,758
BRI R EAARIR Impairment losses on loans and advances and
EEE other accounts 13 (667,677) (180,857)
REER Operating profit 2,599,130 3,371,901
HEYE N EREFEE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment (730) (334)
"EYHEBHWE Revaluation gain on investment properties 23(a) 3,046 2,842
AR Profit before taxation 2,601,446 3,374,409
FT15%% Income tax 14 (433,239) (573,264)
KREERF Profit for the year 2,168,207 2,801,145
BERTITRRNER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 2,168,207 2,801,145

FE51 BT FE 79BN B AR AR -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 51 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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HZE2015F12 A31HIEFEZ (LABEE B 8T)

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
P EE BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZRF Profit for the year 2,168,207 2,801,145
AEEHMEEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 15
HETEEFIEZRER Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
BMEEINEBTFRARE Exchange differences on translation of
BTSSR R AIIE H =58 financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (98,176) (43,347)
A ERES Available-for-sale securities
— RABEMNED - change in fair value (58,804) 127,443
— HERREKZR — transfer from income statement on disposal (58,110) (14,613)
— xR (KA )ELERIE — transfer to/(from) deferred tax 18,306 (21,094)
AFEEHMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year (196,784) 48,389
AEEEZHEIKFHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,971,423 2,849,534
BERAITRERNERS Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 1,971,423 2,849,534
F51HHFE179B M B AR B ERER —2) - The notes on pages 51 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
—E-RFR
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2015512 A31 B (LA HE B8 AT)

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
B BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets
We MIERIT - PRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Hih & @ EmaT other financial institutions 17 20,322,734 20,676,200
TEIRIT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hih & BB mEaR R central banks and other financial institutions 18 30,390,640 43,893,840
RHBRBREE Trading assets 19 4,277,539 3,291,332
ZEERRBAT N EMARTE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 20 173,479,925 153,872,296
At E FE A Available-for-sale securities 21 53,151,487 26,513,380
%%& g Property and equipment 23

RE ) E — Investment properties 185,944 182,898

*ﬁ{‘@%%&%&ﬁ — Other property and equipment 657,273 676,035
AT O 518 Tax recoverable 28(a) 33,114 2,775
FIERIAE E Deferred tax assets 28(b) 36,312 32,115
EEARE Total Assets 282,534,968 249,140,871
EzRkEE Equity and Liabilities
IRITRE S BEEN Deposits and balances of banks and

TR other financial institutions 24 2,658,301 4,129,401
E}E T Deposits from customers 25 220,683,709 188,929,559

XSRS aE Trading liabilities 26 3,555,614 2,974,807
BEITIF R Certificates of deposit issued 27 10,388,272 14,156,976
7R EAFH T8 Current taxation 28(a) 61,910 162,951
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 28(b) 1,717 4,327
Hthad Other liabilities 29 12,365,023 7,777,093
BEEEAN Loan capital 30 8,766,217 8,754,408
EEHE Total Liabilities 258,480,763 226,889,522
= Equity
iz Share capital 31(a) 7,566,271 7,566,271
EaE] Reserves 14,177,766 12,374,910
BERATRROERELE Total equity attributable to equity

shareholders of the Bank 21,744,037 19,941,181
HEIMERTE Additional equity instruments 32 2,310,168 2,310,168
R Total Equity 24,054,205 22,251,349
EEkEERAE Total Equity and Liabilities 282,534,968 249,140,871

EEER20165F3A21 AT IREREM -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016.

BA
Margaret MAN
HITEEFRETTHARE

Executive Director and

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

FE51BEE

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

179 B BT LB AN B T ek — BB 1p

HRUE

KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen
HITEFRETTHARH
Executive Director and
Alternate Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 51 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

HZE2015F 12 A31HIEFEABE BER) For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B
BHIE
EXZE  WEER  REE EE-& Additional
i i i iRER i equity
Bk BBRE  EABE  -BEE  Dchnge  Property  Investment DR Requltoy  BEER  BEEE  instuments
Share Shate  Capital  General  differences revaluation  revaluation  Statutory  general Retained Tl (Ki3))  E&4E
apital  premium  reseve  reserve  resetve resee  fesee  fesewe  resene profits  reserves  [note32)  Totalequity
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R15E151A At1January 2015 7,566,271 - 6,589 100,000 97,554 55 86,890 55,839 149500 11878483 12374910 2310168 22,251,349
BRsENERSD Changes in equity for 2015:
RERET Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - - 168207 2,168,207 - 168207
KEREMRANE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - (98,176) - (98,608) - - - (196,784) - (196,784)
FERRThALE Total comprehensie income
for the year - - - - (98,176) - (98,608) - - 168200 1911423 - 194
FOE Distbution payment for
BrEsZe ATI Capital Securiies - - - - - - - - - (168567 (168567)
E =l Tranderflom retained profs - - - - - - - EAL - (men)  (68sen 168567 -
015128318 At 31 December 2015 1,566,211 - 6,589 100,000 (622) 55 (11,718) 58,943 149500 13875019 14177766 2310168 24,054,205
ROMUEIA1E Atl January 2014 7283341 282930 6,589 100,000 140901 95 (4846) 38349 149500 917919 9892676 - 16017
HEENERRY: Changes in equiy for 2014
1 £ MJ Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - S 2 -
ERER2ENE Othercomprehensive income
for the year - - - - (B34 - 91,736 - - - 48389 - 48389
REFRANGEE Total comprehensive ncome
for the year - - - - B34 - 91,736 - - 280,145 2849534 - 2849534
EREN-DE1E5 lsue of Additonal Ter 1
Capital Securites (‘AT Capital Securiies) - - - - - - - - - - - 2310,168 2310168
TRAB-RERRAEES Distbution payment for
AT Capltal Securiies - - - - - - - - - - - 84370) 84370)
BNI4ESIREZEAERE  Trondtion o no-parvalue egime
on 3 March 2014 282930 (282%0) - - - - - - - (282930) - -
BERDEA Transter from retaned piofs - - - - - - - 17490 S 11 5 #3n -
R04ENA3IB At31 December 2014 7566271 - 6,589 100,000 97554 55 86,890 95839 149500 11878483 12374910 2310068 22291349
F51HHFE179B M B AR B ERER —2) - The notes on pages 51 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
—E-IFR
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HZE2015F12 A31HIFEZ (LABEE A EE6T)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
P EE BET T BT
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(AR RECEELYN Net cash flow (used in)/generated from
BEFEE operating activities 34(a) (10,065,266) 17,280,122
REXEK Cash flow used in investing activities
BlERESFRE Dividends received from equity securities 6,294 5,699
AN Purchase of property and equipment (118,486) (90,400)
HE YRR FTS IR Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 63 123
ARBREERNRESFEE Net cash used in investing activities (112,129) (84,578)
i Cash flow (used in)/from financing activities
ﬁ%ﬁﬁl\*ﬁ&é$ﬁ%}ﬁﬁ?§f§£ Proceeds from Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities issued - 2,310,168
S TEEIN— B E AR E S Distribution paid on Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (168,567) (84,370)
TRHEBE AT E Interest paid on loan capital (496,115) (496,376)
(AR /REMEXKENWIELFE  Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (664,682) 1,729,422
RERBEZECED) ENFE  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,842,077) 18,924,966
M B1BNBREREESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 62,537,493 43,612,527
R12A31EBENEERIALZMEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 34(b) 51,695,416 62,537,493

FE51 BT FE 79BN B AR AR -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 51 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 General information

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the

Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-65 Des

Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

2 Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been continuously applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"), Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

financial statements.

—E-RFRH
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RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)
(ii)); and

— investment property (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires that management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 43.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

()

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as

follows:

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in
the present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, together
with interest income and expense and dividend income
attributable to those financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period in
which the cost or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest
income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for the
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
the entity are allocated for as if the group had directly disposed of
related assets or liabilities. This way means that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).

—E-RFRH
Annual Report 2015

055



056

B TSR MY

2

(e)

FTEEHBE ()

$RIA

(i)

(ii)

B KR
AEEEERAERERTAR 2%
REBEAZEXELBENENMES
BITASRTEER - 7R - BB
BamARBRAREE  ERREEE
B AHHEESFREMERARE -

ERMIALEARAEBEE  BEH
RHEHER - IREBEEXTRA
EABREBEEARRALER"
EEMLERGBERNBACREES
HTERBENR AR - @iBER
URRAABENEHEEREREA
BH R ZUARG LN SH o

AEBEERRERITASHNED—
HERAERTREEREHMEE - A
ERBTABEBBBREARRAA
BENEREERABRIZ B SR
ETNER - HiteBEERBER
REHSFETAER - BBERMN
RBRAABENEHREEXSRARG
MAanBEZESELNENRERZ
HERCER ©

oyl

BEBEUARRAAEE
ZHFIBERBIEXZAENEREE
LEBAE  KEREERREE
ABBREARRA A BENTSHE
ENRTBEE ETRELAETSR
BRETERAISEFEQAABENRAL
BERE -

REMEMIEAR/IENRZAE
MBAXBENECREEXRESRE
B B TAHEAN—#
- YARBBEBTZEEROBAAE
HIEMHER - TEERRBEHE
& (feE29) MOTAETARIGFAR
ZREIA -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which
will normally be equal to the transaction price plus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue
of the financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting (note 2(q)) are accounted for as trading instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

—  the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract; or

—  the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends
to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates as being at fair value through profit or
loss or as available-for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group
may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other
than because of credit deterioration, which are classified as
available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans
and advances to customers and placements with and advances
to banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(1)).

—E-EEH
Annual Report 2015

057



058

B TSR MY

2

(e)

FESFBE (&)

£@TA (&)

(i) (&)
A EE
Tﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%&%%i%ﬂf#ﬁ%mﬁ
B 57 ot — (& R — EE B e IE

mi&ﬂﬁ%'@%%aﬁxiﬁﬁ
BENSREE  BURERADE
SERATHBARDTHE -

AHEERSFRRAAEBEIRK K
BT E SR E LR B TSI B R
1885 18 Ko HME 2 /85 78 1 W ot 2k FE R
S ARARBEESMELZ AER
Yz \&Eﬁ%@ﬁé,\{’@iﬁﬂﬁzﬁéﬁ%?ﬁ%’
WHEESEADFRE

BmBEHFREN LB EETISNR
B MEAAEBEBELTENETE
By BBENTETREABSBRM
ZEREAFMAE ZEERIFR
BIREAREREEE (0E) (28
MiEE2()) 1258k

HMHENHEERS  HEWRELE
BEEFHEMSIRERAERE
BZERE AR BEERREMEEK
@mZ R AR BEARARERERN
DRMBARER °

HitemaE

HRIAZABRZEEERBBE
mARRAARBENEREBEN &
BRAEERAERN R AIZEHKA

ATE e

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories above. They include financial
assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity securities, are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.



B TSR MY

2

(e)

FEEHBE ()

SRIA (&)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

LA EEFTERA

TRTANQIABEENGEARE
H 5 E BRI KRG LS
AR - SREENEREAEE
B MmepBEANEREHEFEE -

AR B A AR B - SARBER R
AREFXDAESTSREIML
R/ RHEESBRIEBBZSME
ENERTAER  KWEHHIRT
AR At TEM AR BEAGER
AEE MEGEEEXARETSE
R PR A SERERTHERS o

ERARSREFNREREN - A5T
KRR REBREE BN RKEM R
RAMTREREGE BERANET
TRGRRGHOTISHERGE - &
RAEMEERRN - B AHEBRKE
EERNTISERER -

# I ERR
ENTMEEECSRSRNENS LR
MiEim XECREEEZRBEAREDN
RO AR AR WES - B
RILHEREMEE °

EANEENEHEERET  BUBK
JEim - EERIERERAE -

i

i) 555 T £ A 4507 58 Il 01T B0 4 ) T 3K
HOMREE  HAERSFEEE
REIRKEREERENEE ]
TRMEENTBBEN THE  FH
R TR R REE SR © 4ORR BT
MR MBI BB AR R E M -
PERRELERRG®IET  MAZE
RPHFENIWESTEN -

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments,
or if the market for them is not active, the fair value of the
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide
a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual
market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, input is
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterpart.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)  Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale received are reported as liabilities and are carried at
amortised cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities and
not recognised on the statement of financial position, but the
consideration paid is recorded as receivables, and are carried in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each agreement, using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting

prospectively when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

(i)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.
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2

(9)

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the income statement. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(c)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2(0):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii)); and

—  otheritems of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Freehold land is not depreciated.

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

—  Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired terms
of the land leases, whichever is shorter.

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a term
of 3to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts, and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and applies regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under leases and which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances
to customers. Hire purchase contracts which have the
characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(1).

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out in
note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue arising from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(k)

U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”. The Group does not
hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows of the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower

- the disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
loans and receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote, which are measured at amortised cost. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
borrower/investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2

U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both
to define the way the Group models inherent losses and to
determine the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances, and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on loans and advances to customers are reasonable
and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or credited
to the income statement. A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to the
income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not
reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts)

investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset is not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(m)

(n)

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the year (see notes 2()(i)
to (jii)).

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Staffretirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
is recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(p)

(q)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains
less losses from trading securities or financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange differences
relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statements of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its
subsidiaries, the fair value of the guarantee is estimated and
capitalised as the cost of investment in subsidiaries and deferred
income within other liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

(i)

(ii)
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0]

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event. It is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r)  Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up to date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale, and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) or disposal
groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(t)

(u)

(a)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Comparative amounts
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with
current year's presentation.

Changes in accounting policies

New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Group

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

Amendment to HKAS 19 (2011), ‘Employee benefits’, on contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendment distinguishes between contributions that are linked
to service only in the period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment allows contributions
that are linked to service, and do not vary with the length of employee
service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits earned in the period
that the service is provided. Contributions that are linked to service,
and vary according to the length of employee service, must be spread
over the service period using the same attribution method that is
applied to the benefits. The amendment has no material impact to
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
cycle, on HKFRS8, ‘Operating segments’, HKAS 16, ‘Property, plant and
equipment” and HKAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’ and HKAS 24, ‘Related
party transactions’. The amendments do not have material impact to
the Group as they are consistent with the policies already adopted by
the Group.

1-2013
cycle, on HKFRS3, ‘Business combinations’, HKFRS 13, 'Fair value

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs 201

measurement’ and HKAS 40, ‘Investment property’. The amendments
do not have material impact to the Group as they are consistent with
the policies already adopted by the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretations not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “"Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during
the financial year. As a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements.
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

FMEWARFEXZH 4 Interestincome and interest expense
FEWA (@) Interestincome
2015 2014
BEET T BT IT
HKS$’000 HKS'000
TS Listed securities 209,114 46,904
JELTES Unlisted securities 481,089 451,857
TEERIT R H A & B A Balances and placements with banks and
EEMRER other financial institutions 748,931 2,345,414
B EM(HE) Advances and other accounts (Note) 5,129,734 4,570,551
JEIE R A BEFTAEEN Interest income on financial assets that are not
SEEEMNFBHA at fair value through profit or loss 6,568,868 7,414,726
FEZH (b) Interest expense
2015 2014
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HKS'000
BE - RITREMESREER Deposits from customers, banks and
FREEM other financial institutions and others 2,496,671 2,422,057
BETTHRE Certificates of deposit issued 148,579 299,459
BRBITERES Debt securities issued - 33,234
2T EHRE R Loan capital issued 503,309 503,308
LA EET AEEN Interest expense on financial liabilities that
SRAGEMNFESE are not at fair value through profit or loss 3,148,559 3,258,058
BaE - Note:

EHZE2015F12A31HIEFE - FIBRARIERE
B A = B FEETF B U A B #519,435,0007T (2014
F  BWE4352000) - EREREERRERE
IR B A ) B UR A B #512,575,0007T (20144
75#3,978,0007T) (FiEE20(b)) °

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
of HK$19,435,000 (2014: HK$4,352,000), which includes interest income on the
unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses of HK$12,575,000 (2014:
HK$3,978,000) (note 20(b)) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FEARAESKBA 5 Net fee and commission income
2015 2014
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERMASWA Fee and commission income:
EE e kA Bills commission 116,360 141,547
EAREBKRA Card-related income 31,172 25,765
—MRIBITARTE General banking services 118,286 108,613
e Insurance 314,895 285,589
KENEBEIREESR Investment and structured investment products 150,913 137,783
ER - BT RMEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 391,955 305,500
At Others 613 714
1,124,194 1,005,511
ERNAEIE Fee and commission expense (55,779) (34,219)
1,068,415 971,292
Hep: Of which:
FEANMBEWA (T Net fee and commission income (other than the
REsTEERNENE5E) amounts included in determining the effective
BRI IR AR EBERA interest rate) relating to financial assets and
ExErNemEERAE liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—BRARASEA - Fee and commission income 539,487 472,812
—EZ2RANAEIH — Fee and commission expense (16,898) (13,373)
522,589 459,439
BERZ WA 6 Nettradingincome
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B B INE W IR E 18 Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 1,106,972 733,166
EERFHGRESFWRIFRERE Gains less losses from trading securities 6,868 658
BEITAE T AW REE Gains less losses from derivatives (70,911) (91,297)
R BB EENBRA Interest income on trading assets 188,618 127,277
1,231,547 769,804

FBEINERBN S amBRER LB
%‘i?l\ﬁ%‘”&/\_’\ﬁ)&ﬂ?ﬁj ARBAINER 5 E B E
HEHER - BETHBREREFNIBUARAR

FEHBRME—2

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

All foreign exchange related gains or losses are reclassified into “Gains
less losses from dealing in foreign currencies” to indicate the result
arising from foreign exchange dealing activities. Certain comparative

information is reclassified to conform with the current year's

presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Net gain from financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss

2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F S Net gain - 732
FLEMA Interest income - 341
- 1,073
8 FYuWE S (EE) 8 Net hedging gain/(loss)
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
NREELFF W (EE) Net gain/(loss) on fair value hedge 999 (2,584)
9 WHENHBEEERSZFWRE 9  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
mREFEEENFERRE Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves 57,247 14,613
FIEANEERFWE Net gain arising in current year 2,468 266
59,715 14,879
10 Hi&&EWA 10 Other operating income
2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
AHEEERERE AR EWRA Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
—Fm - Listed 394 199
—3E LT - Unlisted 5,900 5,500
WEMEHESIWA Rental income from investment properties 7,242 7,051
WEREZ L - %281,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$281,000
(20144 : E#289,0007T) (2014: HK$289,000)
Hih Others 36,492 82,045
50,028 94,795

—ZT—FELH Josl
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11 BEXH

Notes to the Financial Statements

11 Operating expenses

2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
(a) BIRA (a) Staff costs
HFehEMETIRKA Salaries and other staff costs 1,409,925 1,454,437
RIS KA (MI5E33) Retirement costs (note 33) 82,115 76,137
1,492,040 1,530,574
(b) HE (b) Depreciation
W RS ITE (FFEE23) Depreciation of property and equipment (note 23)
—IRIBEEHERENEE - Assets held for use under operating leases 19,503 27,749
—Hib&EE - Other assets 115,632 104,879
135,135 132,628
() Hfh&EZH (c) Other operating expenses
L EYS SR Property and equipment expenses
(TEENE) (W) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
—MEES ~ Rental of properties 262,451 246,507
—Hfth - Others 212,601 159,923
ZERET I & Auditor’s remuneration 8,927 8,634
EEB Advertising 64,586 60,807
BAE - DRIERXEAD Communication, printing and stationery 87,522 84,641
EENBEEER Legal and professional fees 34,016 39,081
) Others 266,928 190,374
937,031 789,967
e HAKE Total operating expenses 2,564,206 2,453,169

BaE

Note:

Hi e E S HeEREEEHEL NNREKER
MESW - DR AREBHEE S HE%1,931,0007T
(20144 : 7B#139300070) REMEEMES H
(BIEWEMS) BH250,1080007T (20144 : 7
#234,715,0007T ) °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$1,931,000 (2014: HK$1,393,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HK$250,108,000 (2014: HK$234,715,000) for the hire of other

assets (including property rentals).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Directors’ remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies

=T (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is
set out as below:

2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
E=-Yikn Directors’ fees 4,427 4019
4 ZELREWHRZE(MZEOZRG)) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (notes (i) to (ii)) 31,039 23,689
FETEAL Discretionary bonuses 13,809 17,457
RIRGHEIHE R Retirement scheme contributions 1,412 1,624
50,687 46,789

MI5E Note:
() BERBIABE CGERELEES)  © () Under the retention incentive scheme (using a deferred mechanism),

WISFLIMFEBRTEETNRS RE A
7B 2,7380007T (20144F © #2,790,0007T) °

()  RIBREEEETE[FTE]) -
TS —EHEMN G ERE - BEENSH
BURR T E B3 FASKEFEENKREE
BAE - REEBEEOREGD - 72015
B 85 #18,000,0007T (20144F © 78 #
18,000,0007T) EEHRE B TA - W BIE

BEE 9 GOl ¢

BEBAL (if)

best estimation.

cash benefits amounting to HK$2,738,000 (2014: HK$2,790,000) were
paid to the Executive Directors of the Group in 2015.

Under the long-term incentive scheme (“LTI"), eligible persons
are granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each
Appreciation Right is determined by the appreciation in the Group's
net asset value over a three-year performance period. In 2015,
HK$18,000,000 (2014: HK$18,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs,
including the amount payable to the Directors based on management’s

—E-RFRH
Annual Report 2015

083



B sR R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

13 EXRRBRREMBRBRESE 13 Impairment losses on loans and advances and other
accounts
2015 2014
BT T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB E B Impairment losses charged
—ERREBR — Loans and advances 468,602 181,697
—HMARIR — Other accounts 199,075 (840)
667,677 180,857
BER LB L EMIRIE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
JE B8 (BT 5E20(b)) other accounts (note 20(b))
— & RIFT ~ Individual assessment 617,744 105,266
— 4R A - Collective assessment 49,933 75,591
667,677 180,857
H A (HtEE20(0)): of which (note 20(b)):
— R — Additions 804,004 237,054
— [ 48 — Releases (106,019) (29,597)
— S5 - Recoveries (30,308) (26,600)
667,677 180,857
14 HEWBRRATPAEHR 14 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(a) #HEWEZKRFIRWETE (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
2015 2014
BET T BT IT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
REAFHIE - FBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
F AR (FI3E28()) Provision for the year (note 28(a)) 344,233 495,234
WA FERIBEE R Under-provision in respect of prior years 61 5,406
344,294 500,640
RHEAFLIE — BB IE Current tax - Overseas
FRNERE Provision for the year 71,109 82,450
BEFERIBEERR Under-provision in respect of prior years 6,656 8,528
77,765 90,978
IEFEBIH Deferred tax
TRk EREEA (EE) (Mf5F28(b))  Origination/(Reversal) of temporary differences (note 28(b)) 11,180 (18,354)
433,239 573,264

084 HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HBEWERMROAEBH (&) 14 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)
SBEWBRRFIRNER (&) (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (continued)

015FERBANEHHBREUNFEHHIE
AR R IR B E16.5% (20149F 1 165%) 5t
H o N IT B R B R IE Bl IR R AR
BIRAEE IR TH R IR -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is calculated at 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

BEXHESTHERRBEABTRFERARN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
HERR applicable tax rates
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
BiADRR Profit before tax 2,601,446 3,374,409
BABBERER Notional tax on profit before tax,
SR ERAHE calculated at the rates
AR M BB ETIE applicable to profits in the countries concerned 420,496 547,215
el IR HaFi a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 18,202 28,240
FEFER L UL AR TR 1B =2 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (10,370) (14,775)
BEFERIBEERR Under-provision in prior years 6,717 13,934
Eh Others (1,806) (1,350)
ERHIELRH Actual tax expense 433,239 573,264
Hih 2 E=s 15 Other comprehensive income
AREMEERESARIBONHETE Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive
income
2015 2014
BABE  HEXE BREARE WAk BEkas BREFE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount benefit amount
BETT E%Trn  B%Tr  AB%TT  BETL %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERINIBLRRIR Exchange differences on translation of (98,176) - (98,176) (43,347) - (43,347)
B HANELZER financial statements of overseas subsidiaries
il EES Available-for-sale securities
~AEHHEBSFLAEE - net movement in available-for-sale (116,914) 18,306 (98,608) 112,830 (21,094) 91,736
FRFE fair value reserve
kil 6o Other comprehensive income (215,090) 18,306  (196,784) 69,483 (21,094) 48,389
—E-RFR

Annual Report 2015
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DEHERNERTARKEZHET B LER
R FIETE #1250 R A BR R AR AR 2 20 fa] 73
FLERMFZ RN A — 2 - NEERER
TUATOREEEHD B

ARREHEGBET AR IO R
RITEBRPIRTES - CERTEHE
EEEAREEREENR  RIMERE
SBIE WD ITBEREBNERMAE
BABIMEBNATT - R BHBITERE
EoE—RMBET  ARREENRER
TEBERRAE -

BEARBBRITEFE T ZEREFRP DR
% EEMERZE  HWEEEE - AR
RiE MR/ NERER - MEE RS RALA
RTT e

MERREMSEHBRRERIMNERF R
% Bmipas  BEREESFNMTRIR

TEE -

Hp ¥R T EREAEERGEREMREE
B EEHIA RS - AT R (B ESH

RORHEMS - KEWANDERIREA
ERE R BRI R R E SRS D BRI
DEL o AR DI RIBIESEEB D HNE
ERARAEBEEESELTERTEEED
B EARITYEEENTEERS SRR
[H A ] EBTH 0 RELEWAREED
7 EPEY D BRI & S R o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented consistently with reportable
segments which are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally by the
chief operating decision-maker to allocate resources to the segments
and to assess their performance. The Group has identified the
following four main reportable segments:

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing and cash management. Overseas
branches include the management office unit in Hong Kong and
the branches operated overseas. China banking mainly includes a
subsidiary bank in China and the China banking management office
in Hong Kong.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office, and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.



B TSR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 DHER (&)

16 Segment reporting (continued)

(@) TWEHDH (@) Reportable segments
2015
NAR BAR
BRER BBRT HER
Wholesaleand  Personal and RETE
cross-border business  Treasury and Hitr ne
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRIBMA/(ZiH) Net interest income/(expense) 2,733,891 1,333,658 (688,288) 41,048 3,420,309
Hip WA Other operating income 714,954 658,904 903,096 74,035 2,350,989
HEATHEEESFFRE  Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 29,121 - 30,594 - 59,715
FE TN Operating income 3,477,966 1,992,562 245,402 115,083 5,831,013
BT Operating expenses (483,698) (674,460) (73,257) (1,332,791) (2,564,206)
AU EE(FH) /A Inter-segment (expenses)/income (343,018) (509,169) (114,049) 966,236 -
MR REEER 2 L8 Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
wA/ (B8) 2,651,250 808,933 58,096 (251,472) 3,266,807
ERRBFRAMIRE Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
BB () /o B loans and advances and other accounts (441,416) (37,423) (199,075) 10,237 (667,677)
BT (BE) Operating profit/(loss) 2,209,834 771,510 (140,979) (241,235) 2,599,130
HEMERRBEFER Net loss on disposal of
property and equipment (16) (446) - (268) (730)
REMESHNE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 3,046 3,046
BAnER,/ (&8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,209,818 771,064 (140,979) (238,457) 2,601,446
BTi5#: Income tax - - - (433,239) (433,239)
AEERTF/(HE) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,209,818 771,064 (140,979) (671,696) 2,168,207
HitpEpEA Other segment items:
TE Depreciation 16,283 21,449 323 97,080 135,135
THEE Segment assets 142,886,647 41,393,989 114,204,905  (15,950,573) 282,534,968
PEHERE Segment liabilities 144,383,771 108,699,516 22,794,559 (17,397,083) 258,480,763
FEEELEMELRREY Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 6,884 28,637 1,304 81,661 118,486
—ZT-RFRH

Annual Report 2015
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16 DWBER (&) 16 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) T2F|HHI (&) (a) Reportable segments (continued)
2014
YNSIPN BAR
BIRER HBRIT HER
Wholesaleand ~ Personal and RTS
cross-border business  Treasury and Hih R
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BB BT BB BT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EREHA Net interest income 2,564,238 1,157,214 395,821 39,395 4,156,668
Hig ‘*Mﬁz)\ Other operating income 539,083 669,139 614,896 11,262 1,834,380
HERHHEEABRZE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 1,751 - 13,128 - 14,879
A Operating income 3,105,072 1826353 1,023,845 50,657 6,005,927
mET Operating expenses (486,353) (596,083) (50,580) (1,320,153) (2,453,169)
DU EE(ZH)/MA  Inter-segment (expenses)/income (355,112) (482,271) (128,685) 966,068 -
Mk REE ﬁﬁ\‘lz Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
mEER /(BB 2,263,607 747,999 844,580 (303,428) 3,552,758
§ \ﬁ&ﬂﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
(CEMH) /B loans and advances and other accounts (144,852) (37,873) - 1,868 (180,857)
s/ (B8) Operating profit/(loss) 2,118,755 710,126 844,580 (301,560) 3,371,901
HEWMERSEF Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
Wz (B18) property and equipment (1) (440) - 107 (334)
BEWMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 2,842 2,842
HAnER/ (B18) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,118,754 709,686 844,580 (298,611) 3,374,409
FEH Income tax - - - (573,264) (573,264)
KEZHA/(B1B) Profit/(loss) for the year 2118754 709,686 844,580 (871,875) 2,801,145
Hiv»#EE - Other segment items:
neE Depreciation 20,228 22,796 1,028 88,576 132,628
DEEE Segment assets 130,351,057 39,694,486 99,685,253 (20,589,925) 249,140,871
=L Segment liabilities 126,065,104 94,067,374 27,986,539 (21,229,495) 226,889,522
AEEEEANERARY Capital expenditure incurred during the year 10,446 29622 755 49,577 90,400

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

2015
BEWA S

(X)) HEEBERAEE
BiAD R HWEE weE Operating Contingent
Profit Total Total income/ liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities (expenses)  commitments
BT BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 2,080,855 253,413,493 230,208,316 4,927,034 71,903,142
PEIA Mainland China 99,502 12,502,237 10,705,457 299,632 2,297,992
ESE United States 122,093 5,877,070 5,774,995 147,153 1,360,777
I Singapore 254,147 23,224,884 22,948,195 396,017 22,944,961
Hith Others 44,845 1,939,101 1,895,252 61,687 2,309,279
D HEBEITE B Inter-segment items 4 (14,421,817)  (13,051,452) (510) -
2,601,446 282,534,968 258,480,763 5,831,013 100,816,151

2014
S BB ERAE
T A BEE Bwag FEI PN Contingent
Profit Total Total Operating liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities income commitments
BT BT T BT BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 3,016,222 227,842,192 206,440,191 5,165,917 70,727,803
B A Mainland China 105,014 16,034,172 14,172,138 382,721 4,026,303
EJe United States 944 5,161,545 5,109,847 114,818 730,180
s Singapore 211,225 17,643,601 17,415,840 302,955 16,673,743
Hith Others 39,646 1,745,167 1,723,713 38,455 2,230,897
SEEIER Inter-segment items 1,358 (19,285,806) (17,972,207) 1,061 -
3,374,409 249,140,871 226,889,522 6,005,927 94,388,926
—E-RFR

Annual Report 2015
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17 BERERT PRETEEMESHE 17 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other
HBENEE financial institutions
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
RHe Cash in hand 228,554 259,296
ERRIBITHAETE Balances with central banks 1,263,157 1,694,313
FIRITHEF Balances with banks 7,881,427 7,260,074
TEMERRENGETF Balances with other financial institutions 10,949,596 11,462,517
20,322,734 20,676,200
BHE2015F 1231 BBRRE AP RIBITZEIIN Included in the balances with central banks that are subject
b B 1) A0 B2 5 IR 1l &) £R 58 2 5 6 825,506,000 to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
7T (20144 7\%@:{1,157,543,000773) ° HK$825,506,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$1,157,543,000).
18 HERIT HFRETKHMSBEEN 18 Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
FEREER and other financial institutions
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
FIRITHFER Placements with banks 27,348,928 37,451,365
HEIRITHIE R Advances to banks 3,041,712 6,442,475
30,390,640 43,893,840
E|HiH - Maturing:
—1MEARA — within 1 month 13,676,427 22,533,026
kS EN RS — between 1 month and 1 year 16,694,838 21,360,814
— 141 - after 1 year 19,375 -
30,390,640 43,893,840

HZE2015F %2014 124310 - AEEEIR
TREME BN WEREBERR
INE R 2 S B IR B E R R E R -

090 R{SERIT (EIFR) BIRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions at 31 December 2015 and 2014, nor were there any
individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on these
two dates.
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REAREE 19 Trading assets
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEEES Debt securities 212,827 8,348
KERS Investment funds 1,489 2,204
RS RERS Trading securities 214,316 10,552
PTAETEMERAAREBEME3ND)) Positive fair values of derivatives (note 39(b)) 4,063,223 3,280,780
4,277,539 3,291,332
LLETEE R THEBIT - Issued by:
RITREME RS Banks and other financial institutions 131,638 8,348
1 Corporate entities 82,678 2,204
214,316 10,552
B ETHE DA Analysed by place of listing:
REELT Listed in Hong Kong 57,788 -
REBAIMEE FTH Listed outside Hong Kong 32,896 8,348
LT Unlisted 123,632 2,204
214,316 10,552
—ZT-RFRH

Annual Report 2015
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20 BEFERRBRKEMIRE 20
(a) EFERRBIRREMREBEEE (a)

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEER LA ERE Gross loans and advances to customers 169,869,738 150,720,146
B ZE4E (BT EE20(b)) Impairment allowances (note 20(b))
— &Rl & 1H ~ Individually assessed (296,732) (163,880)
—4& A — Collectively assessed (399,376) (373,664)
169,173,630 150,182,602
FEEH R B K E A BRTE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,506,138 3,690,462
B ZEME (BT EE20(b)) Impairment allowances (note 20(b))
— BB EFA (B EE) - Individually assessed (Note) (199,843) (768)
4,306,295 3,689,694
173,479,925 153,872,296
BEERLRBAREDEE Included in loans and advances to customers are:
E5ZEE Trade bills 5,205,237 9,287,362
BB ZEE (BT 5E20(b)) Impairment allowances (note 20(b))
— AR FE{H — Individually assessed (139) -
— iR B FHE - Collectively assessed (690) (2,181)
5,204,408 9,285,181

fii -

FE20154F » 5 #199,075,0007T 5T IR IR (B X # & W
FIAEMIRE R ERIRELER (20145 - &) - &
RHHERETEERBHAFERSEE RN
RORRAHE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note:

In 2015, an impairment provision of HK$199,075,000 (2014: Nil) was being
included in the individual impairment provisions of the other accounts, this
was provided for the failure in settlement of expired or unwinding transactions
of certain derivative products.
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20 EFERRBRREHMERE (& 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(b) EBEFERRBRRHEAMRERNEZEENZS (b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts

2015 2014
@RI AT [ERIEHE  RATE
Individually ~ Collectively #%  Individually  Collectively k]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total

BETR EMTR  B®TR  BBTT  ARTT  BBTx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

M A1R At 1 January 164,648 373,664 538,312 162,528 315,055 477,583
il e kg Impairment losses charged

REER(HE3) to the income statement (note 13) 747,697 56,307 804,004 156,463 80,591 237,054
TR E B Impairment losses released

REERE(E3) to the income statement (note 13) (129,953) (6,374)  (136,327) (51,197) (5,000) (56,197)
ek i=E Amounts written off (297,176) (30,595  (327,771)  (120,768) (21,982)  (142,750)
WEIAEFED R EN Recoveries of loans and advances written off

EE &N in previous years 23,934 6,374 30,308 21,600 5,000 26,600
ERRESE Unwinding of discount on

15 mE (FfaE4) loan impairment losses (note 4) (12,575) - (12,575) (3978) - (3978)
W12A31H At 31 December 496,575 399,376 895,951 164,648 373,664 538,312
Mk B (M3E200) Deducted from (note 20(a)):

REETRER Loans and advances to customers 296,593 398,686 695,279 163,880 371,483 535,363

Hi#RIA Other accounts 199,843 - 199,843 768 - 768

EUES: Trade bills 139 690 829 - 2,181 2,181

496,575 399,376 895,951 164,648 373,664 538,312

—Z—FEW 093
Annual Report 2015
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20 EFERRBARHMIRE (& 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(0 RITEIMNEFERRBR () Loansand advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

NN BETRETHONITRRET S REE
BU2ER]) MERANDBEREREDL -

The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

2015 2014
BEFERK HEEF EPEXRR CAEESS
BREE ERREXR BRmeE BERREBEX
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans

and advances

to customers

and advances

to customers

and advances
to customers

and advances
to customers

BT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
ITHE<aE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 13,160,361 - 5,594,282 -
—MERE - Property investment 19,535,863 30,297 17,016,206 11,601
— SR - Financial concerns 6,742,829 - 8,429,777 -
—EE&L ~ Stockbrokers 3,511,763 - 771,179 -
—PERTER ~ Wholesale and retail trade 17,915,876 162,104 16,727,330 3,048
— g% - Manufacturing 7,493,445 10,472 7,167,172 118,503
— B B R E ~ Transport and transport equipment 3,492,239 2,325 2,163,895 196
—IRELEE) — Recreational activities 954,102 - 273,556 -
— BT ~ Information technology 14,755 - 15,202 -
—Hft - Others 7,987,067 249,305 4,663,393 2,191
fEA Individuals
—-BEIEEEHEE — Loans for the purchase of flats under
gl TRABRRE the Home Ownership Scheme,
2FERTE IR Private Sector Participation
[HEEAREE] Scheme and Tenants Purchase
BT ER Scheme 8,760 - 10,756 -
—BEHEMEEZME - Loans for the purchase of other
HER residential properties 12,404,811 4,788 11,296,562 4,796
—ERREX - Credit card advances 426,795 439 357,418 297
—Hith - Others 7,850,685 16,204 6,830,531 7,638
ERAFARN Gross loans and advances for
BN BR A use in Hong Kong 101,499,351 475,934 81,317,259 148,270
BHmE Trade finance 11,061,512 605,279 15,691,063 150,865
EEBIME R Gross loans and advances for
BERRBHESE use outside Hong Kong 57,308,875 425,472 53,711,824 412,503
BEREERRBSREE Gross loans and advances to customers 169,869,738 1,506,685 150,720,146 711,638

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

REEZEFERRBR (d) Impaired loans and advances to customers
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RERFER N B AR Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 1,506,685 711,638
BB E— B RET S Impairment allowances — Individually assessed (296,732) (163,880)
1,209,953 547,758

HEERNBRATH(ERE Gross impaired loans and advances as a %

BERRBRBENR DX of total loans and advances to customers 0.89% 0.47%
BEEREBHREFEZREEREFREN Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which

FEEE - AR ER B -

exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

BAE R R EEEHE ST E R R E G Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
ERRBFABERAGOUZREBRS into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such loans
#5433,215,0007T (20144 : & ¥472,737,000 and advances of HK$433,215,000 (2014: HK$472,737,000) of the Group.
TL) c BRI BRI EREEDNER This collateral mainly comprised mortgage interest over residential or

1B A A S B AR S TR

commercial properties and cash with the Group.

—E-HFR
Annual Report 2015
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EFERRBRREMERE (£

BERERIBARENNERERE
REFERRBFEELRREHERAHRE
HERHH D BNRENHEBLEFHRE
BB AT - ELEANNRYIEEE
—MRAREISE0F - AR AEERREER
ABLEABEE - RBERERDBNRE
HEWHSERENTERRERENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor

vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance

leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 5 to 20 years,

with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The

total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and

hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are as

follows:
2015 2014
BEHAE =IEHE
HRBRE BREAE RFRE =EHE
Present value FRHEEE  Present value Fr4azs
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
1R Within 1 year 79,414 90,354 147,821 168,431
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 119,257 141,482 199,924 233,849
5F& After 5 years 272,067 302,897 352,007 396,056
470,738 534,733 699,752 798,336
B Impairment allowances:
— A RIS — Individually assessed (3,172) (7,088)
— A S - Collectively assessed (5,358) (1,429)
R E T E Ny BT 3k Net investment in finance leases
AR E FRE and hire purchase contracts 462,208 691,235

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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21 AHHERS

Notes to the Financial Statements

21 Available-for-sale securities

2015 2014
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB NFE Certificates of deposit held 12,375,180 4,104,439
BEBES Debt securities 22,261,330 14,217,767
BEH(BEIINEESRE) Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 18,420,015 8,106,952
=B S Equity securities 94,962 84,222
53,151,487 26,513,380
LB MR ITHETT Issued by:
BT 8 Sovereigns 19,381,998 8,239,847
RIT M EM S RS Banks and other financial institutions 26,391,962 9,615,782
1 Corporate entities 7,377,527 8,595,459
N T Public entities - 62,292
53,151,487 26,513,380
BEmHEE DA Analysed by place of listing:
REE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 5,209,473 2,385,545
REBAIMIE Listed outside Hong Kong 5,215,093 1,214,469
JEFT Unlisted 42,726,921 22,913,366
53,151,487 26,513,380
TE B R E BT 7 75 8 Fair value of individually impaired
NREE debt securities 91,364 96,761
—Z2-nEH
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R2015F12 8318 » T BB AREBAE
B BESBEREANENTIENBAR
15 o BRIER B - TRIFESRMHIERY

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2015 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

REEAR o otherwise stated.
SR BEBE ERERESR BERTRBZRE FERGEDE
NEBE Place of incorporation/ Kind of legal FTEEK Particulars of issued  Proportion of shares
Name of company operation entity Principal activities share capital held by the Bank
ERARERLRR B BREARA YERA BT 100%
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Property holding HK$2
Company
PERTER(FE)BRAR PEARAMBE(TE])  AREERE  Hi7 ARH#1,000000,0007C  100%
(T ERITERR (R E) )
CITIC Bank International (China) People’s Republic of China Limited Liability ~ Banking RMB1,000,000,000
Limited (“CBI (China)") ("mainland China") Company
PERRRBER A BA BREARA RELR 75 #5,000,0007T 100%
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
Company
CKWB-SN Limited RERS/BE BREMAR BOHEBRBNRE X2 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Limited Liability  Issue of structured notes  USS$1
Company and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited FEs,/ B8 BEREELRR  BORERE 41 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong  Limited Liability  Issue of Us$1
Company subordinated notes
BEEAMBARAA Bk BREARA HEEE 75 #200,000,0007C 100%
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
Company
BEEARG(RBAN)BRRA & BREMERAR  HKEARSE 7B HE5, 0007 100%
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited Company
RERT(ER)BRAA Bk BREEAR  EERHB 75 #3,000,0007C 100%
The Ka Wah Bank Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Trustee services HK$3,000,000
(Trustee) Limited Company
BREEERRAA BE BREERR RIGEE BB 100%
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Mortgage financing HKS2
Company

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23 YIERRE 23 Property and equipment
& BE
HERRE
REWHE Hiyz Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and W
properties premises equipment Total
BETIT BT T BT T BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RASHE : Cost or valuation:
20151 A1H At 1 January 2015 182,898 632,009 1,224,783 2,039,690
20 Additions - - 118,486 118,486
HeE Disposals - - (22,790) (22,790)
BH A% Surplus on revaluation 3,046 - - 3,046
B 5, 5 2 Exchange adjustments - - (6,973) (6,973)
72015%F12A31H At 31 December 2015 185,944 632,009 1,313,506 2,131,459
FMEENRAE The analysis of cost or valuation of
REIFWMT : the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 614,412 1,313,506 1,927,918
(EXE] Valuation
— 1985%F -1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 2015%F - 2015 185,944 - - 185,944
185,944 632,009 1,313,506 2,131,459
R2014F1 A1H At 1 January 2014 180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
bRl Additions - - 90,400 90,400
HeE Disposals - - (20,595) (20,595)
BH A% Surplus on revaluation 2,842 - - 2,842
PE H % Exchange adjustments - - (3,761) (3,761)
720145128318 At 31 December 2014 182,898 632,009 1,224,783 2,039,690
LiiEENRASREE The analysis of cost or valuation of
oW the above assets is as follows:
PR Cost - 614,412 1,224,783 1,839,195
(EXE] Valuation
— 1985%F -1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20144 -2014 182,898 - - 182,898
182,898 632,009 1,224,783 2,039,690
ZTIE - Accumulated depreciation:
20151 H1H At 1 January 2015 - 292,090 888,667 1,180,757
RNEFHE(MEE11()  Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,619 121,516 135,135
A H S i B8 Written back on disposals - - (21,997) (21,997)
fE 5 5% Exchange adjustments - - (5,653) (5,653)
72015%F12A31H At 31 December 2015 - 305,709 982,533 1,288,242
R201451 A1H At 1 January 2014 - 278,471 792,653 1,071,124
AFEFEPTEID)  Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,619 119,009 132,628
A & i o] 5% Written back on disposals - - (20,136) (20,136)
P H Exchange adjustments - - (2,859) (2,859)
20149128318 At 31 December 2014 - 292,090 888,667 1,180,757
BREFE : Net book value:
72015%F12A831H At 31 December 2015 185,944 326,300 330,973 843,217
2014512 H31H At 31 December 2014 182,898 339,919 336,116 858,933
—ZT-RFRH
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23 YIERRE (B) 23 Property and equipment (continued)

(a) BEWMELAABEE (a)
() AT IBEER

TREFREER  ASERLEMT
EEURABEFENRENE R
B(REAMBHRELER) F135% 2
REEFEI DER=RAAEBEE
o nrRBEAENERADELRE
AREEEANBAZIENATRRE
MEBEMAORTE :

BB -2EA-EERHERLE
BHBIIEHTIHRE R
BE) -

P - REABERNEABIE 2
BEEA CREFEFIR) - Rk
THRAEEMFABEENHK
R BRAMSBURREM &
FMAIER R EIE -

EIR—AABEATEMIFATER

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value
measurement’. The level into which a fair value measurement
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the input used in the valuation technique as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical assets at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant unobservable

B BUHR G E o inputs.
R2015512A31 B AR EEHE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2015 using
R2015% EEE Hi=Z TEMm#
12A318 mHHE THEENHE TEENHE
NEE (E18) (%248) (%38
Fairvalueat ~ Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant
31 December active market  observable input unobservable input
2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BRI BETR BRI
BEMAABEE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REME Investment properties
—-&% - Held in Hong Kong 147,001 - - 147,001
— BB AN E - Held outside Hong Kong 38,943 - - 38,943
185,944 - - 185,944

100] HIERIT(BEIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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23 YERRZE (&)

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Property and equipment (continued)

REWMEQNAREEE (&) (@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)
() A EEER (&) (i) Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)

R2014F12A31 B DR BEE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using

720145 R HEtp T2 TEMHE

128318 M5 RIE AERNEE AEENEIE

RAEE (F14) (F28R) ($34)

Fairvalueat  Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant

31 December active market  observable input unobservable input

2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

BT BETT BETT BT

BEMNAEBETE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENE Investment properties

-5 - Held in Hong Kong 145,700 - - 145,700

—BENIME - Held outside Hong Kong 37,198 - - 37,198

182,898 - - 182,898

H E2015F F12014F12831H - £ F
VRN 240 2 P M BE 8 R B
MBALE L - FEEBREERR
HEHRERAAEBEEAHERNE
Koo

720156128318 » 2B BB £/
TEHASENREMESMHRSE -
MEBERUAAFAMSEEAELER
HE(HEBYBmEER) B135% (A
REBEAEIHAABENER A
B 7N R [ 1Y) & & R /3 78 163,046,000
JL(2014F : REBHESABHBRBE
2,842,0007T) I 2 75 BIET AR B UL
mEH o

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued and
assessed by the management of the Group at 31 December
2015 with reference to the property valuation report conducted
by an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of the property
valuation was market value, which is consistent with the
definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’.
The revaluation surplus of HK$3,046,000 was recognised by the
Group, respectively (2014: HK$2,842,000) and has been credited
to the income statement.

—E-HFR
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23 YIERRE (B) 23 Property and equipment (continued)
(@) REWEAABEE (&) (a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)
(i) A IBEEREIERGAEETE (i) Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy
FIBRNARBEAEHRERFEA The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3
BEBINT - fair value measurements are as follows:
2015 2014
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B1ATH At 1 January 182,898 180,056
AR BEERE Fair value adjustment 3,046 2,842
M12H31H At 31 December 185,944 182,898
(i)  B3EREA 7 BEFTEER (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
fHEER A BRE MBI %
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
SR UES i LA MEEBORE (FE) -15%Z15%
Investment properties Market comparison approach  Premium (discount) on quality of properties -15% to 15%

EEBRBENIMERAIREDMEN
NABERFKAMSHLBIEEE » U
S2ESOBEBNENE TS REEE
RAEE  LETHNHEEER I
MABRAEEYEE B85 (BRI
& REERHENREAEERRE
FHRERRLL AR INMmIE N - &

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per-square- foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's or
the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales. The carrying
amount of the investment properties would be increased by
the same percentage increase in the price per-square-foot and
vice versa.
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23 YERRZE (&)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Property and equipment (continued)

REVMERHLMBYENREFEINOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
B Held in Hong Kong
—RHEHEE - Long-term leases 80,885 80,456
—HEIE - Medium-term leases 392,415 405,163
BB @ Held outside Hong Kong
—FHHEHE - Medium-term leases 38,943 37,198
512,243 522,817

KEMEELENH S W ABLE ABE
7,523,0007T (20144 : 7##57,340,0007T) °

20159 X 2014F 8 BIR EYE R ERIE -

AEEETHOYESRBAFERTE
i e INRBUMEZURNFEETINEA
B AREEMN20155F 12831 B E MY ER
T 5 B & A& 75 154,981,0007T (20144 : B
5,045,0007T) °

BREERERENYERRE
AEBERBEEHEN T AHLREYE -
BRMENSNEER —MRm2E3F - A&
A EFEERER LB RN -

AREBRT A ERNRE MY ENLE
HERWNRRFIEHES AN

()

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$7,523,000 (2014: HK$7,340,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no loss on
disposal of investment properties.

Some of the other premises of the Group was revalued in previous
years. The net book value of other premises of the Group at 31
December 2015 would have been HK$4,981,000 (2014: HKS5,045,000)
had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting properties
are receivable as follows:

2015 2014

BT T BT

HK$'000 HKS$'000

1FR Within 1 year 3,572 7,552
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years - 3,588
3,572 11,140

—E-HFR
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24 RITREMERMEBNERRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial

institutions
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITOTERNETF Deposits and balances from banks 2,658,301 4,129,401
25 BFEXR 25 Deposits from customers
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
E AR RER PR Demand deposits and current deposits 20,094,257 17,921,958
EETFR Savings deposits 36,751,099 31,157,185
FEER - BVER K52 B AT K Time, call and notice deposits 163,838,353 139,850,416
220,683,709 188,929,559
26 RZAREE 26 Trading liabilities
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AT EBRAAEBME(MEE39(b)) Negative fair value of derivatives (note 39(b)) 3,555,614 2,974,807
27 BRITENE 27 Certificates of deposit issued
2015 2014
BYT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
xS RE Non-trading 10,388,272 14,156,976

28 MBARRKRFSHAER

(@) BBARKRAROREABIRS :

28 Income tax in the statement of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:
2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFEBNEHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits
(FI3E14(@)) Tax for the year (note 14(a)) 344,233 495,234
SRR ARy Provisional Profits Tax paid (375,622) (372,760)
(31,389) 122,474
AN TE HE Provision for overseas taxation 60,185 37,702
28,796 160,176
Hr Of which:
a] Uy Bl £ 18 Tax recoverable (33,114) (2,775)
NEARLTE Current taxation 61,910 162,951
28,796 160,176

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28 BIBAMRRREITHEER (&) 28 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)

(b) ERINELEHBEERER (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
EREFBERDEERNECERE (BE),/ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
BEMNEERAFERNNZESIT ¢ statement of financial position and the movements during the year

are as follows:
FERHE
BBEE AHRHERS
FE EXREX EffHE
Depreciation REEE M%Ef  Revaluation
allowances in Impairment FAZ  adjustments
excess of allowances  Revaluation  for available
related forloans  adjustments -for-sale Hity ke
depreciation and advances for properties securities Others Total
BT BT BB BT BT BT
EEFERE - Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H2015F181H At 1 January 2015 34,263 (63,045) 1,621 18,271 (18,898) (27,788)
AR R NN, Charged/(credited) to income
(E15) (15t 14()) statement (note 14(a)) 260 1,118 (7) - 9,809 11,180
Ik Charged to reserves - - - (18,306) - (18,306)
P& 5 R Eo % Exchange and other adjustments (22) 12 - - 329 319
M2015F128318 At 31 December 2015 34,501 (61,915) 1,614 (35) (8,760) (34,595)
R2014%1 A1 B At 1 January 2014 34013 (44,897) 1,579 (2823) (18,366) (30,494)
AUERMME,  Charged/(credited) to income
(128 (£ 14(a)) statement (note 14(a)) 373 (18,148) %) - (621) (18,354)
EEN D Credited to reserves - - - 21,094 - 21,094
[& 5 K& H h Exchange and other adjustments (123) - - - 89 (34)
2014128318 At 31 December 2014 34,263 (63,045) 1,621 18,271 (18,898) (27,788)
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE BA T AR 2% W AR A Net deferred tax assets recognised on
FREIBEEE the statement of financial position (36,312) (32,115)
FER AR R R AER Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on
FIRLERIE AR the statement of financial position 1,717 4,327
(34,595) (27,788)
(0 AEINELEHREBEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

BRARRAIEELAEARE AT BHEAD
ERB T AHEERER  ~EEILK
BREFHEEENELCRIBEEEABK
2,624,0007T (20144F + 7 #2,653,0007T) © 18
BIEBHEIRY - ELBIBEELZE D
E| °

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$2,624,000 (2014: HKS$2,653,000), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

—E-HFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

29 HttEE 29 Other liabilities
2015 2014
BET T FEEETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
HEM e pMEEEEEMNIER ltems in the course of transmission to
other financial institutions 2,770,458 70,266
JET N H b e~ BRIA Accruals and other payables 9,594,565 7,706,827
12,365,023 7,777,093
BRELR 30 Loan capital
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBRE6875% 0 HIE Subordinated notes with
500,000,000 TR 1% (B R E* US$500 million of 6.875% * 4,132,209 4,150,696
FBRAE3875%  EIE Subordinated notes with
300,000,00035 JT K14 B S 5 ** US$300 million of 3.875% ** 2,306,392 2,291,268
F B R E6.000%  EIE Subordinated notes with
300,000, 0003 TT R 18 (B 4 x> USS$300 million of 6.000% *** 2,327,616 2,312,444
8,766,217 8,754,408

*%

20106F6 248 » ARRITIRIEF2007F 12 A 1

t£2,000,000,000 7T 8y HAZR 3K T2 ([ H3

%T}%E@HJ) MA2010F6 A8 B REER
» BEITHR B R 556.875% M 1 1B 500,000,000

%rc (%518 7% #3,888,900,0007T.) E’J{é ET

B BRZEBRTMIMNEZZIAERA

o WG 202056 A24 B BE -

201296983270 « AITIRE A £ & HA
ERFEIRA0EABEMEER
Bk - B 77 E {E300,000,0003 7T (F BB
2,326,100,0007T) WBREEE - BITEESF
B8R 53875% « B FIREZE2017F9H28
Bl ARATEBLSEREELEE -
AEETFERAERERFRERSZE
BEIMI25%FF)E o 15 LRI TN
SEIERAR LT - WiHEHR20226F9H28H
FIER o

2013F 11 A7H » AITIR B A £ & HA
ZERAE R R0BFI0ABELENEER
B - 3% 17 E {E300,000,000% 7T (Z B # 1
2,325,800,00070) MBERE - ZEERE
HE(BEBHTE=Z) M_PEARSF - 1%

B 2 FF R T R6.000% - FHEF
KB ZE2019F5A878 1 BlEBARBITE

JEO#E - ZRMEEARAGRIEERSFH

EHBREELHZE Kbu4718%¢ﬂ$é%ﬁ

Eéﬂ ELE ?FE%‘/% MEEFRAR
NCIN st 1H¢B¢2024¢5H7H§‘J%@0

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular issued in June
2010, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 24 June 2010 with a face
value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million). The notes
bear an interest rate of 6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually. The
notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and mature on 24 June 2020.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in August
2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 27 September 2012 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,326.1 million). The
notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually until 28 September 2017, and thereafter fixed at an interest
rate of the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 3.250% per
annum if the notes are not redeemed on or before the call date at the
option of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and mature on 28 September 2022.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in October
2013, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 7 November 2013 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,325.8 million) and
which qualified as Basel Ill-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes bear
interest at a fixed rate of 6.000% per annum, payable semi-annually until
7 May 2019, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the prevailing
five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum if the notes
are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and mature on 7 May 2024.
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEXR#E 31 Capital and reserves
[N (@) Share capital
() BERITRHEEER () Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid-
2015 2014
&S 4= &N ¢!
Number BT Number BT T
of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$'000
®W1A1H At 1 January 7,283,341,176 7,566,271 7,283,341,176 7,283,341
R2014F3H3RBER Transition to no-par value regime
EHE(EHE (FEai) on 3 March 2014 (Note a (ii)) - - - 282,930
M12H31H At 31 December 7,283,341,176 7,566,271 7,283,341,176 7,566,271

(i)  RIBEFEEBE (R AHEH) (F622F)
B 211883716 AR B 1 B9 38 M 1R ST
B % BER R 2014F3 A3AMEME
FESREEN AT —EH ©

(i) BAAEETTEIR (5
MR2015F 1283 BEIR - K178 A
BEITRA -

BE
AKITREE2015F12A31BIEFERRES
TRALE (20144 « f7#) o

(b)

(i) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account has become part of the Bank's share
capital.

(i)~ Shares issued during the period
There was no share issuance during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Dividend
No dividend was declared and paid during the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

—E-HFR
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31 BERRMEHE (&)

() fREE
(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

HEREH

MR2014F3 38 AT D mBERRME
FBZAEES (A UEN) (F32F) 5
48BIKFTE B8 - BRI BB (R RIE
By (55622F) KI R 115537167 51| &Y
B ST BRI REIRN2014F38
SHMEME R S8R ARITIRAR
B — &6 19 (Pt 5E31(d)) > B201453 A4
3ER RARANFERZTNES
(RENEDI) (F622E) EHE -

B
BRI TR DK TR

— AR A1
—MRFEEBENRE S M — B K
R WHAI D IR TR

VB ZE RRI# 1
EXEZRFEREEEMARBRERIINE
BOPBRAMEENEL Z8 I
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(c)

Capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share premium

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account was governed by section 48B of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance with the
transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule 11
to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on
3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account has become part of the Bank's share capital
(see note 31(d)). The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is
governed by the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622).

Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to
shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached
50% of its registered share capital.
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(c)

(d)

Capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)

(viii) - Regulatory general reserve

(ix)

Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve through
a direct transfer from the current year's profit appropriation, as
determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end
of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential loss
exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2015, HK$2,571,972,000 (2014: HKS2,172,126,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
was distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under

the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622), was HK$10,151,327,000 (2014: HKS8,715,638,000).

The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of

HKS$10,151,327,000 (2014: HKS8,715,638,000) and the Bank’s retained
profits of HK$12,788,138,000 (2014: HK$10,955,141,000) as reported in
note 45(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves and the

exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment properties

and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank.

—E-RFRH
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32 Additional equity instruments

2015 2014
BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
E{E300,000,0003 JTLHY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
KEFIERTER(EE AFEH capital securities with US$300 million* 2,310,168 2,310,168

* 1R 4% 72007412 A # 17 #92,000,000,0003
TR R BB IR A& ([5Z5T &11) A R2014
FAR BB E|IE - AITHR20145F
AANEBATTA(EERGE =) BE
300,000,0003 Jt (55 1B 7 #2,313,470,000
TL) BOK BRI FERFERERIN—RELRE
HF([BEIN—RMERFZFH]) - BN
BEARESIEE T DA RPR2019F48
A EMERAELD B8 ZEFEFRE
7250% °c HIEFRRETHERE  ZEF
FERBIEER S FHERRERS B RMF
FR5627%FHFE—NEHERT °

RIBIER G BN —REARE TEHE
ARG WEIE R DIRER (ZERE
FRIEAITHEREIREAERE) &
FEETHNBERDIERE  RRNEFHN
48228 M0A2B K FF B — K o K77
AIABITRE  IBIEBEUCH D RN R E G
BIN—MER  BEFBIEERNELE
HRE - HE2015F12A31BHERNN DK
fFFRE S A 21,750,000 7T (FE R B I
168,567,0007T) (20144F : 10,875,000% 7T (48
&R 1E84,370,0007T) ) ©

33 {EERNKFE

AEBRAE -—BEREHARES B (1%
BRIRFTED) ¢ B - NEBEBELRENE
BEARFH 1000 R - RN EIE—1E
sRiEE M RRTE  MEHER SR ANKEA
BErBES - BEBAFLEMAHER - R
BREAESE2HHETARR - NEENEH
1 B PR e 3R ER D 3R s B R RER
MBERABHFTBA—EBLNENES
ERZRINETEINEMEHE

BT R RETBISN - ANEE B20005F12 41
Hit - b2 E—IERAAESEE - BHRA
KR EERMEEEE - ZEBERE
SRIE S ET IR FRIAR S ZB M AEF o

AEERN NEBEELEELAOE
N4 A B B82115,0007T (20144 « & &
76,137,0007%) (BEE11(@)) °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

* Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the
Programme”) issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular
issued in April 2014, the Bank issued a Basel Ill compliant Undated
Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the
"AT1 Capital Securities”) on 22 April 2014 with a face value of US$300
million (equivalent to HK$2,313.47 million). The AT1 Capital Securities
are perpetual and bear a 7.250% coupon until the first call date on
22 April 2019. The coupon will be reset every five years if the AT1
Capital Securities are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 5.627% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to receive non-cumulative distributions (each a
Distribution) on the principal amount (subject to adjustments following
the occurrence of a non-viability event as defined) from, and including,
the issue date at the applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually
in arrear on 22 April and 22 October each year. The Banks may, at its
sole discretion, elect to cancel the distribution payment or redeem
the AT1 Capital Securities, which are subject to prior written consent
of the HKMA. A distribution payment of US$21,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$168,567,000) was paid during the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: US$10,875,000, equivalent to HK$84,370,000).

33 Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$82,115,000
(2014: HKS76,137,000) (note 11(a)) to these schemes.
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34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) REBAELEXRK 2 (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash
HEFHENEE flow (used in)/from operating activities
R Operating activities
A& F Profit before taxation 2,601,446 3,374,409
JERSIEE AR Adjustments for non-cash items:
EEERRBZR N EM Impairment losses on loans and advances
BRIARER1EZEE and other accounts 667,677 180,857
& A H & B A R e Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (59,715) (14,879)
LEYI KRBT EE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 730 334
HEMESEHRE Revaluation gain on investment properties (3,046) (2,842)
IRAE S 4 5 Amortisation of deferred expenses 121,632 104,578
MERFETE Depreciation on property and equipment 135,135 132,628
EmBEHFRBRA Dividend income from equity securities (6,294) (5,699)
BEEAFEZH Interest expense on loan capital 503,309 503,308
b H Z R Foreign exchange differences (373,269) (696,382)
EEESBEANCERR Operating profit before changes in working Capital 3,587,605 3,576,312
REEEGEMHD (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
[FEIH B B iB31E A /SR Placements with and advances to banks,
17~ RRIFIT M E MR central banks and other financial institutions
HWENTFR N with original maturity beyond 3 months (42,678) 9,086,948
REIEFEBE3EA Treasury bills with original maturity
7 B beyond 3 months (7,875,416) (814,529)
JREIER B A3 E A 7Y Certificates of deposit held with original
BEERE maturity beyond 3 months (7,651,121) 2,036,451
RHHBREE Trading assets (986,206) (893,067)
15 il iR DA R IR Securities designated at fair value through
NAEENES profit or loss - 63,204
BEFEFRBHE Loans and advances to customers and
HAthARIA other accounts (20,483,681) (21,660,229)
AR ERS Available-for-sale securities (8,111,502) (2,867,026)
(45,150,604) (14,148,248)
wEaEEMn CRd) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RIT R Efb & BB R Deposits and balances of banks and
TR other financial institutions (1,471,100) (3,392,981)
BEPER Deposits from customers 31,742,004 34,270,593
RZRAEaE Trading liabilities 580,807 1,406,168
BEEITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued (3,509,246) (1,401,281)
BEITERES Debt securities issued - (1,136,032)
HivgE Other liabilities 4,597,056 (1,345,928)
31,939,521 28,400,539
—ZT-RFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

2015 2014
BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) BE B HELEEL (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash
HE FHENEE flow (used in)/from operating activities
(AR RERE%E Cash (used in)/generated from
KR SEE operating activities (9,623,478) 17,828,603
2B Income tax paid
ENEBNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (389,223) (469,328)
EfRIEIMEIA Overseas tax paid (52,565) (79,153)
(AR),/ REEEERE Net cash (used in)/generated
KIS EE from operating activities (10,065,266) 17,280,122
EEERELNELSREBEIE . Cash flows from operating activities include:
ERFE Interest received 6,578,774 7,412,772
EAHLE Interest paid (2,847,156) (2,566,296)
(b) REREELEEER (b) Analysis of the balances of cash
WEEIF DM and cash equivalents
He RIERIT - PRIFFTTRE Cash and balances with banks,
fh % B R 4517 central banks and other financial institutions 19,497,229 20,676,200
TEERTT ~ PRIBIT R HAM S Placements with and advances to banks,
BRI TR R 2R (R 3(E central banks and other financial institutions
HAAEIE) with original maturity within 3 months 22,453,326 35,173,698
BlE % RiF A T RE (RR3 Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
& A A EIER) with original maturity within 3 months
— A EES - Available-for-sale securities 9,744,861 6,687,595
51,695,416 62,537,493

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35 Assets pledged as security and collateral accepted as

REE security for assets
2015 2014
BT T T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
AERFNEE Assets pledged as security
YRR IR Al B E A Available-for-sale securities pledged
EEFR (M) for statutory deposit (Note 1) 85,541 85,299
RERRTTHRESESN Available-for-sale securities pledged
BABEHEQR) for own liabilities (Note 2) 77,800 313,979
163,341 399,278
EFRESIEAKFEE Collateral accepted as security for assets
R FFHE R B EOERIK Fair value of the collateral permitted to sell or
e A EBE M) repledge in the absence of default (Note 3) 1,592,835 -

REERNEERENEE B ERTXE
BT RANEE TR ©

BEHENBRERXZ 2ERET BA
[ m] WEREER (20145 B
288,900,0007T) * 75 #69,307,0007C 2 7T AR
TREMS MEENTTRRETF -

FR2015%F + AN SR Bt I B3 0] i 2 5 Y K
HRIEAZFEERERITRE SR
BETFE R A7B51,612,028,0007T /& [A1/E 84
i AR B 5B 5 B B AR R A SRR 36 [ B
RPHET - REBBHR ZEHFMEFFH
MET -

EXBABAIRS

BAEAMBRREMBORENZ H LR
O NREEETTUATERER TS -

Note:

m

The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the
overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency in the United States.

The assets pledged regarded as ‘collateral’ under the sale and
repurchase transactions for the secured liabilities of HK$69,307,000
(2014: HK$288,900,000) as included in deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions.

In 2015, the Group also received securities as collateral under the
reverse repurchase transactions for bank balances of HK$1,612,028,000
(2014: Nil) as included in placements with banks and financial
institutions. The reverse repurchase agreements are conducted under
standard terms for securities borrowing and reverse repurchase
transactions. The Group has an obligation to return the securities to its
counterparties.

36 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions.

—E-HFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Material related party transactions (continued)

(@) HEEATNRS (@) Transactions with group companies
REFEA  AEETHASRITEBBESD During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
Eﬁ?‘%ﬂﬁ?ﬁiﬁ? ZIER 5 - HPRRIBEE related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
B BEXREHRRAZEER  2HEEER inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
fIX@ETTX%%W\\EX% BEEXHHERN participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
EERIRBERETRZRHEEMIEH X and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
MmiE @ WERHEGEAREHEMR ST REP based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
WiERAER - EFGRA - BEIFHRIRIE were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
B IGETT o and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.
REERN - BBMARINBERNEEBRD The amount of related party transactions during the year and
BERAT outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BRERR Benq BHAT
HEERSAT (Rf&E() GE)
Uttimate holding and ERERBAT EEL P Associates Related companies
intermediate parents Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries (note (i)) (note (ii))
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BRI BETr  BMTR BNt BMTn  BETr ¥t EgTn BT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FlEMA Interest income 303,501 944,340 - - 8,578 8,704 25,290 8,728 61,302 89811
FlEX I Interest expense (107464)  (338%)  (7349) (61460  (82841)  (3183%)  (15323) (77409 (19730)  (15699)
EEERA Other operating income - 9 - - - - 50823 39,107 - -
g Operating expenses ) (553) (8,244) (713) (4,832) (6,062) - (1612) (1) B)
LHBANENE/(BB)  Trading gain/(loss) on derivatives 149,314 (1,070) - - (2,895) 8843 7,726 7277 (46,136) 16686
BE Assets
AHERS Avallable-for-sale securities 206528 220715 - - - - 16857 23081 - -
ITEERIE Derivative financial instruments 146,784 49311 - - - 189 - - - 17538
EthElER QOther receivables 5,601 4413 - - 2,562 4740 2,153 2550 - 25,394
g Liabilities
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 14,537 5578 - - - 815 - - - 169777
EHEMER Other payables 8,635 11924 6,138 3,603 25,720 19919 988 819 1,081 3416
BiED Lending activities
M2A318 At 31 December 1,743,360 16238902 - - 614,808 426,075 664,690 677632 - 753,949
TEETHEE Average for the year 5,070,805 20532090 - - 4153 0752 970,990 410947 851,146 311507
BEER. Acceptance of deposits
®12A318 At 31 December 6,246,501 3575004 2215978 2232715 6,391,250 2711566 4,819,768 3758123 1,242,138 1341765
FEETHER Average for the year 9324578 3270537 2,218,787 878980 5,721,146 2383581 5764077 3122858 1,297,099 1184057
BBMRRIMER Off-statement of financial
position items
BAER  ER Acceptances, quarantees
RERE and letters of credit
AR BER - contract amounts payable - 143) - - (12565 (56293) - - - -
AR Lease commitments - - - 3,997 6,892 - - - -
EtoAE Other commitments - - - - 478,861 34135 862,817 357450 - -
fEeBIE Derivative financial instruments
—£%EH - notional amounts 6535013 7177716 - - - 169 - - - 11573592

114] HERT (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HEEBERANRS (£)
I 48 5t _E il BE B 05 B AR R F AR AR HOBUE 2
ff

() ARENEZ2QFBEBN&EZERAR
MERERE AR E QT -

(i) BB A RE015FRIEHEA LXREEMIE
BB RF] - M2014F M BRHE A RIZEINEIE
EEEREARMNE  EHEEERE
NEITFEFEENTE -

BIEEBABNRS
AEFET2EEAEMS BIEWMT12MHKE
ENTFAITEEHRIE - FHEWT

Notes to the Financial Statements

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with group companies (continued)
No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
to and placements with related parties.

Note:

(i) Associates of the Group include the associates of the ultimate
controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i) Related companies in 2015 include companies with common directors
of the intermediate parents. Related companies in 2014 in addition
include a shareholder of the immediate parent, which exercised
significant influence on the immediate parent.

Transactions with key management personnel

The aggregate amount of remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group, including the amount paid to the Bank's
Directors as disclosed in note 12, are as follows:

2015 2014

BT BT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

RHEERH Short-term employee benefits 101,895 95,176
BEB 1212 A Post-employment benefits 3,266 3,218
105,161 98,394

o@Dt A TEIRA] (HEE116)

REFER - ATARITARBEEZER A BN
T EEIEA B A PIEDT RN i A PRI X
RMMEAZENRAIREEERE - 8
MEREREFRBBETRME  WRH DA
WAL (ER) EEAREEEITA L
L SRV ERABHER °

Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 11(a)).

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where
applicable, with other employees.

—E-HFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) EFEEBAENRS (&) (b) Transactions with key management personnel (continued)
2015 2014
BETT R T
HK$’000 HKS'000
RTATEHER At 1 January 21,477 20,311
12 A31 BR &R At 31 December 21,058 21,477
FANRmAER BT Maximum amount during the year 24,201 40,381

(c)

REBREREEEBRAENFANERE

REFRERR  WRBERETEEEASR
R APS AT R B AR B 4 IR RE BT ik {18 1 7 A
HREZEH -

ESER

RIECE B R A GO (F6226E) F171§
[BEEENmER] - BEBE2015F128
BNNHEEMNERERNT « EZEER TR/
HRBEEHE2014F12A318BRENF (BE

()

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended
31 December 2015 are shown as below. They are not directly
comparable with the loans to officers, which reported for the year

NEHED (B32F) F161BIE [HEITEA
BEXR] MEENITRABERIELE -

ended 31 December 2014, which were pursuant to section 161B of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

2015 2014
BET T AT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R12A31BARTTIRER Aggregate amount of relevant loans
EHERGE R BT made by the Bank at 31 December
—BEWE LB ~ Loans and advances 3,247 4,297
—HGHIEEE — Committed facility 10,663 -
AEERARITIRES Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
EHRERESERETE loans made by the Bank during the year
—BEMERREK ~ Loans and advances 9,996 8,937

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31

20159 K 2014F 128318 » AEBRE A
= December 2015 and 2014.

LEERIR B o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR MY

37

TREREE

AE 2 BEARENAR L ESRRNE
BREH - CHEREASRTAGRNE
2R

-  EERR  FERREREEFARSYH
FIEEBITEANETMBERMKE
KH)ER o

- WHERR HEX - mRER - 7
K GERANELRBERERETSAR
RENEE - S| BAKERA - KE
MEBENHEREERD -

- RPELRER : AREERINAE
BEMmMAEZRER - SRARAIERE
LRBEE - REREEZT NI
BESAETEELET S KBTS
BmHneEE  YARAEEET
P& T 38 1 (B LA R BR SR 35 5 E Y
HA o

- EBRERR C ARBMER  ABR
Rz NERKR  HEMIMNPIESR
MRS HFATER B Z R -

AEBRARETENFEEERTSEA
% RERMENEREFTERBFRIERR -
AREBHE 7K « 1B MIAKER MR
TE i8S # R\ B PR BB AL 1T o0 AT A 4R )5 Lk L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to risks,
and its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

- Credit risk: The risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: The risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: The risk of being unable to meet financial
obligations as they fall due. This may be caused by a funding
liquidity problem such as the inability to liquidate assets or
obtain funding to meet obligations, or may be attributable
to a market liquidity problem significantly resulting in market
disruptions, thus hindering the Group’s ability to unwind or
offset specific exposures without lowering market prices.

- Operational risk: The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

In addition to the Group’s exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.

—E-RFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in the off-statement of financial position such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment to better reflect
the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Risk Management Group
("RMG") under the oversight of the Credit Committee, and is reported
to the Credit & Risk Management Committee (“CRMC") at the board
level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide appropriate
oversight of the Group's risk management practices by defining the
Group's policies and risk appetite, and providing the RMG with the
means to implement measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the
Group's adopted strategy.

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group's
total exposures. The Group’s portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit
risk concentration of the Group's respective financial assets is
disclosed in notes 19 to 21.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers, with individual credit limits set.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grades
1-11 for performing loans and Grades 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework
into the Group's reporting structure has enabled more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segments (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and the governing of the credit exposure for
individual customers or counterparties.

Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly
in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also
maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits
(which have lower risk ratings of 8-11) to preserve the Group's
quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's rating
scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:

—E-RFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality (continued)

R EPTAR B R ECAIFT#R
(14— #&5) (K& (a))
Internal Rating System  ECAI Rating AR Al
(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
1 AA-/Aa33i A | () &RNEFEENEHER -
AA-/Aa3 or above (i) 198 E TRV BE N LABTT H B 754Gk o
(i) TESXETNNEEBERETE - ABITH AR -
(i) Minimal to very low credit risk.
(i) Extremely strong to very strong capacity to meet its financial
commitments.
(iii) Not susceptible to adverse economic conditions to meet its
financial commitments.
2 A-/A3ZEA+/AT () ErERRER -
A-/A3 to A+/A] (i) BABESABITE B 155G -
(i) HER S XA TNNRBREZLE - BT RBAGE
(i) Low credit risk.
(ii) Strong capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Somewhat more susceptible to adverse economic conditions
to meet its financial commitments than obligors rated under
a better rating categories.
3 BBB/Baa2% BBB+/Baal () BENERRR  BIEBEATS
BBB/Baa2 to BBB+/Baal (i) RHEVRE TIABIT B TSGR -
(i) MEEFHFERR - EBANBITH B AL A6
SRANBEERFRZENRIS
(i) Moderate credit risk and positive outlook.
(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating
categories.
4 BBB-/Baa3 () FEERRER -

(i) RIEVEEIATBIT H B TSGR -

(i) HEBRIFHFEERN - B ANEITH S AR A8
BRTMNLBERRZE LRI °

(i) Moderate credit risk.

(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating

categories.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

() 1EEEX (&) (i) Credit quality (continued)
R EPFAREE 2 ECAIFEAR
(14—#&50) (MizE(a))
Internal Rating System  ECAI Rating AR A
(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
5 BB+/Bal () EXERRER  FIEEATR °

(i) BHEIEE 1 LABTT H BT ES o

(i) BT HRTEER - B ANBITH S AL T Al 88
ERIFHRBERREZERTRE °

(i) Substantial credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

6 BB/Ba2 () BEXERRER  BHFAR -

(i) BHEVRE I ARBTT HBA 15 AR o

(i) BT T EER - B ANEBITH SRR T A8
BRI BERREZERTRE °

(i) Substantial credit risk and moderate outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

7 BB-/Ba3 () EXERRER -

(i) BHEIEE 1 LABTT H B 75 %GS o

(il) BT HRTEER - B ANEBITH AL T Al 88
EWIFHRBERREZERTRE °

(i) Substantial credit risk.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

8 B+/B1 () ®ERER  BLEBERIS -

(i) BAIA RHIHEEH LABIT BB T GE o

(i) MEEFHFERR - EBANBITH B AL A6
SRIANBOEBEREZENHI -

(i) High credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial
commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.

—E-HFR
Annual Report 2015

121



B TSR MY

37 SRIARER (&)

(@) FERRERE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

() 1EEEZX (&) (i) Creditquality (continued)

R EPFAREE 2 ECAIFF#R

(14— 4&51) (MtEE ()

Internal Rating System  ECAI Rating AR A

(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles

9 B/B2 ) BIEARR - BRERR -

(i) BAIA RHIEEE ) AR T BB T GE -

(i) BB IFHTEER - B ANBITH S A A8
BRTMNQBERRZE KA

(i) High credit risk and moderate outlook.

(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial
commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.

10 B-/B3 () ®fEARERE -

(i) BERIARHMIBE N LABTTH B 5 4GE o

(i) HERFHFEER - B ANEITH S AL A8
SRTMOEBERRZE LA

(i) High credit risk.

(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial
commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.

11 ERINEE CECCC+,/ Caal RIBE RS EBER (M (b))

Special Mention C/Cto CCC+/Caal In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to

note (b))

12 NERE D RARE R BEER (5 (b))

Substandard In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to

note (b))

13 AT&E - RIEE R BB (M5 (0)

Doubtful In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to

note (b))

14 [E518 - RARE R BEER (52 (b))

Loss In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to

note (b))

Mz Note:

(@) ECAIEYMNIMZ s A Mrs. (@  ECAIstands for External Credit Assessment Institutions.

b) EBIZoBsIENBCERT THBEE (b)  The Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying
;gﬁﬁﬁ IRBHEE R eS| relevant assets in accordance with the Loan Classification
BZHofE  EHEBEERG—WiEE Guideline issued by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and
FIRSF D BAR B M o timing for the grading of relevant assets is put into effect.

122 HIERTT (B BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(i) Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period, without considering any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after

deducting any impairment allowances. A summary of the

maximum exposure is as follows:

2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Re RIEIRIT ~ ARIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks

HEMorigEnsgs and other financial institutions 20,322,734 20,676,200
EIRTT ~ PRIBITREA Placements with and advances to banks,

S RIEENTER LR central banks and other financial institutions 30,390,640 43,893,840
RGRBEEE Trading assets 4,276,050 3,289,128
BREFERRBFT K Loans and advances to customers and

H A AR1E other accounts 173,176,439 153,706,309
AT &5 Available-for-sale securities 53,056,525 26,429,158
HEEREEMEEER Financial guarantees and other credit-related

BN BRE contingent liabilities 5,475,838 7,312,064
BERAERAEMEEE Loan commitments and other credit-related

BB EIE commitments 95,340,313 87,076,862

382,038,539 342,383,561
—ZT-RFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised

TEF o financial liabilities, on the Group’s financial position.
2015
ERBMRRERA
REEHENEEEE
EOERRE Relatf:d ar.no:nts that are
RES L not of:et |n't Ie sta.t.ement
SRTESE of financial position
Net amounts =]
of financial BeH
instruments presented SRIE Cash
in the statement Financial collateral B
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LREE Financial assets
—(THeRMIE - Derivative financial instruments 4,063,223 (1,576,071) (647,330) 1,839,822
tRARE Financial liabilities
—(THeRIE - Derivative financial instruments 3,555,614 (1,576,071) - 1,979,543

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)
EERBRERE (4) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEFEZEEGZE (B) (iii)  Master netting arrangement (continued)
2014
ERBRRAKRR
RE BRI SE
TR SRR Related amounts that are
Il V.
MR not offset in the statement
S4BT AEE of financial position

Net amounts w8

of financial RegA

instruments presented TRIA Cash
in the statement Financial collateral FE
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SREE Financial assets
—TESRIA - Derivative financial instruments 3,280,780 (1,256,523) (42,880) 1,981,377
SEAR Financial liabilities

-SRI A - Derivative financial instruments 2,974,807 (1,256,523) - 1,718,284

(iv)

RERUE B SR — HHFan KA M5 B1Ert
REBEH N ANR T AR & EE R
o —RME - AEBEAERRNLE
TIERRIARERZEREROMNR
b o REBEKEERITREEERR
HIKE - WKIIRIBEEE X ©

AEEBEERRBRMEHHER
mIZE[RE HeEH REB
BHER AN ST LR - &
WA  BREREREERA
MERES - E—LBRT - AEE
BRFEFPHOARRANBFNEEER
15 MR dmRIEAEEROE
HHER -

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group dedicates to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group's ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation, and it was particularly successful at
safeguarding its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer's
position and the types of credit products, loans may be granted
on a clean basis, backed by corporate or personal guarantees.

—E-HFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
(continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group’s policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2015 and
2014, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERRBREE RIS Lower of gross loans and advances and fair
ERHERMEE 2 BERM K value of collateral and other credit
HiERRANAAEE enhancements held against financial
MEZBRIRER assets that are:
— R BB RE — neither past due nor impaired 92,375,366 80,610,817
— @R BIRE — past due but not impaired 2,389,787 1,770,886
94,765,153 82,381,703

B EELERETE
ERHEAER

— PARLR 2 H) TE (B il E AR AL

AR B BR A DA B A AN O TE (B R R AR
REREFASERENAD —AE
e AEEHLEBEMEEBEL
Z BE P M b H) ELR I8 52 B SR
OREEXRARBER  BRKWER
TR L ®R (BIEEE) - AREE
HETRBE R - EREHEER
ZE#ME THEFENEEMAR
EELEERB -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(v)

Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management

— Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices, the
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group (value creation), after
taking into account the risks of the customers and facilities,
and thus the capital required to support the loan exposure and
other costs. Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted
regularly. The result is approved by the Credit Committee and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.
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37 SRIRAKRER (& 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(@ FERKBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() EBHHEEEEREREFE (&) (v)  Portfolio management and risk concentration (continued)
B E Risk concentration
AEECHETRRBEREEBERIL A Credit Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the
KERBERMAOUERERR Group constantly reviews its loan exposure to monitor the
XK 5D RER LR concentration of credit risk relating to customers, countries,
market segments and products.
Vi) BRRBZNEEES (vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances

AEEYHNEREREZERARY CH
TTEENE R BEER MR ER AR
RIBERIBIEERER °

20154 &20145E12 8318 » PT A 4R
TERRBRLERE FEFEXK
NEFNEEEESTOT ¢

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has a Loan
Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in place
to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, all loans and advances to banks
were not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to

customers is analysed as follows:

2015 2014
BETT BETIT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
EREERRBFRETE Gross loans and advances to customers
— 2B EHSRE — neither past due nor impaired 164,767,423 147,176,702
—BAMERERE — past due but not impaired 3,595,630 2,831,806
—B2RE — impaired 1,506,685 711,638
169,869,738 150,720,146
Hepo: Of which:
2015 2014
BETT BETIT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
REBESOREMNTFER Gross loans and advances to customers that
NERERR are neither past due nor impaired
—EBEENFIZEI0 — Pass: Grades 1to 10 163,111,083 146,930,192
— xR EFR — Special Mention: Grade 11 1,656,340 246,510
164,767,423 147,176,702
—E-RFR
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128

B TSR MY

37 £RERER (&)

(@) FERRERE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

i) BRRBHIEEEE (&) (vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
EEEERBERENEFERRBR The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
HEREC DT T - past due but not impaired is as follows:

2015 2014
BT BEEFIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B AR R ERERN Gross loans and advances to customers that

BPERKBRERE are past due but not impaired

— B HBE A IAT ~ Overdue 3 months or less 3,366,588 2,664,317
— @6 fE A AT - Overdue 6 months or less

B3R A = but over 3 months 229,042 167,489
3,595,630 2,831,806

MR2015%F12 8318 R EAEFE

EBHRENES

AR -

1% A& 78 #12,390,0007T (20144 :

659,530,0007T,) °

BROIERWEE D

AR

&ﬁm&
B

=0

HAERD }DJ|J£§|J7J_/\M-JL|:£2O PSE N

FIXA T E MO

i) BFR
MERSHEERR
SEERCXEERR
WIRESESFET

TE BB REREEE ©

TREINEHBEHERE

BAAIN e EENEEEE (vii)
R EIET  ER

2 B J7 SUAE R
TARERRFE AR -

=
AxX

HBERERA

?xéfﬁlﬁ“&ﬂ—rﬁﬁz AR TR

\\\\\\

$’$IE$ETF‘”%’<E’\J§§ 11
ABKETT

FRAE1

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

o fE2015FF12A3 1AL FE -
HHET
TERAFAETESERN
SEIE  MBEHFAFRLHFER
TARETRARA TR -

Bl

Loans and advances that would have been past due or
impaired had the terms not been rescheduled amounted to
HK$12,390,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$659,530,000).

Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry sector
or by geographical location are provided in note 20(c) and note
(D) of the unaudited supplementary information, respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit
limits set.

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or its
equivalent), at the end of the reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group assessed the credit
ratings for these debt securities in according to their issue, the
issuer or sovereign ratings. Ratings designated for the issuers or
sovereigns are reported if there are no issue ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii)  Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(&) (continued)
2015
AHHERES
RERBREE Available-for-sale Pip-r:]
Trading assets securities Total
BET T BET T BETF T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa 46,519 5,522,848 5,569,367
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal 150 13,103,860 13,104,010
A3ZEAT A3 to Al 11,705 24,781,334 24,793,039
{RHA3 Lower than A3 131,405 7,441,665 7,573,070
189,779 50,849,707 51,039,486
REFAR Unrated 23,048 2,206,818 2,229,866
48 5B Total 212,827 53,056,525 53,269,352
2014
A ERES
RTERGEE Available-for-sale )
Trading assets securities Total
BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa - 2,161,703 2,161,703
Aa3ZE Aal Aa3 to Aal - 8,650,450 8,650,450
A3EAT A3to Al - 8,379,754 8,379,754
KFA3 Lower than A3 8,348 5,528,351 5,536,699
8,348 24,720,258 24,728,606
REFAR Unrated - 1,708,900 1,708,900
ik Total 8,348 26,429,158 26,437,506
—E-AFR
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management

Market risk arises from all financial instruments sensitive to market
fluctuation, including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity
and derivative instruments, as well as available-for-sale ("AFS”)
securities or structural positions. The Group mainly separates
exposures to market risk into trading and AFS portfolios. Trading
portfolios include positions arising from proprietary position-taking
and other mark to-market positions designated to the trading book.
AFS portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group’s
investment portfolio and liquidity portfolio in securities, which are
neither intended to be held to maturity nor purchased for trading.
The change in valuation for the trading portfolios from market risks
affects the income statement, while that for the AFS portfolios affects
the investment revaluation reserve. The Group needs to ensure
impacts on both the income statement and the reserves from market
risks have proper prudent controls. The objectives of market risk
management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks, establish position limits, sensitivity
limits and value at risk ("VaR") limits based on the Group's Tier 1
capital base, and communicate risks to senior management

- support business growth with reference to a risk-controlled
framework

- ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite as set out through a set
of global risk indicators (“GRI"), the establishment of a limit structure,
and policies for the trading and AFS portfolios. Limits are ordered
according to the hierarchy of policy limits, business limits and
transaction limits. This market risk appetite has been approved by the
Market Risk Committee ("MRC") and is endorsed by the Board through
the Credit & Risk Management Committee (“CRMC"). The hierarchy of
the limit structure is set up to control the position, size, profit and loss,
and sensitivities from the portfolio level to the individual trader level.
All business units with market risks are required to strictly comply with
the policies and the limits. The Treasury & Markets Group ("TMG") unit is
the primary business unit involved in market risk exposures.
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SRERER (&) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
mSRAKER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
M5 E fE rINESE (4&) Market risk framework (continued)
M5 Rk //&)JI&F@F“‘M;E BB AR The Market Risk and Liquidity Modelling (“MR&LM”") unit is an

BAlEFIEHIEL - BEEBTISERRRE independent risk measurement and control unit overseen by the
@EE EEITEE - Iﬁl—t % e 1R 4B BL R Head of MR&LM, who reports to the Chief Risk Officer (“CRO"). MR&LM
e miBRBERBERERAT —ES21RK uses a set of quantitative techniques to identify, measure and control
ok R - BEFZESITIEREE - I 5E B the market risks, which are regularly reported to the MRC and the
misEREEEREMNBRBEE RERER Board through the CRMC. These techniques include sensitivity
LZECRESFTTHRE - EBURITBEHEE analyses, VaR and stress tests, which are measured relative to the
T RBREEME A - BAEEEY Group's capital base.
TR A S R T 2 /) B E TSR R The following table provides an overview of the types of quantitative
& measures in various market risk reports:

RERBEE AHHERSAE
Trading Portfolios AFS Portfolios
E kR Risk type [ B R =, Risk measures ERE Risk measures
HNGE Foreign exchange [2f B VaR and sensitivity i@ B Not applicable
= Interest rate 2P (B R B E VaR and sensitivity BB {E M HURE VaR and sensitivity
HE Commodity [R B2 1E VaR T EA Not applicable
& 1 Equity [2\f (B VaR BURE Sensitivity
E M= Credit spread NiE A Not applicable B\ B & B VaR and sensitivity
HegEn Portfolio type FEfRE - SRUE N VaR sensitivityand  EB{E - SURE KR VaR, sensitivity and
EEJDAIE stress test JE& 1785 stress test

AEBEBEAKEENARERZEGEL
B [ 37 EE an v 14 R bz B R ) (TR ) -
BRI ESHEMLZZERF - RETHEK
R FHERMTS RHRRF G BBEEED

RE/VERTR] - BREFSEIERED  EE LR
EIRAAERERR  OERE R AR - &
KB EIEE J\ZEE’JF#T& BEMEMME
BEXEFRAGBENEREEAEERITHRA

& /BITEBAE BETRERIERE®R
EEEEER -

The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by the
“New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” (“the Policy”) approved
by the CRMC. According to the Policy, new products are subject to
risk clearance by various functional units, including the Financial
Management Group, the Operations and Technology Group, the
Risk Management Group, the Legal Department and the Compliance
Department. After obtaining functional clearance, the sponsoring
Business Head shall submit the Product Proposal for the approval of
the CRO and the CEO/Deputy CEO ("DCEQ")/Alternate Chief Executive
Officer ("ACEQ") as appropriate.

—E-EEH
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model

The following explains the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions of
each type of risk exposure. For example, the present value of a basis
point movement in interest rates and the present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are predominantly based on
historical simulations, and Monte Carlo simulations are also used
as a reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account the correlation
of different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.
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37 SRIEAKRERE (&2) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TWIEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)

/'f7_ 5B f B A B A (48 Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)

bl (48) Value at risk (continued)

$Elﬁfﬁ‘”ﬁﬁ B L SRR R B HE T 57T The historical simulation model used by the Group includes the

% following elements:

— BENMBELHELRBRLEMFEEN - Potential market movements are calculated with reference to
RERSHEERAHEERSFREMA data from the previous two years for the trading portfolios and
ENEIE - BERLTHENE - B the AFS portfolios, including the historical market rates, prices
MABRAARE - and associated volatilities.

—  HEERFHEE  EBRERAI%MNE - For the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99%
DIKFE R LA RFEE B R BEAKIE confidence level and for a one-day holding period.

WSERBE 201553 ABESRABE TmISEKRBE -20145X 3 ARAERKRE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2015 Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2014
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— HAHEEIFKREAS  BEREN —  For the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99% confidence
99%H) 1= DK K LA250 K 5 B Hi A level and for a 250-day holding period.
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(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value at risk (continued)

The Group routinely validates the accuracy of its VaR model
for its trading portfolios through back-testing by comparing
the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss results,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group only
expects to see losses in excess of VaR 1% of the time over a one
year period. The actual number of excesses over this period can
therefore be used to gauge how well the model is performing.
For the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, there
was two exceptions in the back-testing results (1 January 2014
to 31 December 2014: one exception), which corresponds to
the green zone specified by the HKMA and the international
Basel principles.

2015F A5 B B A A H R N ERR S R & 18
The Group's actual profit and loss back testing model in 2015
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The Group’s actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2014
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37 SRIEAKRERE (&2) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TWIEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)

5 B[ R B Bt T % R B (A8

Rk(E (&

HNER T ENERENE  EEFNTS
R - AT DAME R — ER F O T 5 R 2 5
5l BEhBEHBRIE - flan - FIFE L&
TER—ERIERI BB XM EFT A A RERYE
SHMARREZERBL T99%E D RENE
o BT RBEERS - THRARLREE
ERRHMSEREZ ESmENAHERR
R T X5 AGEAMAEHERSFAGHE
250 A RE IR MBI M IRIR F AT -

HE0FN2AELEFE  AEEHE
REGBRESKEZEBTFHRRRBE
1,924,0007T (20144F : #%651,00070) + BEH
TP AR AERR = A 153,372,0007T (2014
F ¢ 5 #1,894,0007T) © T B #E £2015
FROV4FEAEEEMEFERACERS
& o

HE# Number of Days
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Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2015
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Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value at risk (continued)

While VaR calculated using this approach can serve as a good guide
for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its limitations.
For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may not encompass
all potential events and events beyond the 99% confidence interval
are not considered. In order to mitigate such limitations, the MR&LM
provides the MRC with the stress test results reflecting potential
extreme events on the market risk exposures for the trading and AFS
portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the average daily
mark-to-market revenue from the Group’s trading portfolio and fund
investments was a gain of HK$1,924,000 (2014: HKS$651,000). The
standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$3,372,000 (2014:
HK$1,894,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the Group's
daily mark-to-market revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, respectively.

EZE2014F128310 L FERTHEERAZEA D HE
Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2014
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SRERER (&) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
mSRAKER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
/'f7_ 5B f B A B A (48 Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
b2ME (&) Value at risk (continued)
—Fﬁé%@ﬂ’\ TR GEMMAIHEEBZLFEAEN The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book and AFS
BB ESFET portfolio:
BRRZENTHEAR -1 XEBRE%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - 1-day VaR 99%
2015 2014
&S RIiE ¥ EZ12A31R =) =3 g HZE1ANE
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December ~ Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B%Tn  BETx BT  A¥TT  BETr A% BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
HME R Foreign exchange risk 15,307 933 6,246 6,006 12,447 371 2,951 7,793
MER R Interest rate risk 8,379 1,635 4,802 5,058 8,142 2610 5,061 5875
el Total VaR 16,251 2,618 8,381 7,685 13,891 2,982 5,684 8916
THHEERFASNTEER
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio
2015 2014
&S RIiE ¥ #HZ12831R ot I 9 #HE12A31A
Maximum  Minimum Mean  At31December  Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B%Tn  B%ETxn BRIr  A¥TT  BETr  B%Tn BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FIRE R Interest rate risk 666,262 389,857 478,257 533,823 437374 208,270 282972 427634
EEFZER Credit spread risk 438,153 244392 355759 352,797 268,735 206,765 234,121 244,229
POREREERE  Totl 250-day VaR 563,371 340,291 423,619 434,883 374,539 215453 252,536 343,013
JE& 7RI Stress testing
FEE DRI BB MR AR R EEE A5 Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the VaR
TE L T%Eéi1 %*iéﬁ%fﬁt ZAN-S model in order to capture remote but plausible events. The Group uses
B N HERETT i}aﬁl—w BRI the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

R BRREES
EAENTE

—  ERIEN - ER 8 S AR RE N HE
EREREELRENELBRET
BED EEEREBREHENF
2

=

136] PERIT(EFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

- sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single
risk factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by
the VaR model.

- historical scenarios, which incorporate the historical observation
of market moves during previous stress periods which would
not be captured by the VaR model, such as the impact on
valuation under the crisis scenario.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Stress testing (continued)

Stress testing results are reported to the MRC, which provides an
assessment of the financial impact that such events would have on
the Group’s income statement and reserve. The daily losses for the
trading portfolio and the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS
portfolios experienced in 2015 were below the stress loss alerts and
limits.

Credit spread risk

In addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatility, a
significant widening of credit spread such as in financial crisis
situation would have a heavy negative impact on the valuation of
the AFS portfolios. Also, the extreme market conditions would make
the availability of market prices for some of the securities infrequent,
and to a certain extent, less reliable, which would further increase
the challenge and complexity for portfolio valuation of some of the
securities in the AFS portfolio.

In the risk control of the AFS portfolios, the Group has a risk
management framework that enables the estimation of the fair value
of option adjusted spreads in order to calculate the fair value of illiquid
securities. In addition, the framework consists of a 250-day credit
spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics, stress testing, and
a limit structure and early alert indicators. The objective for choosing
the 250-day credit spread VaR statistics is to measure the potential
adverse impact on the Group's reserve on an annual basis.

Currency risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are
subject to exposure limits approved by the MRC. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
profit of HK$1,499,000 (2014: HK$596,000) with a standard deviation of
HK$4,731,000 (2014: HK$3,654,000).

—E-RFRH
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(b) TIBEMREE (&) (b)
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting

period were as follows:

2015 2014

HER Equivalent in %% AR®  HftE% A e AR®  Hpgk 3
BETT HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total usD RMB Others Total
BEBE Spot assets 111,198,523 38,183,176  21,605506 170,987,205 92263766 61239085 7,190,989 160,693,840
RERR Spot liabilities (76,375,425) (48,600,920) (14,800,852)  (139,777,197)  (66,363801)  (46790020) (15063212)  (128,217,033)
BHE Forward purchases 194,529,305 149,392,813 18,648,643 362,570,761 162866061 126678463  2566,889 314811413
EREH Forward sales (230,469,964) (138,031,495) (25,149,766)  (393,651,225) (193736,878) (137239255)  (15105431)  (346,081,564)
HERTE Net options position 4,153,786  (3,702,140)  (470,109) (18463) 6632868  (4035342)  (2482,148) 115378
5/ (R)EFE Net long/(short) position 3,036,225  (2,758,566)  (166,578) 111,081 1662016 (147069 (192913) 1,322,034
HEEER Net structural position - 708,052 48,526 756,578 - 748417 48522 796,939

HIRRF AR E R ENRAER
EBERTH -

HNE B B SRR E DA

0 562015¢1zﬂa B BN T
SN ELAD EREET (B 1 0% FRERELABFT A
LMY NEEAKEZKRBANG
FI# 8 D 78 #5292,514,0007T (20144
B D 78 #330980007T) © EB AR IE
BEHHENERBEZELBIEME -

MR - a0 5 R T AN H A
B EI10%L REMEEM2E8T
B NFEARER 2 BREAT ST A58
ﬂﬂﬁéﬁ%292,514,0007t (20144 : G h0A
#33,998,0007T) °

(i) AEBAZZEERREZRA N
ETFENTEIA (TaiEARE
600,000,000t % J& P9 #50,000,0007T &Y
HEREMINERE) - BRFETTEBEH
9 NEERAFETLEBBERE
Fﬁi%\ﬁzﬂﬁif%ﬂ BEAEESEEKXN
Epf-Zt

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
which has been approved by the HKMA.

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

0]

At 31 December 2015, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all other
variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax for the
year would have been lower by HK$292,514,000 (2014: lower
by HK$33,998,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses
on the translation of non-HKD denominated financial liabilities
compensated by foreign exchange gains on the translation of
non-HKD denominated financial assets.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against
other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax for the year
would have been higher by HK$292,514,000 (2014: higher by
HK$33,998,000).

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in USD, excluding
structural foreign exchange positions of RMB600,000,000 and
MOP 50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the HKD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest rate risk exposures from both its banking and
trading books. The Group’s ALCO oversees banking book interest
rate risk arising from the interest rate profile of the Group's assets
and liabilities. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by
repricing risks, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks,
yield curve movements and risks from embedded options, if any. The
Group’s management of the interest rate risk in the banking book
is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for the
Banking Book. Moreover, the Central Treasury unit of TMG manages
the interest rate risk in the banking book according to the policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, especially interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities ("NTL"). The Group has
also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which the fair value
changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair value changes of
the hedging derivative instruments offset each other.

The Group's MRC oversees interest rate risk arising from the interest
rate profile of the Group's trading portfolio. The Group’s management
of the interest rate risk in the trading book is guided by the Market
Risk Policy. The Group mainly uses the present value of a basis point
movement and VaR to measure its interest rate risk exposure in the
trading book. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
average daily trading profit and loss from interest rate positions was
a gain of HK$425,000 (2014: HKS56,000), with a standard deviation of
HK$4,368,000 (2014: HK$2,895,000).

—E-RFRH
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of three major currencies (HKD,
RMB and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates
(the midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and
liability. Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates of
these three major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points on the
repricing dates because of the current low level of interest rates. The

& impacts on both the on- and off-statement of the financial position
items are included in the assessment.
2015 2014
BT AR E BT AR E
HERBYET T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usD
F = F200EE 2SS Impact on earnings over the next
HRKI12E A H 12 months if interest rates rise by
BFg & 200 basis points 177,654 24,553 6,759 298,410 10,360 190,371
MF = - 58200AEES  Impact on economic value if interest
HEEBENZE rates rise by 200 basis points 108,990 18,589 400,908 (208,347) 21372 314,960

ZBRESMERARAREEZBN - KIEE
ERBENNEXABREREL - BEONTY
IRIBIA TMREETT -

() WEEREHELNERHRFITES

(i) #EAWEHEMED)

(i) @Xﬂxxﬁﬂtiﬂ\ =
%b_\ /?/1_4\ j—l\ &

- AREHE

(v) BERLEEEZHMAENGTRANEEFH

|—‘—|§ o

N

GRS B NIEC RSN SRR NS H&A&i%%ﬁ B
ENERESHRZEREDTHER
F AR ©

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

() Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates.

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.

(i) No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are on
a floating rate base.

(iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be
repriced the next day.

Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the
interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.
2015
AR
(RfE%) 3EAKE 1EMLE

3 months EE:S Z5F F5tE

or less Over Over SERE Non-

#%  (including 3 months 1year Over interest

Total overdue) to1year  to5years 5 years bearing

BRI ERTr EMTR  E¥TR  E%Tn  BRTx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

gE

BERERIT  PRET
REME RBEN ST

ERT - PRETREM
ERBENERRBR

Assets

Cash and balances with banks, central
banks and other financial institutions

Placements with and advances to
banks, central banks and other

financial institutions

20,322,734 20,094,179 - - - 228,555

30,390,640 26,660,315 3,730,325 - - -

RHRBREE Trading assets 4,277,539 115 104,971 107,741 - 4,064,712
ZEERRBTREMBEE  Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 173,479,925 154,125,548 13,465,092 638,419 11,375 5,239,491

AHRHERS Available-for-sale securities 53,151,487 27,876,147 7,067,528 15,207,671 2,901,178 98,963
ETEEE Non-interest bearing assets 912,643 - - - - 912,643
EEAE Total assets 282,534,968 228,756,304 24,367,916 15,953,831 2,912,553 10,544,364
=t Liabilities
BT REMESRIEED Deposits and balances of banks and

FRkar other financial institutions 2,658,301 1,421,803 - - - 1,236,498
BPRER Deposits from customers 220,683,709 183,144,689 28,221,222 436,658 - 8,881,140
RoBBAE Trading liabilities 3,555,614 - - - - 3,555,614
BRITRHE Certificates of deposit issued 10,388,272 2,874,891 7,329,004 184,377 - -
BEER Loan capital 8,766,217 - - 8,766,217 - -
HiaE Other liabilities 12,365,023 2,203,892 - - - 10,161,131
FitEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 63,627 - - - - 63,627
REAR Total liabilities 258,480,763 189,645,275 35,550,226 9,387,252 - 23,898,010
FRPBEZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 39,111,029 (11,182,310) 6,566,579 2,912,553

—E_REH 4
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

2014
MEAR
(BEAH) 3EANUE E N
3 months kS B5F it
or less Over Over ST E Non-
@E (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year to 5 years 5 years bearing
BT A%t  A%Tr  A%Tr AT A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERAET RRBIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMSRBENET banks and other financial institutions 20,676,200 20,416,904 - - - 259,296
TEERAT - RRBITREM  Placements with and advances to
SRBENTRRBR banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 43,893,840 41,002,310 2,891,530 - - -
RHBLEE Trading assets 3,291,332 - - 8,348 - 3,282,984
BPERRBHREMEEE  Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 153,872,296 139,426,543 9,643,556 630,527 22,191 4149479
AfHERES Available-for-sale securities 26513380 10403876 4412862 10,878,905 729,515 88,222
FtREE Non-interest bearing assets 893,823 - - - - 893,823
BEAR Total assets 249140871 211,249,633 16947,948 11,517,780 751,706 8,673,804
af Liabilities
RITREM S BEER Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 4129401 595801 2,151,149 - - 1382451
BPER Deposits from customers 188929559 134,856,793 42931913 2,094,703 - 9,046,150
RpPREE Trading liabilities 2,974,807 - - - ~ 2974807
BETRNE Certificates of deposit issued 14156976 8334539 5408873 413,564 - -
BHRER Loan capital 8,754,408 - - 4603713 4,150,695 -
HiaE Other liabilities 7,777,093 2,106,681 107,833 - - 5562579
FFHERRE Non-interest bearing liabilities 167,278 - - - - 167,278
2fE8E Total liabilities 226889522 145893814 50599768 7,111,980 4150695 19,133,265
FZGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 65355819 (33,651,820 4405800  (3,398,989)

142] HIERTT (B BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from
the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when additional
costs are involved in disposing of a position in the market under
abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these conditions, the
bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider than usual or there
could even be an extreme lack of buyers. As a result, the Bank will
incur extra costs to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the ALCO and
endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group’s liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is established by the Chief Executive Officer and
approved by the CRMC as the governing body responsible for
formulating and implementing policies, strategies, guidelines
and limit structures. It also identifies, measures and monitors the
Group's liquidity profile to ensure current and future funding
requirements are met. In addition, the ALCO monitors a set
of GRI for liquidity risk. Regular liquidity stress testing, which
includes general market-wide, institution specific and combined
(general market-wide and institution specific) stress scenarios,
is conducted by the Risk Management Group, and the stress
results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO to assess the current
risk tolerance level and the level of the liquidity cushion. A
Contingency Funding Plan is established which sets out the
strategies for addressing liquidity stress situations. The plan
contains a set of policies, procedures and action plans, with
clearly established lines of responsibility, as well as invocation
and escalation procedures. This plan is reviewed and approved
by the ALCO on a regular basis.

—E-EEH
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central Treasury
Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is supported
by other functional departments, including the Financial
Management Group and Risk Management Group, which
monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports to the
management, committees and local regulatory bodies. Limits
for net cash flow per different time bucket under normal and
stress scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding
and liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover,
limits, triggers or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators
such as the liquidity maintenance ratio and loan-to-deposit
ratio. Both quantitative (e.g. statistical methods) and qualitative
measures (e.g. liquidity index/premium) are employed to
identify and measure market liquidity risk. Limits and alert levels
related to market and funding liquidity risk are monitored
and reported by the Financial Management Group or Risk
Management Group to the ALCO to review and approve on a
regular basis. The Audit Department performs periodic reviews
to ensure liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements, taking
into account their different liquidity risk characteristics. The liquidity
situation of overseas branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity maintenance ratio. To
achieve this, the following liquidity management processes are in
place:

- Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement

- Factoring potential drawdown on irrevocable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk

- Monitoring the liquidity maintenance ratio, loans-to-deposit
ratios and maturity mismatch ratio against internal and/or
regulatory requirements

- Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core
level of the deposit portfolio

- Projecting the liquidity maintenance ratio regularly for the short
to medium term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and
to ensure the ratio is within statutory requirements and internal
triggers

- Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix

- Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product

- Maintaining high-quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities as a cushion against unexpected
funding needs. The amount of high quality liquid assets that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests

—E-RFRH
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
- Maintaining access to the interbank money market

- Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis

- Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under credit
downgrade events. Based on the positions at 31 December
2015, in the event of a 2-notch downgrade, the impact on the
Group's additional collateral requirement is minimal

- Maintaining a contingency funding plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from the core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through the
issuance of certificates of deposit ("CDs") so as to secure a stable
source of term funding. Deposit tenor mix and debt maturities
are regularly monitored to ensure there is an appropriate funding
maturity mix.

The Group started monitoring the liquidity maintenance ratio as
stipulated by the Banking (Liquidity) Rules from 1 January 2015, which
superseded the liquidity ratio required by the old framework. An
appropriate level of liquidity maintenance ratio has been maintained
to ensure that the Group could handle sudden drains in market
liquidity due to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2015, the
Group's average liquidity maintenance ratio was 61.8% (for the year
ended 31 December 2014: the liquidity ratio was 64.9%). The Group
always maintains sufficient cash and liquid positions as well as a pool
of high-quality assets as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in
stress scenarios.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

RIzER T HIEIEL BB E R B EST (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
NTEBHESMEAEEREZESGHE The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
RS THRAZE - at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual
maturity date.
BN 5 A% EEHRS A seft 2 BAT As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HE - MEPFERAIFEEER B IR deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
WA TR - Bt - S43EA the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
TIMERBHTESRKESRENEE - dates of future cash flows.
2015
BAME 3EAMLE 1ENE
E3f8A 383 E5fF
3 months 1year 5 years
IEE  EAR orless  orless  orless  SEMNE 5]
B% Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over  BARH
Total ondemand ~ 1month  Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Syears  Undated
BETT RBETn BT B¥Tn B¥Tn  A%Tn  A¥Tn  A¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
EE Assets
BEREHT  hRiET  Cashand balances with banks,
REMEBEENEE  central banks and other
financial institutions 20,322,734 19,497,228 - - - - - 825506
EHIT RRBTREM  Placements with and advances to
SRUBHEZRBZT  banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 30,390,640 - 13,676,427 12,983,888 3,710,950 19,375 - -
RARBEE Trading assets 4277539 4,063,223 - - 104972 107,855 - 1489
ZPENRETR Loans and advances to customers and
HthiRE other accounts 173,479,925 7,436,056 16,628,249 21,172,559 55,805,399 47,306,695 20,032,579 5,098,388
AfHER R Available-for-sale securities 53,151,487 - 6061956 19,828,798 7,877,265 16,387,328 2901178 94,962
e IE Tax recoverable 33,114 - - - 33,114 - - -
EIPASAE Undated assets 879,529 - - - - - - 879,529
BEAE Total assets 282,534,968 30,996,507 36,366,632 53,985,245 67,531,700 63,821,253 22,933,757 6,899,874
g% Liabilities
RITREMEEEES  Deposits and balances of banks and
ERkER other financial institutions 2658301 1224132 1,075,188 358,981 - - - -
REEH Deposits from customers 220,683,709 56,845,356 67,657,425 67,288,712 28455557 436,659 - -
RoFREE Trading liabilities 3,555,614 3,555,614 - - - - - -
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 10,388,272 - 512625 - 7784632 2,091,015 - -
AEHE Current taxation 61,910 - - - 61,910 - - -
HitBE Other liabilities 12,365,023 - - - - - - 12,365,023
EHER Loan capital 8,766,217 - - - - 8766217 - -
EHABEE Undated liabiities 1,17 - - - - - - 1717
SEAE Total liabilities 258,480,763 61,625,102 69,245,238 67,647,693 36,302,099 11,293,891 - 12,366,740
BE-REEE Asset:liability gap (30,628,595) (32,878,606) (13,662,448) 31,229,601 52,527,362 22,933,757
—E-RFR
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(&)
2015
BAME 3EAMLE 1ENE
E3f3R 383 E5F
3 months Tyear  Syears
EE  1ERR or less or less orless SENE  EHH
% Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over RHE
Total ondemand  1month  Tmonth  3months 1year S5years  Undated
BETT RBETn BETn B¥Tn B¥Tn  A%Tn  AETn  A%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
A Of which:
BENENE Certificates of deposit held
~BHARMEEES  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 12,375,180 - 1,884,026 5978789 3,904,679 607,686 - -
BE#S Debt securities
—BHARSAREE - included inrading assets 212,827 - - - 104972 107,855 - -
—BHATMHERS  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 22,261,330 - 863,438 651,226 2,065,847 15,779,641 2,901,178 -
22,474157 - 863,438 651,226 2,170,819 15,887,496 2,901,178 -
BRIERE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAER SRR - included in non-trading
BETERES debt securities issued 10,388,272 - 512625 - 7784632 2,091,015 - -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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37 SRIEAKRERE (&2) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESAMRERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() WRESRTHEELAEERBESW (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(&)
2014

WEANLE 3EAMLE  1EME
23(HA R B5F

3months 1 year 5 years
fEBEE AR or less or less orless  SEME  EHE
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover Over S5
Total ondemand ~ Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated

ARt RYTr R%Tn A%t ARt BMTn A%Tn A%Tn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

EE Assets
BARERIT PRIBT  Cash and balances with banks,
REMSREENET  central banks and other
financial institutions 20676200 19,518,657 - - - - - 1,157543
BT RRBTREM  Placements with and advances to
SREENEIREBT  banks, central banks and other

financial institutions 43,893,840 - 2533026 15597146 5763668 - - -

REREEE Trading assets 3291332 380780 - - - 8348 - 2,004
REERRBIR Loans and advances to customers and

HfiE other accounts 153872296 6017897 19324567 16249567 45876028 42282806 19933040 4188391
AHRNEES Available-for-sale securities 26,513,380 S 1839021 6987625 3831146 12493724 1277642 842N
A[EEE Tax recoverable 2775 - - - 2775 - - -
BERREEE Undated assets 891048 - - - - - - 891,048
EESE Total assets 29140871 28817334 43696614 38834338 55473617 54784878 21210682 6323408
8f Liabilities
BIREMAHMESN  Deposits and balances of banks and

BIRER other financial institutions 4129401 1381394 595819 2152188 - - - -
RERT Deposits from customers 188929550 49079142 65420892 49636226 22449123 2344176 - -
T5EREE Trading liabilities 2974807 2974807 - - - - - -
BREIGRE Certificates of deposit issued 14,156,976 S 6928 3761041 6861723 2904930 - -
REFIE Current taxation 162,951 - - - 162,951 - - -
EnEE Other liabilities 7,777,093 - - - - - - 7777093
EHER Loan capital 8754408 - - - - 4603713 4150695 -
EIAAMAE Undated liabilties 4307 - - - - . . 437
BE4E Total liabilities 26889520 53435343 66645993 95549455 29473797 9852819 4150695 7781420
EE-8FEE Asset-liability gap (24618009) (22949379) (16715117) 25999820 44932059 17,059,987
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(&)
2014
HANE 3EANE  1ENME
E3fA EE BF
3months 1 year 5years
ABEE  1ERRN or less or less orless  SEMLE B
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover Over S5
Total ondemand ~ Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
BSTT  AETR BYTr BETT BETr A%Tn B%Tn  B%Tr
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
He Of which:
BENERR Certificates of deposit held
~BHATRLEES  -included i available-
for-sale securities 4104439 - 199478 129880 2288728 1486353 - -
EBES Debt securities
-BiARSEREE  -includedin trading assets 8348 - - - - 8348 - -
~THAABEERS  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 14.217,767 - 257,649 249646 1425459 11007371 1277642 -
14,226,115 - 257,649 249646 1425459 11015719 1277642 -
BRITENE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAER R - included in non-trading
BETERES debt securities issued 14156976 - 6928 3761041 6861723 2904930 - -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
2 A EFEREIR 547 (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities
NTHRBRBRSTERAEEN S The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash
MEBENEREAURESOINBRZHET flows of the Group's financial liabilities on the basis of their
BB RITIRBERE © earliest possible contractual maturity.
2015
AR L 3EANE 140
£3fAA 353 333
ey r ] PEEE EAR 3months 1year 5 years SERE
Gross Repayable Within or less but orless but orless but Over
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overTmonth  over3months over 1 year 5 years
EBTR BB BRI EBTn AR ARt L AW
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FOIRAMLEEE  Deposits and balances of banks
e R and other financialinstitutions 2673470 1,224,132 1,085,875 363,463 - - -
ERHR Deposits from customers 21785733 5684535 67823836 67736773 29362947 16,821 -
BETERE Certficates of deposit issued 10,562,435 - 518,699 11,298 791,537 2,120,901 -
BRER Loan capital 10,392,448 - - 45,048 450,961 9,896,439 -
fHeRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,040,603 - 328,805 286,586 346,709 986,204 92,299
247,454,689 58,069,488 69,757,215 68,443,168 38,072,154 13,020,365 92,299
014
WAL EARE L
EXEl 33 555
RenEsE PEER AR 3 months 1 year 5 years SEE
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cash flows ondemand Imonth  overTmonth  over 3months over T year 5 years
ARt BT BB BB BBTL BT A8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
RIREMSEERE  Depositsand balances of banks
ERRER and other financialinsitutions 4150140 1,381,394 595,898 2172848 - - -
ZEER Deposits from customers 190,209,519 49079143 65,032,160 49942437 23,158,777 2457002 -
BETERE Certficates of deposit issued 14,508,082 - 648,676 3858283 6,994445 3006678 -
BRER Loan capital 10,894,029 - - 45071 451192 6,387,441 4010325
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 1,806,063 - 90,030 218,286 307,138 1,130,089 60,520
221627833 50460537 66,906,764 56,236925 30911552 12,981,210 4070845
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37

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as
a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated by its
local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group maintain
three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios: Common
Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and total capital
ratio. In accordance with the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules
2014 which came into effect on 1 January 2015, the Basel Il capital
buffers, namely capital conservation buffer ("“CCB") which is designed
to ensure that banks build up capital outside periods of stress and
countercyclical capital buffer ("CCyB") which is built up during periods
of excessive aggregate credit growth, came into operation. Such
would be gradually phased in from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019.
The HKMA announced a CCyB ratio for Hong Kong of 0.625% from
1 January 2016 and 1.25% from 1 January 2017. Basel Ill framework
also introduced a leverage ratio as a non-risk-based backstop limit, to
supplement risk-based capital requirements. It provides for a parallel
run period from January 2013 to January 2017 and such parallel run
will be used to assess whether the proposed minimum ratio of 3% is
appropriate, with a view to migrating to a Pillar 1 requirement from 1
January 2018.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek
to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance
sheet exposures.
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37

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts ICAAP, which assesses the capital add-on
required for Pillar 2 risks and hence the minimum capital requirement.
Moreover, as part of the capital management policy and to ensure
capital adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning annually,
which takes into account the strategic focus, future business growth
and regulatory requirement. The plan covers the issuance of capital
instruments, if required, to ensure the Group's capital ratios are well
above their respective internal monitoring metrics and regulatory
requirement. Regular stress testing is performed to ensure that the
impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk profile and
capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an insight into
the potential impact of significant adverse events and how these
could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group'’s policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2015 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, and are well above the minimum
required ratios set by the HKMA.

—E-RFRH
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance Framework
("ORGF") to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report operational
risk. The ORGF encompasses every member within the Group and is
governed by policies and guidelines which document the minimum
requirements to ensure a consistent approach to manage operational
risks. Operational risk management ("“ORM”) relevant matters are
under the oversight of the Credit & Risk Management Committee,
a subcommittee of the Board of Directors, and the Operational Risk
Management Committee ("ORMC"), a committee led by management.
Implementation of ORM plans and tools is driven by the Group’s ORM
department and senior management of business and support units.

Management of operational risk

Day-to-day operational risk management lies with our business and
support units and the Operational Risk and Control Head ("ORCH") of
each unit assists the respective heads in this regard.

The ORM department assists management in meeting their
responsibility of understanding and managing operational risk and
ensuring the development and consistent application of operational
risk policies, processes and procedures throughout the Group.
Business and support units are responsible for monitoring operational
risk and tracking Key Risk Indicators in their areas. The ORM
department monitors the Group’s overall operational risk exposures
and ensures that all material risks are promptly and appropriately
escalated to the ORMC, CRMC and senior management of the Group
for their attention.

The Audit Department examines and evaluates the adequacy and
control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing basis.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management (continued)

Management of operational risk (continued)

A web-based learning programme on operational risks is required
for all new joiners and an annual refresher of ORGF is compulsory
for all staff. Training workshops led by the ORM department are
offered to business and support units with the objectives of raising
operational risk awareness, familiarizing with the ORM tools and
enriching employees’ understanding of the ORGF along with their
roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This is further reinforced
by strong, visible management support which encourages staff to
embrace and pursue operational excellence.

Risk assessments are conducted on all outsourcing activities and new
product programs.

Tools and methodologies
The Group identifies, measures, monitors and reports on operational
risk through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk Self-Assessment ("ORSA") is a tool to identify,
measure and assess the level of risk and effectiveness of control.
ORSA has been rolled out across the business and major support
units under the guidance of the ORM department. ORSA
leaders are nominated by the management of each business
and support unit to conduct self-assessments bi-annually and
identify key risk factors in their daily business and support
functions. Each key risk factor is assessed and quantified for
financial impact, in terms of the estimated loss impact of each
occurrence and estimated number of occurrences. In addition
to the financial impact assessment, non-financial impacts
including customer, regulatory and reputation impacts are also
assessed taking into considerations of both likelihood of the risk
materializing and severity of the impact.

- Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") are statistical tools that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early
warning signals for management’s monitoring and action.
Through regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential
operational control weaknesses can be identified at an early
stage and addressed promptly.

KRIs are developed at two levels, namely Group and Unit level.

—E-EEH
Annual Report 2015

155



156

B TSR MY

37

(e)

THERERE (&)

BIERBER (4)

TAR* (&)
I BE M ERRISE S LB
BRI - A BSR4
BEE S RIS R - S EPIEEN
IBEAREERELSBELE /X
BRI AZHRREETMRE -

- MBRERREFORERGERE
W E RRHIRERRIBRBIRER
FER- BRULRLE  RIERREEE
HERAAESHHEHFELAERST
I (R AR B8 0 Al IE N FRBD HE e iR PR BE
ERRRAT - (R —EATRBEE
FE - FHHmERRBIES ARG
EHWmE  AEREEE  BIERR
ERZEE® FENMEAREEZE®
[EREANRERREN  RERE
YERR B o M AR I 1O 3R 2 AR AE
AR A B EFIRE RSB RIRERRE
AREW - WHERFEAREIRE T
EEHE

- BREEAREEEXRRATEENREIR
BRERRSZE  BRIERRBRAGE
EREZ2RBEFREEME - lEX
REAZXBRIERREEZEE NT
B TEFERXEEMARER
RE® FREERBREEREN—
2 - KEREREE RS TRBRIRE
R TTIEN - R ERR
EHRBRNEZON  RERAE
REWRINEE ABENER -

AEENRERERREESMAFETIA
RREFRREEZE S  FERARERZ
BEeMEEZEeRAKE - AEEE T
BICRRTHRER R EIERBIAR A HIHH
)

AEENRERRAHES —EEAMEYE - A
AR B TRARERREEX - LiE
B - B - R RIER - JERME
WEEEBGRIERR  WEBFBEENH
ty o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Tools and methodologies (continued)
Unit level KRIs are developed by the respective units, and are
monitored and tracked for progress towards completion of
applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds are established for each
BU/SU KRI by reference to the business’ willingness to accept
the risk level of each risk factor.

- Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralized
operational loss database called the Incident Reporting
System (“IRS"). Through the IRS, the ORM department ensures
all material operational risk incidents are registered, properly
investigated, with corrective and preventive actions promptly
executed according to agreed timelines. The IRS data serves
as a centralized database to produce regular reports for senior
management, ORMC and CRMC review of impact of significant
incidents and monitoring of the operational risk trends. An
escalation protocol is in place to ensure that operational risk
incidents with significant impact are reported to the regulatory
authorities, if deemed necessary.

- Operational Risk Dashboard (“ORD”") provides management with
an overview of the key operational risk issues, the progress of
the ORSA reviews and KRI evaluation results. This information
is submitted to the ORMC and CEO on a monthly basis and
relevant summarized information is submitted to the CRMC on
a quarterly basis as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures the
implementation status of the ORM initiatives, contains analyses
on the trend of operational losses, highlights incidents that have
a material impact on the Group, and lists incident details during
the month.

With the endorsement of the long-term ORM road map and tools
obtained from the ORMC, CRMC and Management Committee ("MC"),
the Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framework in line with industry developments.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, encompassing identification,
assessment, mitigation and reporting, and thus achieve operational
excellence through continual robust operational risk management.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure legal
and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated. Any
significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported as
appropriate by either the Legal or Compliance function to the Group's
Audit Committee, the CRMC or senior management.

The Legal Department (“Legal”) and Compliance Department
("Compliance”) have been key partners in the business, providing
legal and compliance advice and support to all parts of the Group and
working with business and support units to ensure relevant controls
are in place. In 2015, Legal and Compliance were actively involved
in new product launches and new business initiatives, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
arrangements as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's
business. Legal and Compliance will remain heavily involved in
monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.

Strategic and reputation risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and functional units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.
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38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

H Bt —RE2EEN - AAEER
BETIIAABEBRETE

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:
R2015F12A31 BN R A EET R
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2015 using
REEER TEMFEA
BZ12A318 RRTHHRE T BEN3E
NAEE (E1R) BENYE (%38)
(%)  Quoted pricesin (528) Significant
Fairvalueat  activemarketfor  Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BB BETR BETR
BEHDAEETE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& Assets
REBEERE Trading assets
—EKES - Debt securities 212,827 212,827 - -
-REER - Investment funds 1,489 - - 1,489
~NETEMERLERE - Positive fair value of derivatives 4,063,223 20311 4,042,912 -
4,277,539 233,138 4,042,912 1,489
MEHEES Available-for-sale securities
—RHENENE - Certificates of deposit held 12,375,180 398,108 11,977,072 -
-BEH(BEMNERES - Treasury bills (including
ZE) Exchange Fund Bills) 18,420,015 18,420,015 - -
-EEES - Debt securities 22,261,330 21,350,010 907,320 4,000
—ERES - Equity securities 94,962 71,447 - 23,515
53,151,487 40,239,580 12,884,392 27,515
57,429,026 40,472,718 16,927,304 29,004
=1 Liabilities
Ry5BREE Trading liabilities
EUERE VN - Negative fair value of derivatives 3,555,614 607 3,555,007 -

158) APERIT (BIB) BRAH
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38 DAEEFENESHMIA (&) 38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(@) UXAREBEENERIA (&) (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
() EBRFTELIEE (B () Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)

W014F 12831 BRI A A BEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using

RREEE TEM*EA
HZ12R31H RRTHHRE EthEER BROEE
DAEE (1) BRe3R (£38)
(@%)  Quoted pricesin (F2%) Significant
Fair value at active marketfor ~ Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BEMDNEETE Recurring fair value measurements HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ReMBEE Trading assets
—EEES - Debt securities 8,348 8348 - -
-RERS - Investment funds 2204 - - 2204
~FETEMERABE ~ Positive fair value of derivatives 3,280,780 13442 3,267,338 -
3,291,332 21,790 3,267,338 2,204
MHEHERES Available-for-sale securities
- HENERE - Certificates of deposit held 4104439 203432 3,901,007 -
-BEH(BEMNEES - Treasury bills (including
ZE) Exchange Fund Bills) 8,106,952 8,106,952 - -
- EH%ES - Debt securities 14217,767 12,683,088 1,530,679 4,000
-ER#ES ~ Equity securities 84,22 60,650 - 23572
26,513,380 21,054,122 5,431,686 27572
29,804,712 21075912 8,099,024 29,776
af Liabilities
RHABEE Trading liabilities
~TETANBAREE - Negative fair value of derivatives 2974807 1375 2,973,432 -

# 2015128318 Kk20144E128318
B AR BERBAMSIHAMEL 2
B EERN TR T ANER -

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were
no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level 1
and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

—EmER 150
Annual Report 2015
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(a)

A

BEFENESHIA (&)

URABEFIRNERTIA (&)

(ii)

N IEENETE
AEBATHHEBRFAELABEIN
RBREANBELHEEAABENE
21

ENR—2EZR - TEEERT S
BHTISRE CREHE) -

FR - RBEABENRE 2 HER
Ao MANBIERERAMEALT
LESRMENEIE - LERMBENT
H BReMIAE: iEETARE
BT 5 S BT 45 3R 8 Sk s AR R A
ETAEIFRERMSISNTSHRE -

ER—REEEMIFAERGSIN
WABBE2HERN - AEERAE
E—EZ EEENE ABIERIE
BENEE - ILEREENTIR 1
BRERRTSIRGHEERITAN
MIZHRE - EEFFRELIFAEER
ZHABHBR  UNRRTASRTA
ZERZER]

RERMS LETRXINEREENR
ERABRENSRESLHPRE
NEFEEAAEE - MERAEEAM
ERMTAENAAEERNEERIRAMG
BEERN - AERASEFHREMR S
MEFHRENMEMAERE - AR
HERANRKNEABIEEEER
LA R REER X FREEMEA
EHMURETRE - EHEHRMIN
PERE R o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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38

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
either directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes financial
instruments with quoted prices in active markets for similar
instruments; or quoted prices in markets that are considered
less than active for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation technigues using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one or more
significant inputs that are unobservable. This category includes
financial instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect the differences between
the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.



B TSR MY

38

(a)

A

BEFENESHIA (&)

URRBEEFIRNERTIA (&)

(if)

(iii)

KA EBEMET (&)

AEERETTRIANHDABER
A& ® NG ETEMMEME Kie
H SRAUSZUESHAIBEMSEH
I N R E IR R K A
Ao BRERMELNNGE ARER
A RRMHEA_ Em O ES MR E
% SNEBEROTAE TAME BN
HNZ B HTHE T AR K58y o 981 -
A BB Al R T S (B AR M A SR
BORRTRMERNTS - Y EFE
A5 B E 4 A —RIE AT A TR

RUsmMTEMHEREATE @
ZESEr B E B A SIS - B
SRTABELBMERE  HlaBo
RBEBHETETR  R— 2G5
BHENES ZEHFAHAETEMmMIE
AERNSEENEEESX  TEEHE
EN YNGR -t k- ok
BEER TAHRENEBRTEREH
FEHMARKRRERE  REUFED
W%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁquﬁﬁﬁﬁémﬁ
IHEE o

EIBRAORA BIEH EAN

HERN

Valuation techniques
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(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

)

(iii)

IEMFABENHE

Significant unobservable inputs

Determination of fair value (continued)

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine the fair value of financial instruments are from
interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable market
data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
involvement of management’s judgement and estimation.
Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives
like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default
and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FABENBEN
PABEFEZHRE
Fair value
measurement sensitivity
to unobservable inputs

KEES R WRE
Investment funds Broker quote

1% 8 75

Debt securities Discounted

cash flow model

E bt
Equity securities

(7%)
See note below

REERRIABEFENERES K
BREARHHEES  AXWIEREEMS
HETEE - IRREZ RN TS - &
NARBENGERRFRE SR/ B
N EEREMARNSN - Bt - £5
BEEMIFTEROBBRLTERA o

REenEFRRIY

TERTIR & M A FH /R [ fe 1) 2
Forecasted cash flows and
estimated risk-free rate

Not applicable

See note below

NE R NEM

Not applicable

mER A REE L
SIBEENAREER
Significant increase in the
estimated risk-free rate
would result in a lower fair value

TEH
Not applicable

(§F)

Note:

Equity securities under level 3 fair value measurements are generally
classified as available-for-sale and are not traded in the active market.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is estimated on the
basis of an analysis of the investee's financial position, results and other
factors. Accordingly, it is not practical to quote significant unobservable
inputs.
—Z-IFH
Annual Report 2015
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(@ HUAAREEFIRNESHIA ()

(iif)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AREBEFENERTAE (&) 38

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

FEIERNANEEFEER (B) (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
TRETEIBAN @/‘E BEEBREYN The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to
NEARERFER E BT, the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:
RERBEE MLEES ok
BE Assets Trading assets Available-for-sale securities Total
REES BEES ERES
Investment funds Debt securities  Equity securities
BETR BETR BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2015%1818 At 1 January 2015 2,204 4,000 23,572 29,776
A Purchases - - - -
B Sales (463) - - (463)
REEREINER Gains or losses recognised in the (252) - (57) (309)
income statement
R2015E12A318 At 31 December 2015 1,489 4,000 23,515 29,004
REERTRBNEE Total gains or losses for the year inclued
REREBERT in the income statement for assets held
ERNERLE atthe end of the reporting period recorded in:
-BEMEISHER - Gains less losses from dealing in - - (57) (57)
foreign currencies
~EERFARERGAEE - Gains less losses from trading securities (252) - - (252)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(@ HUAAREEFIRNESHIA () (@)
(i) FEIFRAVNAEEAEEN ()

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

EERBR
BabiRE
DA BENES
Securities

designated at fair

RFMEEE  valuethrough EHEEH B
BE Assets Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EHES EBES EnEs
Investmentfunds ~ Debtsecurities ~ Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT  AETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2014F1 818 At 1 January 2014 2,675 50277 4,000 23,647 80,599
EA Purchases - - - - -
EH Sales (568) - - - (568)
78 Settlement - (51,137) - - (51,137)
RERERBRNER Gains orlosses recognised in the 97 860 - (75) 882
income statement
120145124318 At 31 December 2014 2,204 - 4,000 23572 29,776
REERNEENEEREAMN  Total gains or losses for the year
BRRTPEINERER included in the income statement
for assets held at the end of the
reporting period recorded in:
-BEMNEWGRER - Gains less losses from dealing in - - - (75) (75)
foreign currencies
-BEQSRBESRERER - Gainsless losses from trading securities 97 - - , 97
~ETARBBRENRM AR - Net gain from financial instruments - 860 - - 860
BEzERTARNS designated at fair value through
profit or loss
—E-RFR
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(@ HULAEEIIRNERMIA (&) (a)
(v) HEZMIFAEEMERENERETE
7T757w¢§ff:;ﬂﬁﬁ/gibﬁ7%§
SEAMeRIAEAREBEME

FHE’JTMETETEP@ & - WIRKIR
—J&E%iﬁﬁm%%@ﬁ NRERHEE

RonBEFENHBRERNERES
i@‘fﬁﬁ’]%iﬁﬁé&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’]@ﬁﬁﬁ

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to the
parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value

IF ~ B10%89I1TEE) - to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.
20155128311
31 December 2015
el TS AL Ath 2 T Uk 22 e AR
Effect on Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
E=pil (FF) B (FF)
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETR BETR BETR BETR
EE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHABEE Trading assets
—REES - Investment funds 149 (149) - -
it EE Available-for-sale securities
—ERES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EnESs - Equity securities - - 2,351 (2,351)
2014% 124318
31 December 2014
a5 A R H 2 mE S kR
Effect on Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
BH (AH)) BH (TF))
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BB BB BB BT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RORBEE Trading assets
—-REER - Investment funds 220 (220) - -
AL EE Available-for-sale securities
— B EE - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—ERES - Equity securities - - 2,357 (2,357)
BAREERELLAEHRTAEN AR The Group believe that their estimates of fair value for the

Ffﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ BRI A K
BRRAIBEEH TN AN AR (EETE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

above financial instruments are appropriate but the use of
different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different
measurements of fair value.
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MABEFENERTIA (F)

UAARBEUANMIENSHTIANAAEER
BREBHAN BB ITAEBUARE
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MAREBENESLAIHHERS
(BRTHRLEFOAHEEEBES
BHES) EMBEHRERANARAEER
518

Notes to the Financial Statements

38

(b)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair value at 31 December 2015 and

2014 unless otherwise stated.

(i

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair value of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions is mainly priced at market interest rates,
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying value
approximate the fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which is
mainly repriced within 3 months, equals their carrying amount.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in
the financial statements.

—E-RFRH
Annual Report 2015
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38 AAEEHENESRMIA (&) 38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(b) UARBEUMNIRNERMIAENAAEE (b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
(&) value (continued)
(i) ZEEE (i) Financial liabilities
BRTMEIN FTEeEREEHINUNAR All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at
BEZY|IERE L ZE2015F12H amounts not materially different from their fair value at
31H R2014F 2R3 HEM AR BESD 31 December 2015 and 2014, except as follows:

RIAKHEREEAR

2015
RESHE
Carrying AREE FR F28 E3R
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

BETRT A¥TRT BETR  B¥TR  BETrR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

SRIAE Financial liabilities
BT GE Certificates of deposit issued
—3ERGRE - Non-trading 10,388,272 10,390,538 - 10,390,538 -
BERER Loan capital 8,766,217 9,088,390 9,088,390 - -
19,154,489 19,478,928 9,088,390 10,390,538 -
2014
RESE
Carrying ArBE F1H EpF FE3IR
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT IT BT BETIT BETIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cHMEE Financial liabilities
BT FGE Certificates of deposit issued
—3ERFGRE - Non-trading 14,156,976 14,189,910 - 14,189,910 -
BBER Loan capital 8,754,408 9,062,529 9,062,529 - -

22,911,384 23,252,439 9,062,529 14,189,910 -

166] RIERIT(EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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39 $THEI A 39 Derivatives
FRTETEEEEEBEMEETEFES The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers as
R EREmEARERKEEBTN—HEE risk management products is an integral part of the Group's business
Bip - EREERABEERMEN IR & activities. These instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own
T At eREEREASEBARSAERNT exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability management
HREkR - AEBMANEETETAERET process. The principal derivative instruments used by the Group
EMEXBBANEL - TERBINIZHNT are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts, which are
ATE - AEBHWEHRIGRNEENITET primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates in exchange-
BAEH - AEBRZ AFTERPHERME traded derivatives. Most of the Group's derivative positions have
HHhREBERAMBAENETIRRR - 3t been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these
FFERMmME  STETEBYEGARBIEEEX and other trading positions. For accounting purposes, derivatives are
FREEH o classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.
(@ FTEITAENEREH (@) Notional amounts of derivatives
PTHETHARERE AR ZEEBEEERIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENVEEL - BLT the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
HENBHREERERARTHNRZ S5 - WK amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
FEREEE o transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
NWTRASESEFZMAETANEREHE The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
M - significant type of derivative entered into by the Group:
2015 2014
B BEH
e Hi(es BB Hf(RE

Heldfor  #{FEH) Fatc) Heldfor  F{EEE) ek

hedging Others Total hedging Others Total

BETTT BETT BETT BT BEFT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ERfTETHE Currency derivatives
ERR S Forwards - 103,314,066 103,314,066 - 139,047,500 139,047,500
BER5 Swaps - 303,121,333 303,121,333 - 178135526 178135526
YN Options purchased - 18142414 18,142,414 - 38197706 38,197,706
it Options written - 12,281,406 12,281,406 - 34182827 34182827
FIRFTEIR Interest rate derivatives
BEHRHERS Forwards/Futures - - - - 38,771 38,771
BEZ5 Swaps 13,300,077 21,113,130 34413207 10304627 42181334 52485961
=PN: il Options purchased - - - - _ _
B HE Options written - 77,501 77,501 - 77,541 77,541

13,300,077 458,049,850 471,349,927 10,304,627 431,861,205 447,165,832

—Z_HER |67
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39 {TEIHE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Derivatives (continued)

(@) fTETAMERSE (&) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)
REYBEAEENERTIAGEEESR Trading includes the Group's proprietary positions in financial
HRITREFPINR SN ETHTEE ME instruments, positions which arise from the execution of trade orders
EMER  URAHHEMR G ITEMFE from customers and market making, and positions taken in order to
HEHE o hedge other elements of the trading book.

(b) FTETIEMNAABEREERMSMESE (b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

2015 2014
=ERR EERR
MAEE AAEE mEYE AnfEE AnEE IESEE
BE 8  Creditrisk- BE BfF  Creditrisk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount

BB BRI BRTR BETT BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIERGTETAR Interest rate derivatives 297,187 48,692 184,471 322,251 52,102 306,374
EXR{THETA Currency derivatives 3,766,036 3,506,922 4,695,947 2,958,529 2,922,705 6,651,175

4,063,223 3,555,614 4,880,418 3,280,780 2,974,807 6,957,549

EERRINESFEEEER (R17E (BX)
RAD BEAEAFZEMNENR  WHUARR 5
HFEOM B R BB R TEHE - 5k
B B & MR EA R RN R0%E150% T F
(20144F : 0%Z150%) » 0 HE &« A X &k H
HTE T B S L8 BH0%E150%T % (2014
F 1 0%E150%) ©

AREBRBEFRNRI LSS FREELR
BE - Et - BAEERRIALREIR o

168] RIERIT(EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(HEE19) (FffE26) (FftzE19) (FiE26)
(note 19) (note 26) (note 19) (note 26)

The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
adequacy, and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(2014: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
from 0% to 150% (2014: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate
and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year, and accordingly, these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.
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39 fT4£TIA (&) 39 Derivatives (continued)
(0 EEAHHIANTEIANAAEE (c) Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments
AT RAEERFELTRENITE T ARE The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for
mERBI S AR BEME - hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group:
2015 2014
AREE DREE DREE AREE
BE afE BE BfE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BYETT B¥TT BEETFIT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS "000 HKS "000
RSN Interest rate contracts 283,213 45,501 301,925 37,532
AR EEETIEERERERES TETEF Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used
REESBENARBEAMSIEES)Mm to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets
IR EME YN R4 B o or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.
(d) FTEIEMNSRTEH (d) Remaining life of derivatives
T%%T'Erfﬁ$$.*E?Fﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁﬂ*g%” (Tﬁfi’q\# The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
HH E’Jﬁ@‘—l—m HHRMEE) ElomMTAET derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping, based on the
HESEIN - remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period:
2015 2014
BRTEHNEELHE BRTFHENEESR
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of
1ENRE 150 E
B55 E5F
#BE 1FRUT Overlyear  5FHUE BE 1FIUAT  Overlyear  SEBE
Total 1yearorless to5years Over5 years Total Tyearorless  to5years Over5years
BETT BETT B%Tn BE¥Tr A%Tr  BETr AT B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIZFTET R Interest rate derivatives 34,490,708 18,206,145 15,014,457 1,270,106 52,602,273 30,383,764 18,341,458 3,877,051
[ERFTETA  Currency derivatives 436,859,219 421,542,081 15,317,138 - 389563559 289,581,827 99,981,732 -
471,349,927 439,748,226 30,331,595 1,270,106 442,165,832 319,965,591 118,323,190 3,877,051

—E_FHER 169
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Notes to the Financial Statements

40

(a)

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 2,711,185 4,583,293
W SEBNABIAE Transaction-related contingencies 606,593 681,837
W5 BEBNEIEE Trade-related contingencies 1,770,553 2,046,934
RAIEHTF R Forward forward deposits placed 387,507 -
B dE Other commitments:
— SRIT A AR EUH — which are unconditionally cancellable
LI ERAR or automatically cancellable
EEM R R due to deterioration in the
] 8 EEUH creditworthiness of the borrower 91,804,970 84,205,202
—REBABETIFHAT — with an original maturity of not more
than 1 year 1,317,952 1,395,605
—REEARE 1 F A L — with an original maturity of more than 1 year 2,217,391 1,476,055
100,816,151 94,388,926
EE RIS Credit risk-weighted amounts 2,889,596 3,466,453

HBEEBERAERRAEERRNTA 2%
EHER - EREMREHEENEREA
£ B RHEREAR FEATPRHEERE
BRSEOEERRER - ANEREHE

BHARBIRRELERPIERMEAERR
MER - HRBERAEEIHSNRS
B MaHeRLIFRRRRRERE

RIS = 5 R\ N S 5E A9 2 B hAE /B
0%Z150% (2014%F : 0%ZE150%) T o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2014: 0% to 150%).
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(b)

(c)

(d)

REEE - BEREAE (&) 40 Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)
BREE (b) Capital commitments
20155124318 - ABEAMERZERE Capital commitments for the purchase of properties and equipment
R X RAE B T 2k NI B B Y B AR IR outstanding at 31 December 2015 not provided for in the financial
LU statements are as follows:
2015 2014
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERERRTA Authorised and contracted for 168,035 51,209
FAERIE (c) Lease commitments
2015128310 » BIET ARG EEHE At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
ERTHI AR ERSEENT ¢ under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
2015 2014
BET T BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
WEBEN LT B - Property leases expiring:
14X Within 1 year 251,393 234,981
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 606,765 654,638
5% After 5 years 136,723 219,610
994,881 1,109,229
REEEN U THBRER Equipment leases expiring:
15 R Within 1 year 4,658 1,429
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 16,091 1,149
20,749 2,578
AEERBSAHEN T RAEZEYER The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
L EREYE N RENSASEH— %A under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
120F » AN EEAR SR EA IS - LA one to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
HHRESTERSERS - are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
BERLERENREEE (d) Contingent liability in respect of legal claim
MR2015% 2014512 A31H » AEBTIEHE The Group is not involved in any legal action that would be significant
ST {a] B B L B A SR R BB K S/ 2B Sk to the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
#1789
—Z-hFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41

42

43

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2015, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which is
incorporated in mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes in
assumptions can have a significant impact on the financial statements
in the periods when the assumptions are changed. The application
of assumptions and estimates means that any selection of different
assumptions could cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group
believes that the assumptions that have been made are appropriate,
and that the financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee about
the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant
accounting policies and estimates, and the application of these
policies and estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 38 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the fair value of financial instruments respectively.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management determines,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management regularly reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of when
a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgement-based by nature, so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.

—E-RFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price, the
fair value is estimated using the present value or other valuation
techniques using current market parameters.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which were not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

HE BRI AREBER
Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning on

or after
— BT AEB R ERDE 165 R(CE BT EANDE - Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, 1 January 2016
38 —EEE XM EMEE Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation
—( BBV BREEADESR R TA ] ~ HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
—(BERMBREEIDE 1555 BEF ZENERES  — HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
B A customers

AEE A EELETHERRAEME
MFE - 2IBRI AL BR(EBMHREE
A) 9% [T A SN REBBERM
BIERTH AR B R & KA M BHRR & X
TEREANTE -

R201459F - BEE R R G EM(EE
MEmEER) B EMT A KEX
IS 2 R B R IR CE B B S s &
A1) #3905 [T A HANFE] I8
REREERRBZOENTE  SREE
BAE RS EEHHIRE o

TREEND B ERIRANEEERA
EBEAREAGNBRSRENE  HeREE
BEABHRA - AFEEFARMEER
BRIEAABEFAREE - TRAED
DERB@HIE  ERESERASER
R H AR BERENEE  HRA
Hip 2w

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”).

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, which is the comprehensive standards to replace HKAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ("HKAS 39"),
and includes requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The classification and measurement of financial assets will depend
on the entity’s business model for their management and their
contractual cash flow characteristics and result in financial assets
being classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") or fair value through profit or
loss. The classification of financial liabilities is essentially unchanged,
except that, for certain liabilities measured at fair value, gains or losses
relating to changes in the entity’s own credit risk are to be included in
other comprehensive income.

—E-HFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI, lease receivables, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition,
allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees)
is required for expected credit losses ("ECL") resulting from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (“12 month ECL").
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or
provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument (“lifetime ECL").

The assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition is performed for each reporting period by
considering the probability of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument, rather than by considering an
increase in ECL. As a result of the final HKFRS 9, the recognition and
measurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking
than under HKAS 39.

The general hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge
accounting, creating a stronger link between it and risk management
strategy and permitting the former to be applied to a greater variety
of hedging instruments and risks.

The classification and measurement and impairment requirements are
applied retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the
date of initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative
periods. Hedge accounting is generally applied prospectively from
that date.

The mandatory application date for the standard as a whole is 1
January 2018, but it is possible to apply the revised presentation
for certain liabilities measured at fair value at an earlier date. The
Group is currently assessing the impact that the rest of HKFRS 9 will
have on the financial statements, but due to the complexity of the
classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting
requirements and their inter-relationships, it is not possible to quantify
the potential effect at this stage.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with
revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty for revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a
customer obtains control of good or service and thus has the ability
to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’” and HKAS 11, ‘Construction
contracts’ and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier application is
permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of HKAS 15.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the
Group.
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of the Bank

(@) Statement of financial position of the Bank

45 Statement of financial position and reserve movement

2015 2014
Bt & BEF T BT
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
EE Assets
Re RIERTIT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks,

HEfh e m#EngT central banks and other financial institutions 20,817,264 22,390,107
EIRIT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hfih & RIS 0915 30 K B ) central banks and other financial institutions 29,175,150 40,146,716
REBBEE Trading assets 4,266,920 3,269,566
BPEERMBFI N EMIREE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 159,295,802 138,604,532
AHBEES Available-for-sale securities 51,618,890 24,892,476
I EPNGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,156,104 9,576,105
B A FIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,245,418 1,275,000
LEYSE Y] Property and equipment

— A — Investment properties 155,261 151,713

—Hub W EREE — Other property and equipment 644,376 662,698
] B8 Tax recoverable 31,655 -
EEFRIRE = Deferred tax assets 34,830 14,424
EEAS Total assets 274,441,670 240,983,337
EEREE Liabilities
RIT R EM© SR Deposits and balances of banks and

GEREET other financial institutions 2,482,052 4,129,401
BPER Deposits from customers 215,262,570 182,295,968
REFBEARE Trading liabilities 3,543,084 2,932,304
EBITERE Certificates of deposit issued 10,388,272 14,156,976
ZHATR I Current taxation 52,945 157,610
REHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities - 2,658
Hib B & Other liabilities 8,627,288 7,271,501
RN NG/ S Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,579,782 268,480
BBEAR Loan capital 8,766,217 8,754,408
=R Total liabilities 251,702,210 219,969,306
s Equity
f& A Share capital 31(a) 7,566,271 7,566,271
(e Reserves 45(b) 12,863,021 11,137,592
BERATRRNEREHE Total equity attributable to

equity shareholders of the Bank 20,429,292 18,703,863
BoMER T A Additional equity instruments 2,310,168 2,310,168
fERBEE Total Equity 22,739,460 21,014,031
EaRBERRE Total equity and liabilities 274,441,670 240,983,337

REIERERDN2016F3A21HEEE &%

JEIRAETEAD

B4

Margaret MAN
HITEFFREITTHAER
Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

178] HIERIT (BEIFR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

March 2076.

BRUE

KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen
HITEFFRE ETTHAAH
Executive Director and
Alternate Chief Executive Officer

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Statement of financial position and reserve movement
of the Bank (continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank

Details of the changes in the Bank's individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

VIS k& REEE BOMBEIR
EftlfE  EfRE Total  Additional
BRE  RHEE  EXEE  -REE Property Investment  BEEF  reserves equity  ERBE
Share Share Capital General revaluation revaluation  Retained (W instruments Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  note31(c)) (& /mote32) equity
ESTn  ABTn  ABTn BMTn BETn BETr B¥TR B¥TR BT R%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201581818 At 1 January 2015 7,566,271 - 2,903 100,000 55 79493 10,955,141 11,137,592 2,310,168 21,014,031
BE2015EMEREE : Changesin equity for 2015:
ERHE Profit for the year - - - - - - - - -
EteElEER Qther comprehensive - - - - - (107,568) 2,001,564 1,893,996 - 1,893,9%
income for the year
REEREUSEAE  Total comprehensive - - - - - (107,568) 2,001,564  1,89399% - 189399
income for the year
KRE—HER  Distribution payment for - - - - - - - - (168567)  (168,567)
FHZE ATI Capital Securities
EaREEN Transfer from retained profic - - - - - - (168567)  (168567) 168,567 -
R2015%128318 At 31 December 2015 7,566,271 - 2,903 100,000 55 (28,075) 12,788,138 12,863,021 2,310,168 22,739,460
R014E1 /1R At 1 January 2014 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 55 20641 8,066,273 8,474,802 - 15758143
HEWMERERED - Changes in equity for 2014
EEAE Profit for the year - - - - - - 29BB8 29713038 - 29BB8
Et2EhREE Other comprehensive - - - - - 56,852 - 56,852 - 56,852
income for the year
TEEZENEEE  Total comprehensive - - - - - 682 2913238 303009 - 303009
income for the year
BIEI—ERES  Issue of ATI Capital Securities - - - - - - - - 2310068 2310168
TN -GER Distribution payment - - - - - - - - (84370) (84370)
BHZE for AT1 Capital Securities
014F3A38BEZ  Transition to no-par value 282930 (282,930) - - - - - (282,930) - -
EEENE fegime on 3 March 2014
BaRBEN Transfer from retained profit - - - - - - B4370)  (84370) 84370 -
0148128318 At 31 December 2014 7,566,271 - 2,903 100,000 5 79493 10955141 11137592 2310168 21,014031
M HRRAE 46 Approval of financial statements

KRB WK N2016F3A21BEEFET SR
JE IRAE T

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016

“E-OFRH
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RIEEZM T EER  Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) EXERIEE (A) Capital information available on the Bank’s website
REERITERR)RA  AEEBEHEAS For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
ERERNBERREE —EANKTER information relating to the Group's reqgulatory capital and other
WEEEARATARHEMBEEREE - HEAKE disclosures are published by using standard disclosure templates as
A LA 38 48 K77 B9 48 Uk www.cnebinternational. specified by the HKMA and they can be viewed in the Regulatory
comA EEE BRI R | —EiREE - Disclosures section of our Bank's corporate website at www.

cncbinternational.com.

180 RIERIT (EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

Capital adequacy ratios ("CARs") are complied in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are computed
on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries
as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk

and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating

operational risk.

2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ZERE—FRER Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
TERHE instruments and reserves
BEZTEERN L BARE Directly issued qualifying CETT capital instruments
—REXRTERBEBERD®E plus any related share premium 7,566,271 7,566,271
IR m A Retained earnings 13,878,124 11,895,973
W= Disclosed reserves 299,644 478,938
HMBREERENTERE —REX CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 21,744,039 19,941,182
EERE—RER  EZERE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
BEHIBEERIELRIAS EF5E Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 36,312 27,788
EAEZARBEEENEGED Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
EERBRE(CmEENIER on fair valued liabilities (264,986) (255,928)
EEEEG T REEY M EER Cumulative fair value gains arising from
2 An BB the revaluation of land and buildings
(own use and investment properties) 111,327 108,282
—RREBITRG EEE B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,571,972 2,172,126
BREATAETAEAGHH Debt valuation adjustments in respect of
BEEAHEERE derivative contracts 3,127 5,536
ETERE—RERETREEREEE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 2,457,752 2,057,804
EBRE-REX CET1 capital 19,286,287 17,883,378
B —REX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital
B —REXBHE Total AT1 capital 2,313,467 2,313,467
—REX Tier 1 capital 21,599,754 20,196,845
ZREXRTEREHE Tier 2 capital instruments and provisions
GERMERR Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus
TR % B any related share premium 6,657,912 7,277,935
HEEEGHFE T EREEYT Reserve attributable to fair value gains on
EAN AR BESNMNEGRHEE revaluation of holdings of land and buildings 50,097 48,727
BIER ZHFER—RIETTRR Collective impairment allowances and
rEREEER regulatory reserve for general banking risks
B eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,110,287 1,942,736
HBRRIEAT N R E R Tier 2 capital base before deductions 8,818,296 9,269,398
ZHRER  EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ZREREETERIE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
ZHREXR Tier 2 capital 8,818,296 9,269,398
ERMEEE Total capital 30,418,050 29,466,243

—EHER I8
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(i) ERnEEE

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(ii) Risk-weighted assets

2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZERRK — Credit risk 169,230,743 156,635,831
—iERE - Market risk 4,659,900 4,913,000
— B E R — Operational risk 10,364,613 9,042,513
184,255,256 170,591,344

(i) EXFTELEER (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2015 2014
— LB —RE R X — CET1 capital ratio 10.5% 10.5%
—— BN = —Tier 1 capital ratio 11.7% 11.8%
—{BE R R — Total capital ratio 16.5% 17.3%
(iv) BFEEREEALLRUREBHERFERLR (iv) Capital conservation buffer ratio and countercyclical capital

RRIRITE(EAR)RA - 2015F 0P EEE
BARLEEF% o N - 2016F1 A 1HATE
BANERAESBRAEBRNPBEREEE
7R Bt 2 F03E A A9 JCCyBEL X (B R & B A K
EHEBEAEEERMNEEIHFIREBREER
R IE HECCYBRY B B A ) B0% °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

buffer ratio

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the capital
conservation buffer ratio is 0% for 2015. Moreover, the countercyclical
capital buffer ("CCyB") ratio and the applicable JCCyB ratios (meaning
the capital buffer levels as announced by regulatory authorities of
relevant jurisdictions for the purpose of implementing the CCyB under

Basel lll) for Hong Kong and non-Hong Kong jurisdictions respectively

are 0% before 1 January 2016.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(v) Capital instruments

The following is a summary of the Group's CET1, Additional Tier 1

Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.

2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
RITBRITHEERE—RELRTE CET 1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
LAk Ordinary shares:
BT R GUE EiAR7,283,341,176F% 7,283,341,176 issued and fully paid ordinary shares 7,566,271 7,566,271
2015 2014
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B —REXES Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
T{E300,000,0003 JTHY Kk B A Undated non-cumulative subordinated
IF2BEREEARES capital securities with US$300 million 2,310,168 2,310,168
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—REATA Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEEAT Issued by the Bank
— 2020 B HiR (B iE — Subordinated note due 2020
(BRME{E : 500,000,0003= 7T ) (nominal value: US$500 million) 4,132,209 4,150,696
—F2022F B HiR B =& - Subordinated note due 2022
(BRTEE : 300,000,00037T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,306,392 2,291,268
—R2024F R BR1E (B E — Subordinated note due 2024
(BRMEIA : 300,000,0003<7T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,327,616 2,312,444
8,766,217 8,754,408
—E-RFR
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(B)

(vi)

Capital adequacy (continued)

Leverage ratio
The Bank is required to disclose its leverage ratio calculated on a
consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries.

2015 2014

B 12 %

Leverage ratio

7.3% 7.6%

RKAEE BRTENRERRNESREER
AR A R AT A BB E AR
B IRMDETTER ©

REEmH

BRBEFRIZIBASN - AN 2 B 75 ¥ 5 1O P B B 7%
BRI ST & MRS ERER - 558
AR et ms BnEEmMsNEZDRIE

RAEBERT RAGTFANEAT - Ttk
ERRBEATRATETHEAT - 315

T

S ERDIERTRBGRITE(ER)RA)
F282) )5 ETHHMBATIAE AR
BETERITRERTT R X » BRI E —

oy
EWTE

(vii)

The detail relevant disclosure of the leverage exposure using the
standard templates as specified by the HKMA can be viewed in the
Regulatory Disclosure section of our Bank's website.

Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation
basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the
consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that
the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter
includes the Bank and only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which
are discussed as follows:

The HKMA has granted approval under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking
(Capital) Rules for the Bank to calculate its CAR on a solo consolidated
basis instead of on a solo basis in respect of the following subsidiary:

2015128310
At 31 December 2015

EEAE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
HWEARER Names of subsidiary TEEK Principal activities Total assets Total equity
EREBERAA Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —RIBRE - Mortgage financing 1,407 1,350

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B) EXFZR(E) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
(vii) HZEEWRE (&) (vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)
S—AHE - ATEBEGRTTE(ER) &A1) On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the
FE3CE LTI B A TIAGRE ERTE Banking (Capital) Rules to calculate its total capital on a consolidated
HRER basis in respect of the following subsidiaries:
2015% 128318
At 31 December 2015
BELE BREE
Total assets Total equity
BT BRI
WEAREE Names of subsidiaries TEER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
BREBERAHE Carford International Limited -MERE - Property holding 34,348 11,619
H{ZIRTEE (B BRAR  CITIC Bank International (China) Limited — 317 - Banking 12,323,761 1,765,814
HERBREER D CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited —RBEL - Insurance broker 128,599 122,871
CKWB-SN Limited CKWB-SN Limited —BITEE - Issue of structured notes
ZENRE and investments - -
CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited —#{TREZEH - Issue of subordinated notes - -
EREANBERAT HKCB Finance Limited —HBlEE - Consumer financing 6,345,395 633,711
FEBRBYBER AR Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited — 275 £ - Inactive 3,942 3,862
RERTET)ERAT The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited —REEhR% - Trustee services 4,875 3,480
EBREBERLA Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —RiERE - Mortgage financing 1,407 1,350

RERBARBOMBRRIEHE FTEDN
EEMBHAENEE  MRFEE LA
GRITE (BN RRD M EECIRTTEIGH))RE
B BRI TR ERNAIFER B 2 150
AT - Bt - IRIBCIRITR (B ) R AIDE3
By AT A ARG EERE AR T
BEATHBARR :

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

20158128318
At 31 December 2015

EEAE BREE

Total assets Total equity

BETT BETT

HWEARER Names of subsidiaries TEEK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$’000

BBEANEIT(RIBA)BRLQF  The Hongkong Chinese Bank —RIBART - Nominee services 4 4
(Nominees) Limited

RERIT(RE)BERAA The Ka Wah Bank —REARS - Nominee services 2,618 -
(Nominees) Limited

Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited —REARE - Nominee services _ -

FEBSERARAA Sino-Allied Development Limited ~ —R B %7 - Inactive 10 10

—z-nEn
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)

At 31 December 2015, no subsidiaries were included within both

the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of

consolidation but for which the method of consolidation differs.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory

scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope

of consolidation.

FIIRMENME AR R (C) Average liquidity maintenance ratio

2015 2014
HE12B31 B IEFEFEO RIS E Average liquidity maintenance ratio for the year ended 31 December*  61.8% N/A
HENANBUEFEFORBESHE*  Average liquidity ratio for the year ended 31 December* N/A 64.9%

* RITEHTEH2015F1 1B E ZRE
BEEFHLEER(TIMR])BOFHE - FHR
B A L R FHE B AR Bt HA R
A RB AR L R B - On
RE T AT RATEZH B A AERE E
T8 o MBI AR 2015512 A31H
W RREE LS AE2015F1 1B RIFE
Fri AN RE LR - Bt © ]
FBETHARS TS FRREE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Bank is required to disclose the average value of liquidity
maintenance ratio ("LMR") for the reporting period concerned only in
respect of those months that fall on or after 1 January 2015. The LMR
is being calculated based on the arithmetic mean of the average value
of its LMR for each month during the reporting period, which is also
computed on the consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain
of its subsidiaries as required by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
("HKMA"). The LMR under Banking (Liquidity) Rules for the year ended
31 Dec 2015 is not directly comparable with the disclosure of average
liquidity ratios for previous reporting periods concerned that precede
1 January 2015. Comparative figure has not been provided where the
current year is the first year of disclosure.
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(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

Ao definitions used by the HKMA.
2015 2014
R (g =giiwiil)
EFERR EFPEFR
BNEH BREH
EFERR BRE BEFERK AR
BHAE % of gross BB % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto  and advances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
BETT covered by BT covered by
HK$’000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
ITHEew Industrial, commercial and financial
-DEER ~ Property development 13,160,361 66 5,594,282 40
—MEKRE — Property investment 19,535,863 69 17,016,206 82
—SEE - Financial concerns 6,742,829 40 8,429,777 46
—RE&L - Stockbrokers 3,511,763 45 771,179 51
—HBRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 17,915,876 79 16,727,330 85
— Gl - Manufacturing 7,493,445 35 7,167,172 46
— B B RE - Transport and transport equipment 3,492,239 22 2,163,895 40
—IREETH) - Recreational activities 954,102 95 273,556 81
— AR — Information technology 14,755 100 15,202 100
—HEth - Others 7,987,067 50 4,663,393 80
A Individuals
—BE[EEBHEFZ]- - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[LAERELERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
HEREEERERER Participation Scheme and Tenants
I MEFTER Purchase Scheme 8,760 100 10,756 100
-BEEMEEDENE — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 12,404,811 100 11,296,562 100
—(ERERH - Credit card advances 426,795 - 357,418 -
—Hth - Others 7,850,685 85 6,830,531 85
EBEG AR Gross loans and advances for
BERkRes use in Hong Kong 101,499,351 67 81,317,259 74
ZE5mE Trade finance 11,061,512 24 15,691,063 18
TEEALIMERE Gross loans and advances for
ER B TaE use outside Hong Kong 57,308,875 43 53,711,824 38
EFERRBIEH Gross loans and advances to customers 169,869,738 56 150,720,146 55
—E-RER

Annual Report 2015

187



188

REECZMHAYBEER
(BRBrRIZIRSN - 1 AE# R EEAL)

(D) E—HoMBEFERRBR(E)

HEFPERRBREEE 0% AL - WiRE
MEFAED BORETPEREBROMN
LI

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the

individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of

the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:

2015

ERERER

EBH

HEEF HEBE

ARER ERRBX &5 4 Impairment

HRBH Impaired HEERE HEERE charges

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective onincome

and advances advances to impairment impairment statement

to customers customers allowances allowances during the year

BT BETT BETT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MERE Property investment 33,267 30,297 - 2,755 805

HENRTEES Wholesale and retail trade 183,784 162,104 47,931 89,632 147,575
EEEASMERRE  Gross loans and advances for

B KRBT use outside Hong Kong 471,315 425,472 65,451 162,470 42,676

688,366 617,873 113,382 254,857 191,056

2014

FRERER

/(%)

HREER

RERP Impairment

BHEP ERRBH {5 &a charged to/

BERRBHK Impaired BEERE BEEE  (written back)

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective onincome

and advances advances impairment impairment statement

to customers to customers allowances allowances  during the year

BT BT BETT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WERE Property investment 8,278 11,601 - 1,128 780

HENRTEES Wholesale and retail trade 3,048 3,048 743 56,097 15,377

BHME Trade finance 128,344 150,865 61,715 35,270 (2401)
EEBLSMEME)  Gross loans and advances for

B R BRATE use outside Hong Kong 579,992 412,503 92,561 169,997 98721

719,662 578,017 155,019 262,492 112477

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)
RihE D AT By geographical areas
2015
BHEF
BEFER RREX REEF 85 mE
k& Overdue  EBRRBH HEEE REEE
Loans and loans and Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  advancesto and advances impairment impairment
customers customers  to customers allowances allowances
BETR BETR BETR BT BETR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N5 Hong Kong 86,650,263 237,088 1,068,869 214,739 169,661
R A Mainland China 54,285,267 445,244 229,450 55,424 132,566
EJE United States 2,506,895 67,850 68,722 24,011 2,123
Giplb Singapore 12,325,345 - - - 69,809
Hit Others 14,101,968 29,238 139,644 2,558 25,217
169,869,738 779,420 1,506,685 296,732 399,376
2014
BEHEP HERFE

EFPER  EBERRER  ERREBR E1 oe)
=T Overdue Impaired B A%
Loans and loans and loans and Individual Collective
advances to advances to advances to impairment impairment
customers customers customers allowances allowances
BETIT BETT ABETT AT AT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 78,018,916 298,667 402,842 67,166 153,841
B A Mainland China 50,439,354 538,048 301,405 93,692 147,056
xH United States 1,485,746 - - - 5,075
N Singapore 10,826,984 - - - 40,176
Hit Others 9,949,146 7,406 7,391 3,022 27,516
150,720,146 844,121 711,638 163,880 373,664

BRI B EFHMERED -
WEERRARER - AEXSHEFRENTH
BRM— T ERERNEERRGEEER

THIBERARIAS -

BHER MR E B HBBEEARER -

REERNBRRERERNEELREER
BREMS ERIFHEHER -

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the

counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a

claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the

counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for

more than three months.

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which

exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

—E-HFR
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(E) Overdue assets

BHEFERRER Overdue loans and advances to customers
2015 2014
EEFER WEFER
kBMEE Kashiazs
BAE EPR
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
B¥TT  advancesto BT advances to
HK$’000 customers HKS$'000 customers
B KRBT The gross amount of loans and advances has
B amEpE - been overdue for periods of:
—3ME A LA F=6fE A — 6 months or less but over 3 months 300,763 0.18 357,292 0.24
—6R AR =14 — 1 year or less but over 6 months 155,289 0.09 276,202 0.18
—1F UL - over 1 year 323,368 0.19 210,627 0.14
779,420 0.46 844,121 0.56
BIEEEEABERNEI  Secured overdue loans and advances 503,026 618,750
EIEH A E RS Unsecured overdue loans and advances 276,394 225,371
779,420 844,121
BEAERAHEZ R Market value of collateral held against the
BRI RTE secured overdue loans and advances 895,993 722,497
BB BE 2 Individual impairment allowances made 120,281 152,749

BERBERB ZERNBR  BERS LN
EEBH  YRNFHEBINAEE - Q5iER
HIRRIE - ISR B2 5% - EEREBRAR
FEFCAM - BERANDRIRERER - &
S HEREBEERAE BN EREE -
Mt ERFFERE LB R - IR5IfER
HABRIE -

WRAMERRBR - ATRENAKREE
ERSEEREENEYYE - ARERSA
Ha TR -

(@ ZEEMMERAINFERESLTSE
HiEE REE -

b HEEARMSZHERE-_FMEHEH
BIR R EEE ©

© AITHEERNERBERERENER MA
RITEWEEENER) -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the
overdue period in question.

Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances, is ‘Eligible Physical Collateral” which mainly comprises real
estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:

(@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
reasonably established and verified.

(b)  The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset.

(c)  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
without impediment.
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BREE(E (E) Overdue assets (continued)
BHEFERRBR(E) Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)
(d)  ANMTEETERATEREE T - (d)  The Bank is able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
R2015F 201412 8318 » K& There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
P 4580 HR AR 3@ 38 A A SR1T R E A & @l which were overdue for over three months at 31 December
HEREEASK o 2015 and 2014.
REHER (F) Rescheduled loans
2015 2014
HEFEX HEFER
REBHasE ek
BOE AR
% of total loans 9% of total loans
BT and advances BETIT and advances
HK$'000 to customers HKS'000 to customers
KEREN Rescheduled loans 12,390 0.01 659,530 044

REHE TR ERAR SN 2 L
NINEE R T R BEK ERENG S
EVEATR B BT HE IR AR SR B
S —MRAEEER - FPEAERSHIR
HigmBAtE @318 A 3 2 MR () IE ey
HRZASK

MR2015F KX 20145128318 » AEBEWED
BEHMRIT R EM S B E K -

Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue
for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note

(E).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were rescheduled at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

mE&EE (G) Repossessed assets
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Bt ABFERLEK Included in loans and advances to customers and
M EMERIE A other accounts 136,267 27,667

B EE A7 2015512 A31 HELEIE E /T
A -

The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
assets at 31 December 2015.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(H) International claims

International claim refers to the sum of cross-border claims in all

currencies and local claims in foreign currencies determined as based

on the calculation methodology specified in the HKMA's Return of

International Banking Statistics. International claims are on-balance

sheet exposures of counterparties which attributable to the country or

segment, after taking into account risk recognised transfer, constitute

to not less than 10% of the aggregate claims are disclosed as follows.

International claims as required by the HKMA in 2015 mainly involved

changes of reporting basis and the categorisation on the types of

counterparties, and accordingly the disclosures reported for the year

of 2014 were not directly comparable.

2015
FESRITFAAMERE
Non-bank private sector
FRIT
SRS FEHE
Non-bank AKE
$R1T BEHHEIE financial Non-financial PR
Banks Official Sector institutions private sector Total
BT BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREER Developed countries 9,182,883 7,470,058 481,653 3,171,510 20,306,104
BEEP O Offshore centres 9,036,668 723 5,669,452 50,694,275 65,401,118
HApFE of which Hong Kong 6,603,086 156 5,189,936 26,955,846 38,749,024
BREATARE Developing Asia-Pacific 54,758,834 243,011 7,810,185 30,989,466 93,801,496
Hrh AR A of which mainland China 49,280,348 90,394 7,810,185 29,342,270 86,523,197
2014
RITREM
TR

Banks and NEHE
other financial  Public sector Heh k]
institutions entities Others Total
BT BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBLAINE KR Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 52,628,231 100,162 51,177,858 103,906,251
H A A of which mainland China 47,098,571 93,619 38,969,292 86,161,482
H A of which Singapore 160,305 621 10,218,723 10,379,649

192] HIERTT (EIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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() RHEH () Mainland Activities
Wi EKEEAEBEHIERITIHEFHH Mainland Activities are mainland China exposures to non-bank
A E R A IE o I TIIRIE S E RS AH counterparties and their categories and the type of direct exposures
BWEIMINTZEBENREEZERR 28 defined by the HKMA's Return of Mainland Activities. Comparative
REDHE » M2014F12A31 B FEALLE figures for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been restated to
HFEENITATE ERIEREN — B align with current period's disclosure and the HKMA's requirements.

TERZENX -

2015

MERREA MR RSN
B B AR I R

On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial e
position exposure position exposure Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(1) RREUT ~ P REFTER Central government, central government-owned
B R AN B AR entities and their subsidiaries and
MeadE joint ventures (JVs) 14,129,810 316,538 14,446,348
Q) #F T - 5 BUFEBRBO#HE  Local governments, local government-owned
MEWBRRFAELE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 12,481,333 448,074 12,929,407
Q) IEAFRERRRESR PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
IR S B E A R J entities incorporated in Mainland China and their
HtBARMaERE subsidiaries and JVs 52,634,229 6,568,815 59,203,044
@) NMERELRE 1B EMD Other entities of central government not reported
RRBATHERE in item 1 above 2,429,786 191,868 2,621,654
(5) NEIE Rl BoIEA E At Other entities of local governments not reported in
7 BUTH R item 2 above 444,713 _ 444,713
6) EEEARPE AN PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
FHONRBEAR entities incorporated outside Mainland China
R AR EBR MK BIHAE where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China 13,213,268 2,343,688 15,556,956
(7) Bt R Rikig18 AR Other counterparties where the exposures are
FERITRHEF 2R considered by the reporting institution to be
non-bank Mainland China exposures 26,567,839 2,165,634 28,733,473
k] Total 121,900,978 12,034,617 133,935,595
ENHEEENEELRE Total assets after provision 282,534,968
BEESBRAEBAER On-balance sheet exposures as
MEETDE percentage of total assets 43.1%

—Z—FEWR 193
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

()  Mainland Activities (continued)

2014
BARERA BT RR R SN
) R B B R B R
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial pckec]
position exposure  position exposure Total
BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(1) RFRBUT - P REFTER Central government, central government-owned
EEE LA B AR entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures
MeaBERE (vs) 9,940,072 652,725 10,592,797
Q) HF BT - 5 BT Local governments, local government-owned
MEWBRRMAELE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 10,327,287 218,071 10,545,358
Q) EAFBERRRES PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or other
PR K 7 ) LA B entities incorporated in Mainland China and their
LENMBLARMEERE subsidiaries and JVs 43,787,342 7.909,177 51,696,519
(4) NI Ll B IR E A Other entities of central government not reported
R BATHE in item 1 above 1,264,173 50,000 1,314,173
(5) PEE LB BN EAM Other entities of local governments not reported in
177 BT #4E item 2 above 347,946 - 347,946
6) EEEARPE A PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China or
BIOMNBEIAR entities incorporated outside Mainland China
To 9o B35 N L RO e where the credit is granted for use in Mainland
China 12,267,824 2,151,472 14,419,296
(7) B b R 538 AR B A Other counterparties where the exposures are
FRITRZEF 2 RAR considered by the reporting institution to be
non-bank Mainland China exposures 15,975,333 1,624,931 17,600,264
mE Total 93,909,977 12,606,376 106,516,353
EREEENEERSE Total assets after provision 249,140,871

BERBERARRALER

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 37.7%

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(J) Capital charges for credit, market and operational risks

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

The capital charge for different classes of exposures of the Group
calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of

™~ the reporting period are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

R EERER Classes of exposure:

TR Sovereign 157,833 22,131
NS Public sector entity 18,889 12,059
R17 Bank 2,858,714 3,076,959
BHRNT] Securities firm 187,311 103,156
2 Corporate 8,197,444 6,933,772
SRREE Collective investment scheme 119 176
HEIER Cash items 149,780 120,433
EETE Regulatory retail 408,453 368,855
FEHIBER Residential mortgage loans 534,621 524,996
Hofth FE 580 HA E f Other exposures which are not past due 270,055 280,436
pan=i Past due 53,837 129,574
ISR RN BB AZERBEARIRTE  Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 12,837,056 11,572,547
BEEEEREM Direct credit substitutes 65,786 142,127
B 5 AN EIER Transaction-related contingencies 21,086 24,099
HESABAMNNEIER Trade-related contingencies 73,654 57,979
RAIEHTE R Forward forward deposits placed 15,500 -
H A Other commitments 101,650 79,646
EERHEEEH Exchange rate and gold contracts 375,676 532,094
FEEH Interest rate contracts 14,758 24,445
BEBMERS Securities financing transactions 669 571
SR EEGEFAET A Standardised credit valuation adjustment method 105,815 150,368
FHAR R INRRAIERN B EZRIRTE  Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 774,594 1,011,329
EERBBEREATE Total capital charge for credit risk 13,611,650 12,583,876
—s-nEH
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(BR%EFRIZIBRSN - LB RERL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
J) 8 > mERBERBRERERE) (J) Capital charges for credit, market and operational risks
(continued)
(i) THEEBHERER (i) Capital charge for market risk
AEBGEREREAEEAFET SRR - The Group uses the standardised approach for the calculation of
market risk.
2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FIR B R AN (EIEHRE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 128,206 279,067
SNERBRE(BEESREE) Foreign exchange exposures
(including gold and options) 244,586 113,973
TIEEKHNERER Capital charge for market risk 372,792 393,040

(iii) EBRERRHERER (iii)
REEHAEBEGERENIEIETEATE
EBIRERBRMERENXRE -

Capital charge for operational risk

The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

2015 2014

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

EBRERBNERER Capital charge for operational risk 829,169 723,401

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(K) Additional disclosures on credit risk

(i)  Creditrisk exposure
Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and
Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures
mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part
4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures

By o booked in the Group's banking book.
REE ARRBAEER DT ASEEE An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the
[BBRLAT - end of the reporting period is as follows:
2015
EAEREH
AfEENE
IEANEE
ZBBRE
_— BAER  Total exposure
ERAAEEERR REEY covered by
THGERE . aEk BERE recognised
Exposur.es.after.rfecognlsed . Jﬂ.@ﬂﬂﬁéﬂﬁ MEHE  Total exposure guarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- coveredby  orrecognised
RESE AR REFR B REFEK weighted  recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BT EMTn  E¥Tn ENTn EETx BB A%t E¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BIBHRRRA On-balance sheet
G Sovereign 31,639,666 31,730,461 - 1972915 - 1972915 - 90,795
LRERE Public sector entity 1,122,154 1,180,588 - 236,118 - 236,118 - 78,548
3847 Bank 60,585,504 85,923,850 3,138,849 34,876,727 857,192 35733919 - 26,065,246
4 BHRA) Securities firm 4,682,785 97,051 4585734 48525 2,292,868 2,341,393 947,137 -
5.0% Corporate 145,651,679 15,169,655 89,267,521  13,175731 89,292,318 102,468,049 1,140,843 1,025,811
6 SERENE Collective investment scheme 1,489 - 1,489 - 1489 1489 - -
184 Cash items 230,690 - 13,085,021 - 1,872,256 1,872,256 12,854,331 -
8 EETE Regulatory retal 6,942,340 - 6,807,502 - 5,105,657 5,105,657 161,552 -
1 ZRIBEH Residential mortgage loans 18,916,639 - 18,888,420 - 6682767 6,682,767 - -
R-cEakilEl Other exposures which are not past due
exposures 3,478918 - 3,375,683 - 3,375,706 3,375,706 30,828 -
1. aHER Past due exposures 663,388 61,900 601,488 30,232 642,736 672,968 154,548 62,035
B. SRR RS Off-balance sheet
LEMIETER S REE Off-balance sheet exposures other than
ITETARRMIN OTC derivative transactions or
BBRRENER credit derivative contracts 103,839,703 80,122 103,759,581 17314 3453632 3,470,946 2,092,598 68,590
LEMTETAR S OTC derivative transactions 397,940,373 290491925 107,448448 1973360 2,907,058 4,880,418 4,155,544 -
FHRERS Securities Financing Transactions 1690716 1,690,716 - 8,358 - 8,358 69,307 -

NRRRK BT AR ARAE

Exposures deducted from capital base

—E_HER 97
Annual Report 2015



198

REECZMHAYBEER

(BRBrRIZIRSN - 1 AE# R EEAL)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
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(K) EERREENEMNEE(Z (K) Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)
(i) FEERRREE) (i)  Credit risk exposure (continued)
2014
BAERED
SEETE
TAANRE
ZBRERE
i Total
SRTRELEER o ity
RiHEZBRE N aEk BERE recognised
Exposures after recognised RS MEHE  Toul exposure quarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- covered by orrecognised
REEE B REEHR B RETR weighted recognised ~ credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BRI A%Tr AT A%Trn #ETn BB BB BB
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS1000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BERRRA On-balance sheet
1 BR Sovereign 21403164 21,545,906 - 276633 - 276633 - 142,742
LRERE Public sector entity 662905 753,670 - 150,734 - 150,734 - 113,163
3817 Bank 69984179 87789287 4626811 36840036 1621957 38461993 - 20327579
4 BHDF Securities firm 2578906 388562 2,190,344 194,281 1,095,172 1289453 516,32 -
5.0% Corporate 119378081 2098077 85716673 955471 85716673 86672144 2,383,985 -
6 EEREHE Collective investment scheme 2204 - 2204 - 2204 2204 - -
15% Cashitems 260,118 - 9480232 - 1505412 1505412 8771837 -
8 EETE Regulatory retai 6,360,161 - 61575 - 4610682 4610682 140,717 -
9. EEREEH Residential mortgage loans 18,513,468 - 18487532 - 6562448 6,562,448 - -
0. £ kSRR Other exposures which are not past due
exposures 3,589,128 - 3505441 - 3505464 3,505,464 26607 -
1. aiEE Past due exposures 1352214 - 1352214 - 1619673 1619673 167,646 180427
B. BBAR RSN Off-balance sheet
1LEMIETARFREE Off-balance sheet exposures other
fTETEARKLIMY than OTC derivative transactions or
HBHARNER credit derivative contracts 9116504 1461278 94655316 168183 3620947 3,798,130 3834178 57499
LEMIETER S OTC derivative transactions 372006932 255184329 116822603 237214 4520335 6,957,549 7147815 -
3EFRERS Securities Financing Transactions 315,507 - 315,507 - 6321 6,321 288,900 -

MRRRR BT AR AR

Exposures deducted from capital base

EERBIEA1250%8 B A B KT
(20144 : BEOTT) ©

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The amount of credit risk exposures weighted at 1250% is nil for 2015

and 2014



REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BRHEFRIZIBRSN - LB RERL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K FERBREENEIMIEE

(K) Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)

(il XBEFEERBEE (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures
AEBFEREHIMTET R ZEERBRET The following tables summarise the Group’s main default risk
RO ¢ exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions, which are

calculated using the current exposure method:

() EXRFGEFEERBAENITET (1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.
2015 2014
EIMTE HIMTA
IARS TERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EREEERS Gross total positive fair value which is not securities
BIERNTBEBRE financing transactions 3,763,784 3,208,411
EERFANERD Recognised collateral held:
—BEBEFIAIN ~ Other than debt securities 130,044 101,544
HBREERBERMEBEENFELD  Default risk exposures net of
[ e A recognised collateral held 7,990,909 10,184,524
[ Bes A4 B EE Risk-weighted amounts 4,880,418 6,957,549
—ZT-RFRH
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(BR%EFRIZIBRSN - LB RERL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(K) EERREENEMNEE(Z (K) Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)
(i) REHFEERBEEE) (i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (continued)
Q) BXZEFEEMpERERAENE (2)  Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by
ZRFINDTAT - counterparty type.
2015 2014
BIMTE BHIMTE
IAXRS TERZS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BET T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HEDHE Notional amounts:
—R1T - Banks 313,011,182 239,445,620
—1b% — Corporates 81,581,296 126,559,765
—HAb - Others 3,347,895 6,001,547

397,940,373 372,006,932

EECZHRESE Default risk exposures:

—iR7T - Banks 5,161,223 5,062,765
— 1 — Corporates 2,752,227 5,082,252
—Hfth - Others 77,459 39,507
7,990,909 10,184,524

[R\Bs Dk B RE Risk-weighted amounts:
—iR1T - Banks 2,312,108 2,244,036
—{% — Corporates 2,499,808 4,695,547
—Hfth - Others 68,502 17,966
4,880,418 6,957,549

(i) RIKEERRZH (iii) Credit risk mitigation

AEEBBISERD - BERAIRZZE The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
FRILAIEOEATRY Rl R SH SRR R L 45 entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
e - URIREERE - and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and

agreements be legally established and enforceable.

AT —MREINERERRBRE M - Fit Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group include
- R ARG B NEMA land, real estate, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
HEMRE T o FORTE EFMRER - TR other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
MES|ARERRTE AEBIEXE respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
ARG - B0 - BUSHER - |RITHER - the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
FRREEAER - government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and

personal guarantees.

200 RERAT (BBR) AR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(L) Corporate governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank has
established a number of committees including the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Credit &
Risk Management Committee. Their composition and functions are
explained in detail in ‘Corporate governance and other information’,
which will be included in the printed version of the Group’s annual

report.

—E-RFRH
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has

complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the modules on

“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” and

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

U]

(ii)

(i)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board
of Directors of the Bank in providing independent review of, and
monitoring, the effectiveness of the Bank’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The committee comprises three
Directors of the Bank, including two Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy,
appetite/tolerance, profile and capital adequacy. It has to ensure that
the risk management function of the Bank has adequate authority,
stature, independence, management support and resources to
perform its duties. This risks concerned primarily include credit,
market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and
strategic risks. It is also responsible for approving matters relating to
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), the Reverse
Stress Testing (RST) methodology, and endorsing the recovery
planning document before reporting to the Board for approval on an
annual basis. The committee carries out its oversight function on the
Bank's risk management through various committees at the Bank’s
management level, including the Credit Committee, Non-Performing
Loans Committee, Investment Review Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee and Operational Risk Management Committee. The
committee comprises five Directors of the Bank, including two
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The committee assists the Board of Directors of the Bank to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes if necessary. It also assists
in identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Alternate
Chief Executive Officer, and making recommendations to the Board
on succession planning for Directors, Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. The committee comprises three
Directors of the Bank, including two Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(iv) Remuneration Committee

The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
remuneration-related policies and structure of the Bank, and also
the bonus pool proposed pursuant to the prevailing variable
compensation schemes. It is also responsible for approving the
remuneration packages of the Chairman, senior management and
key personnel as defined in the Master Remuneration Policy, and
compensation arrangements relating to the dismissal or removal
of Directors. The committee has to ensure that an annual review of
the Bank’s remuneration system and its operations, which includes
an assessment of consistency with the relevant regulatory rules
or guidelines, is conducted independently of management. The
committee comprises four Directors of the Bank, including three
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and
sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place the
Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that enables
the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive
manpower market, promote effective risk management, and support the
Bank's business objectives. The policy is applicable to the Bank, its overseas
offices and its subsidiaries.

In November 2015, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Master
Remuneration Policy and confirmed that it was consistent with the HKMA's
guideline.

During 2015, the Bank has also engaged an external consulting firm, Willis
Towers Watson, to review the Bank's remuneration system with regards to
market practices and regulatory requirements. It was concluded that the
Bank has an established Total Compensation Framework in line with the
market practices and the Bank's deferral mechanism is generally in line with
the principles set out in the HKMA's guideline.

—E-RFRH
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

U]

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component, and benefits.

The variable component includes short-term reward (in the form of
Performance Bonus Scheme) rewarding performance in the preceding
year, Medium-term Reward ("“MTR"), Retention Award ("RA") for
retention, and Long-term Incentive (“LTI") that motivates executives
towards increasing shareholders’ wealth.

Under the Bank's remuneration system, award of variable
remuneration depends on achievement of a set of pre-defined
and assessable performance criteria including both financial and
non-financial factors. The financial and non-financial factors seek
to link performance with remuneration and promote effective risk
management. Performance criteria are reviewed on an annual basis.

Under the Performance Bonus Scheme, threshold for payment has
been set, below which, no bonus will be payable. When the threshold
for payment is reached, a percentage of Operating Profit will be
allocated as Performance Bonus based on the schedule approved by
the Remuneration Committee. Under-performance in other financial
ratios against market will lead to reduction of Performance Bonus
pool.

Non-financial factors include compliance with external regulatory
requirement and internal audit findings. Unsatisfactory performance
in non-financial factors per advice of Chief Compliance Officer and
Chief Auditor will lead to reduction of Performance Bonus pool.

The provision for Performance Bonus will be finalized based on advice
of Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Bank’s financial position.

After the Bank’s bonus pool is finalized, the Chief Executive Officer
will allocate the pool to individual function and function heads
will in turn allocate the bonus to individual employee according to
their performance. Performance of each function and individual will
be assessed on the achievement against key measures including
financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance, growth, as
well as people and team.

The Bank's variable remuneration including Performance Bonus, MTR
and RA mainly takes the form of cash bonus while the LTl is a form of
phantom share scheme (Book Value Appreciation Rights Scheme).
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Remuneration Matters (continued)

U]

(ii)

Reward System (continued)

Under the LTI Scheme, payment of incentive is determined by the
appreciation in the Bank’s net asset value over a 3-year period and
is made at the end of the performance period. Payment is deferred
until performance results create the economic value that triggers an
award. It is designed to align employees’ reward with long-term value
creation.

A portion of variable remuneration of staff will be deferred if such
exceeds the prescribed threshold in order to align remuneration with
the time horizon of risk and to allow their performance, including the
associated risks, be validated over a period of time.

Payment of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a
period of three years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis. The
unvested deferred remuneration will be forfeited where it is later
established that there has been fraud or other malfeasance on the
part of the grantee or violations by the grantee of internal control
policies.

Methodologies and Approaches
Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

- Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

- Market Benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

- Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

- Performance Management System linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

- Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

- Human Resources Management Committee approves
recommendations on promotion of staff at designated ranks.
For certain senior positions, approval by President & Chief
Executive Officer is required.
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EERREMER Corporate Governance and Other Information

FMER(E) Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i) HIFTHMEENERMAE(E) (i) Methodologies and Approaches (continued)
FWEES  THMERNRGHEA ~  Remuneration Committee assists the Board in the design and
REBRITEHBHESS %ﬁ@ﬂ? B operation of the remuneration system. The Committee held 2
F015FRITTRAEEHE - HTNEE meetings in 2015. Members of the Remuneration Committee
EXEERNITHIENITES REE are Non-executive Directors of the Bank and are paid Directors’
BExHE - fee.

— WEFRE HEFRZITERARRE - Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of

RAEET NS BRI - incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned

by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.

(i) SREBAERBERE T W (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
SRERABATASTERESLEE - Senior Management (“SM") is defined as heads of major functional
HRE T RT RS MAEERERSA units and Key Personnel ("KP") is defined as those whose activities
KAITREEXRRERENES - involve the assumption of material risk or the taking on of material

exposures on behalf of the Bank.

20156 - B8R EBIHEREARREEREA There were 8 employees being classified as SM and 5 employees
B SHEIWHBEABRET - BNAS being classified as KP during the financial year of 2015 and aggregate
ER3ZaRERABRBEE THFHMER quantitative information on remuneration for the 13 SM and KP is set
RIENT out below:
@ 2015F R204FHBFERNFH M2 (@  Amounts of remuneration for the financial years 2015 and 2014,
B LBEIEH B - rIE g TS splitinto fixed and variable remuneration:
2015 2014
FEL i3 JFRT B
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
B EF B =¥
EBAE BHEI BEAE HBEEI EEAE BHET TEAE HRET

M KP M KP SM KP M KP
BETR BRTR AMTr BETR BRI ARTT BRI A%T
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)

& E 5 Fixed remuneration
—HeRE ~ Salary and allowance 22,674 7,654 - - 23,299 4940 - -
AR EH B Variable remuneration
—ERa -PB 18,309 4,197 6,475 1,155 17,595 3,278 5,094 1,038
-BriEs ~RA 6,970 1,446 - - - - - -
—FREEBEH - MR - - - - - - 6,600 1912
-REABEH -7 - - 7,617 725 - - 6,600 843

206 RFERT (EFR) AR AR
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(iii)

Corporate Governance and Other Information

FMEE(E) Remuneration Matters (continued)
SHREBEABRBEETINGHME) (i) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
(continued)
() PR ERHOAIEEHM - D515 ()  Amounts and form of outstanding deferred variable

FR20154F 12 A31H &2014512 A31H()

remuneration, split into (i) vested, and (i) unvested as at 31

RER - KRG ARDIE - AAEMT ¢ December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are set out below:
2015 2014
EREEAE BMEET SHEREAS BRET
SM KP SM Kp
BT T BT T BB BB
(HK$'000) (HK$’000) (HKS " 000) (HKS "000)
(i) ZIHR (i) Vested
—ERAEA -PB 2,943 315 1,845 -
— o A - MTR 4,453 1,000 5,385 400
— R B Er ~ LTI 7,710A - 9,934 -
(i) HIARZIE (i) Unvested
— B -PB 11,036 1,968 8,196 1353
— R B B - MTR 13,343 2,837 16,796 3912
— R BB N —LTl 21,310 1,499 16,311 1,043

A FE2015F EIH - WHEFE2016F 14 ©

© 22055FEETEREBABLRBRE ©

THWFRENNAIZHFMEeESE /B
514,092,000 7T K 7 #& 1,880,000 7T ©
FEN R E B ARLEAE R
R BV B o Th = BB B BN A0 2
BEUARE = FEIFENEZNE
W o FE £ X (@) K (o)) TR B = HA K
BE M 2R AR ER R B ST
WE B IR o

d RIAHAE  R05FREREX @
NMECHFMESREREABEREA
#8 T 5 R A 151060007 &
¥ 1,315,000 7T - AR K B B A B
1,643,0007C © &MEFE T - 72015
FEERBEEEEETIR

A Vested in 2015 and will be paid in 2016.

Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial
year 2015 for SM and KP were HK$14,092,000 and HK$ 1,880,000
respectively. The aforesaid are the Deferred Performance Bonus
and LTI. For the LTI scheme, payment will be determined by
achievement of the long-term goals set for the performance
period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in form of LTI
reported in (a) and (b)(ii) above are the target cash value at
maturity upon achieving the long-term goals.

From a 2015 payment perspective, deferred variable
remuneration for SM and KP amounted to HK$15,106,000
and HK$1,315,000 respectively was vested and retirement
compensation amounted to HK$1,643,000 was paid out. No
discount of deferred variable remuneration was made for
performance adjustment.
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FM=EE(=E)

(iii)

(iv)

BREBAEBRBEETNEHM(E)

R015FFE - BIEaREEAEBR
1R E TEGREICL - REAB
51,930,000 7T I 72 2016 4F £ #E 1% I iE
FIE B - FR2015FFE - WELM
SRERABRERETELRES

D

H ARELEHH  BIESNHERANE

Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i)

Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel

(continued)

(e)  Guaranteed bonuses amounted to HK$1,930,000 were granted
to 1 SM and 1 KP during the financial year of 2015, and will be
payable starting 2016 awards per the deferral mechanism,. No
SM or KP has been awarded with severance payment during
financial year of 2015.

() Quantitative information about employee’s exposure to implicit

BHAENSRE and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration:
2015 2014
BT T BT
(HKS$’000) (HKS'000)
fed AN S <5 7 D Y PR R sX Total amount of outstanding
B2 e 8 R O S A 5 M deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration exposed
to ex post explicit/implicit SRERANE/SM 21,310 16,311
adjustment REfE 8B T/KP 1,499 1,043
MABEFEE - FABAZE  Total amount of reductions during
ok B2 S8 B 8 H F0R the financial year due to ex post =HEIEAB/SM - -
pa iR E-a Fek explicit/implicit adjustments R4 B T/KP - -
R BRIE SIS T (iv) Staff within Risk Control Function

RBRIEHIBER TEERERER A2 A
M TEZ - NEREEIE N B RS E IR IRE

2 Fi 22 1| B BE A B O 7 BB L 10 1R S P BE 42
EHBEMRRE - HFHIRFEEREZ O
BERBRREIEIZRTEAIE N o RRERE RIS
BEE ABFMEEEE MK - ZBBEAR
HF & 2R TI5K T R A RREGIEEE °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Staff within Risk Control Function includes risk management, legal,
compliance, audit, internal control, and financial management
function.

The remuneration of Risk Control Function staff is determined by their
functional job responsibilities and achievements against key measures
specific to the functional role they undertake, which are independent
from the performance of the business they oversee. Remuneration of
Risk Control Function staff is carefully benchmarked with the market
and internally to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.
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